DR. AGARWAL’S HEALTH CARE LIMITED
Regd. Office; 1% Floor, Buhari Towers, No.4, Moores Road,
Off Greams Road, Near Asan Memorial School Chennai 600006
CIN: US5100TN2010PLC075403

DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE COMPANY

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their Eleventh Annual Report together with the Audited Stand
alone and consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31* March 2022.

PERFORMANCE:
The highlights of the financials of your company are as under:
Rs. in Lakhs
Particula March 31, March 31,
Al 2022 2021
1 Revenue from Operations 36,158.98 23,224 .47
iI Other Income 1,036.72 364.95
HI | Total income (I+1I) 37,195.70 23,589.42
IV | Expenses
Purchases of Stock-in-trade 4,589.19 2,880.99
Changes in inventory of stock-in-trade (293.39) 185.50
Employee benefit expense 5,918.10 4,287.08
Finance costs 3,657.22 3,244.85
Depreciation and amortisation expense 5,929.47 5,516.68
Other expenses 17,490.30 12,692.66
Total expenses (1V) 37,290.89 28,807.76
V| Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (IT-1V) (95.19) (5,218.34)
VI | Exceptional Items - -
VI | Profit/(Loss) before tax (V-VT) (95.19) (5218.34)
VI | Tax expense
(a) Current fax (including prior years) - 181.77
(b) Deferred tax 52.22 7.80
TX | Profit/(Loss) for the Year (VII-VIII) (147.41) (5.407.91)
X Other Comprehensive Income
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit liabilities / (79.55) (32.45)
(asset)
(b) Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss ) )
Total other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year (79.55) (32.43)
xp | Total comprehensive (loss)/ income for the year (226.96) (5,440.36)
(VII+VIIT)




STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY:
Course of Business and Outlook / Business Performance:

During the year under review, the Company achieved a turnover of Rs. 36,158.98 Lakhs as compared to
Rs. 23,224.47 Lakhs in the previous financial year 2020-21. On account of efficient operations, the
Company has achieved a consolidated net profit of Rs. 4316 lakhs (Previous Year —Loss Rs.5908.15
lakhs). It is hoped that the Company would record a progressive increase in its turnover and turn the
corner during the coming vears.

During the year under review, your Company has opened six branches viz., three (3) branches in
Maharashtra located at Pune (one) and Nashik (two); Two (2) branches in Andhra Pradesh, located at
Vijayawada; and One (1) Branch in Tamil Nadu, located at Coimbatore.

A new center normally takes a couple of years to turn around and the Management is hopeful that the
operations of these Branches would ramp up the revenue resulting in a positive turnaround in the coming

years

Merger of Advanced Eye Instituie Private Iimited with the Company

During the year under review, “Advanced Eye Institute Private Limited” (AEIPL), a Wholly-Owned
Subsidiary of the Company, was merged with the Company with effect from 01* April 2021 vide Order
dated September 15, 2021 issued by The Regional Director(SR), Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Chennai,

Issue and allotment of convertible securities

During the year, Board at the Meeting held on the 30" June 2021, approved the proposal to raise further
funds from the existing investor i.e., Value Growth Tnvestment Holdings Pte. Ltd., Singapore and Arvon
Investments Pte Ltd and approved the issue of Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (‘CCDs’) and
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (*CCPS’) respectively. The Members at their meeting held
on 12 August 2021 had approved the issue of 124,301 Series C 0.001% Fully and Compulsorily
Convertible Non-Cumulative Participating Preference Shares of face value of INR 100 {Indian Rupees
One Hundred) each and at an issue price of Rs. 1200 including the premium of Rs. 1100 (Indian Rupees
One Thousand One Hundred) to M/s, Arvon Investments Pte. Lid and 1,67,366 Series C 0.001% fully and
compulsorily convertible Debentures of the face value of INR 1200 ({Indian Rupees One Thousand Two
Hundred) each, for an aggregate amount not exceeding INR 200,839,200 (Indian Rupees Twenty Crore
Eight Lakh Thirty-Nine Thousand Two hundred) to M/s. Value Growth Investment Holdings Pte. Ltd. on
Private Placement Basis and the said CCPS and CCDs were allotted at the Board Meeting held on August
20, 2021.

Conversion of the CCDs and CCPS:

In reference to the above allotment made during the year and in terms of the agreement entered into with
M/s.Value Growth Investment Holdings Pte. Lid., Singapore and M/s, Arvon Investment Pte. Ltd, the
said CCDs and CCPS held by them were converted into 71,394 and 53,024 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
each, respectively, at a premium of Rs. 3,175.67 per Share. The converted Equity Shares were allotted at
the Board Mecting held on the April 26, 2022. Subsequent to the allotment of 71,394 Equity Shares,
M/s.Value Growth Investment Holdings Pte. Lid, Singapore transferred its entire holdings in favour of
M/s.Hyperion Investments Pte Ltd., Singapore and ceased to be a shareholder of the Company.




Non-Cenvertible Debentures

The Board after obtaining the approval of the Shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on
the 25% October 2019, the Company decided to raise funds to a tune of Rs.215 Crores by issuing 2150
{(Two Thousand one hundred and fifty) senior, collateralized, unlisted, redeemable, Non-convertible
Debentures (NCDs) of the face value of Rs.10,00,000 (Rupees Ten lakh) each on a private placement
basis.

As on the date of this Report, the NCDs have been paid up to the extent of Rs. 1,600,000,000 (Rupees
One Hundred and Sixty Crores only) and your Company has voluntarily redeemed 450 NCDs on June
30, 2022. The balance amount would be called upon as and when the need for further funds arises.

Acquisition of Aditva Jvot Eve Hospital Limited

During the period under review, your Company acquired 51% of the paid-up share capital of M/s. Aditya
Jyot Eye Hospital Private Limited and made it as the subsidiary of the Company. M/s.Aditya Fyot Eye
Hospital Private Limited is having its hospital at Wadala, Mumbai and caters the eye care needs of the
Mumbai region.

Issue of fresh equity shares

During the financial year, Board at its Meeting held on the 28th March, 2022, approved the issue of
3.,45,296 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each on preferential/private placement basis to Hyperion Investments
Pte. Ltd., Singapore and 5,96,420 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each to M/s.Arvon Investments Pte. Ltd.,
Singapore, both at a premium of Rs, 3,175.67 per share, based on the Valuation Report dated 28th
March, 2022. Subsequently, these Equity Shares were allotted on the 5th May 2022 after complying with
all the requirements of the applicable laws.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL
YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE
DATE OF THE REPORT

The Board on 30" June 2022 has redeemed 4350 Non-Convertible Debentures after the closure of the
financial year ended 31% March 2022,

DIVIDEND

Due to conservation of reserves and considering the future expansion of the Company, your Directors
have not recommended any dividend.

MEETINGS

During the year 2021-22, Five meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company were held on 30%
June 2021, 20™ August 2021, 13™ September 2021, 02°¢ December 202 1and 28% March 2022.

Audit Commiittee:
During the year 2021-22, three meetings of the Audit Committee of the Company were held on 30™ June

2021, 13% September 2021 and 28™ March 2022. The present composition of the Audit Committee is as
follows.




S. No | Name of the Director Category Designation
1 Mr. V Balakrishnan Independent Director | Chairman

2 Mr. Sanjay Anand Independent Director | Member

3 Mr., Shiv Agrawal Independent Director | Member

4 Mr. Ved Prakash Kalanoria Nominee Director Member

5 Mr. Ankur Nand Thadani Nominee Director Member

The Composition of Audit Committec of the Board is in conformity with the requirements of Section 177
of the Companies Act 2013. Consequent to the resignation of Mr. R. Venkatesh and Mr. Suresh Prabhala
on 04" May 2022 and 05™ May 2022 respectively, the Committee was reconstituted and Mr. Ved Prakash
Kalanoria and Mr. Ankur Nand Thadani were inducted as Members on 05% May 2022.

AUDITORS

Pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, at the Annual General Meeting held on 23
September 2021, M/s., Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Chartered Accountants (Firms Registration No:
0080725), Chennai were re-appointed for a pericd of 5 (Five) years as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company, to hold office till the conclusion of the Sixteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company.

DEPOSITS

Your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014,

PARTICULARS OF LLOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013.

INVESTMENTS

The Company has made fresh investments during the year under review in the Equity Shares of
M/s.Aditya Jyot Eye Hospital Private Limited as disclosed in the financial statements. By virtue of this
investment, M/s.Aditya Jyot Eve Hospital Private Limited became a subsidiary of the Company during
the year.

PARTICULARS OF LOAN & GUARANTEES

The particulars of loans & guarantees given as per Section 186 of the Act by the Company, have been
disclosed in the financial statements.

Though the Company did not give any leans as such, the cutstanding from a subsidiary company in
which some of the Directors are interested were converted into a loan, after complying with the relevant

provisions of the Act.

During the period under review, the Company has provided Corporate Guarantee for the loan availed by
M/s. Aditya Jyot Eye Hospital Private Limited to the extent of Rs. 10 crore to Kotak Mahindra Bank.
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During the period under review, the Company has provided Corporate Guarantee for the loan availed by
M/s. Dr. Agarwal’s Eye Hospital Limited, for an amount of Rs. 73.98 crore from Axis Bank.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has an adequate system of internal control in place which has been designed to provide a
reasonable assurance with regard to maintaining of proper accounting controls, monitoring of operations,
protecting assets from unauthorized use or losses, compliance with regulations and for ensuring reliability
of financial reporting.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year under review, Mr. Mithun Sacheti, Independent Director resigned due to personal reasons
on 23 April 2022. The Board places on record its appreciation for his assistance and guidance during his
tenure as Independent Director. After the closure of the financial year, Mr. R. Venkatesh and Mr. Suresh
Prabhala have resigned from the Company vide their letters dated (5™ May 2022 and 04% May 2022
respectively. The Board on 05% May 2022, based on the recommendations of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and pursuant to the Sharcholders® Agreement entered into between Company,
M/s. Hyperion Investments Pte Ltd., M/s. Claymore Investments (Mauritius) Pte. Ltd., M/s.Arvon
Investments Pte Ltd and the promoters of the Company, had appointed Mr. Ved Prakash Kalanoria (DIN:
(8950500) and Mr. Ankur Nand Thadani (DIN: 03566737) as the Additional Directors of the Company
and the sharcholders at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 05™ May 2022 regularized their
appeintment as the Nominee Directors of the Company.

BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board had carried out a formal evaluation of
its own performance, as well as the evaluation of the working of its Committees and also of the individual
Directors. A structured analysis was done after taking into consideration the inputs received from
Directors, covering various aspects of the Board’s functioning such as adequacy of the composition of the
Board and its Commitiees, Board culture, Execution and Performance of specific duties, obligations and
governance. A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors
including the Chairman of the Board, who were evaluated on parameters such as level of engagement and
contribution, independence of judgment, safeguarding the interests of the Company and of its minority
sharcholders, etc.

DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has received necessary declarations from each Independent Director of the Company under
Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 that the Independent Directors of the Company meet the
criteria of their Independence laid down in Section 149(6).

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises Four Directors. Mr. Shiv Agarwal, Independent
Director, is the Chairman of the Committee. The other members of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee are, Mr. Sanjay Anand, Independent Director, Mr. R.Venkatesh and Mr.Suresh Prabhala,
Nominee Directors. Consequent upon the resignation of Mr, R. Venkatesh and Mr, Suresh Prabhala on
04% May 2022 and 05" May 2022, respectively, the Committee was reconstituted and Mr. Ved Praksh
Kalanoria and Mr. Ankur Nand Thadani were inducted on 05" May 2022.




Meeting and Attendance:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met twice during the year on 07% June 2021 and 13%
September 2021. The requisite quorum was present at the Meeting.

Terms of Reference

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee has been constituted to formulate, review and recommend a
policy relating to remuneration of directors, key managerial personnel and other employees. The
Committee also formulates the criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board

Remuneration Policy:

The Nomination and Remuneration committee has adopted a Charter which, inter alia deals with the
manner and criteria for determining qualifications and positive attributes of Independent Directors and a
remuneration policy for Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees. This Policy is
accordingly derived from the said Charter

(i} Criteria for Determining Qualifications, Positive Atiributes & Independence of Director:

(a) Qualifications of Independent Director:

An Independent director shall possess appropriate skills, experience and knowledge in one or more fields
of finance, law, management, sales, marketing, administration, research, corporate governance, operations
or other disciplines related to the company’s business.

(b) Positive atiributes of Independent Directors: An independent director shall be a person of integrity,
who possesses relevant expertise and experience and who shall uphold ethical standards of integrity and
probity; act objectively and constructively; exercise his responsibilities in a bona-fide manner in the
interest of the company; devote sufficient time and attention to his professional obligations for informed
and balanced decision making; and assist the company in implementing the best corporate governance
practices.

(c) Independence of Independent Directors; An Independent director should meet the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013 concerning independence of directors.

(I) Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees:

(a) NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (NEDs): The Non-Executive / Independent Director may receive
remuneration by way of fees for attending meetings of Board or Committee thereof, Provided that the
amount of such fees shall not exceed the maximum amount as provided in the Companies Act, 2013, per
meeting of the Board or Commitiee or such amount as may be prescribed by the Central Government
from time to time.

(b) MANAGING DIRECTOR (MD) & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL & OTHER EMPLOYEES:
The objective of the policy is directed towards having a compensation philosophy and structure that will
reward and retain talent. The Remuneration to Executive Directors shall take into account the Company’s
overall performance, Director’s contribution for the same and trends in the industry in general, in a
manner which will ensure and support a high performance culture. The Remuneration to others will be
such as to ensure that the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmarks. Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Managemennt
will involve a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance



objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals. The above criteria and policy are
subject to review by the Nomination & Remuneration committee & the Board of Directors of the
Coinpany.

AUDITORS’ REPORTS

Statutory Auditors’ Reports, both Stand Alone and Consolidated

The Auditors” Reports have no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers.
Secretarial Audit

The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed to this Report. There has been no qualification, reservation or
adverse remark or disclaimer in the Report.

COST AUDITOR(S)

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the relevant Rules and based on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, M/s, BY & Associates., Cost Accountant in Practice (Firm
Registration No: 003498), has been appointed as the Cost Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year
2021-22. Accordingly, a Resolution seeking the ratification of the remuneration payable to M/s, BY &
Associates., Cost Accountants in Practice, by the Members of the Company, is being included on the
Agenda of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Govt under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of
the Companies Act, 2013 is applicable to the Company and accordingly, such accounts and records are
made and maintained.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has a vigil mechanism to deal with instances of fraud and mismanagement, if any. The
Audit Committee oversees the function of the vigil mechanism.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

A copy of the Annual Return in Form MGT-7 will be uploaded to the Website of the Company at
www.dragarwal.com.

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS OF THE COMPANY AND THE
COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which would
impact the going concern status of the Company.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013




Considering gender equality, the Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace. The
Company has an Anti Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment
of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. An Internal Complaints
Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassiment. All
employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed of during the
reporting period:

. No. of complaints received: 1

. No. of complaints disposed of: 1

. No. number of complaints pending as on the end of the financial year: Nil
SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Your Company has four direct subsidiaries, namely, Dr. Agarwal’s Eye Hospital Limited, Elisar Life
Sciences Private Limited, Aditya Jyot Eye Hospital Private Limited and Orbit Health Care Services
(Mauritius) Limited {wholly owned subsidiary). The Orbit Health Care Services (Mauritius) Limited had
one wholly-owned subsidiary, namely, M/s. Orbit Healthcare Services International Operations Ltd., and
that subsidiary had Nine stepdown subsidiaries, as on 31.03.2022. The names of these stepdown
subsidiaries are given below:

Orbit Healthcare Services Ghana Limited

Orbit Health Care Services SARL, Madagascar
Orbit Health Care Services Mozambique Limited
Orbit Health Care Services Limited, Rwanda

Orbit Thelish Health Care Services (Nigeria) Limited
Orbit Health Care Services Zambia Limited

Orbit Health Care Services Uganda Limited

Orbit Health Care Services Kenya Limited

Orbit Health Care Services (Tanzania) Limited
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There has been no material change in the nature of business of the Subsidiaries.

M/s.Advanced Eye Institute Private Limited, previously a subsidiary, was merged with your Company
effective 1 April, 2021 under Section 233 of the Companies Act, 2013 as per the Confirmation Order to
the Scheme of Amalgamation received from Regional Director dated 15™ September, 2021.

The Registrar of Companies, Republic of Mauritius, vide its order dated 26% April 2022 has approved the
amalgamation of Orbit Health Care Services (Mauritius) Limited with M/s. Orbit Healthcare Services
[nternational Operations Lid with effect from 015" April 2022.

During the year under review, M/s.IdeaRX Services Private Limited, an Associate Company, made fresh
issue of shares and following such issue and allotment of shares, your Company’s shareholding in that
Company got reduced to14.71%.Consequently, that company has ceased to be an Associate Company,
within the meaning of Section 2(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.



In terms of the proviso to sub section (3) of Section 129 of the Act, the salient features of the financial
statements of the Subsidiaries and the Associate Company are set out in the prescribed Form AQC-1
(ANNEXURE-I), which forms part of this Report.

PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

Name of the Subsidiary Turnover Profit before tax
(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21
Dr. Agarwal’s Eye Hospital Limited 20,121.45 13,980.90 |3,231.13 573.28
Aditya Jyot Eye Hospital Private Limited 1085.27 655.24 99.91 (3.81)
Elisar Life Sciences Private Limited 318.48 204.91 (905.18) (1,057.73)
Orbit Health Care Services (Mauritius) Limited | 13,258.86 10,225.11 | 3,019.63 627.08

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As required by the Companies Act, 2013, the consolidated Financial Statements, prepared in accordance
with the relevant Accounting Standard, are also presented along with the stand-alone Statements.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of the employees of the Company are annexed as
ANNEXURE - II to this report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION ETC.

The Company continues to do everything possible towards conserving energy. The Company is yet to
take any steps for utilizing alternative sources of energy. In the opinion of the Directors, the matters
relating to Research and Development, Technology Absorption ete. are not applicable to the Company, as
yet.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Earnings: Nil (Previous year Rs. 78.45 Lakhs)
Outgo: Rs. 64.18 Lakhs (Previous year 12.22 Lakhs)

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by
them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act,
2013:

i} Inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards have been followed.

iiy The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
the affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the Loss of the Company for the year
under review.




iii} The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

iv) The Directors have prepared the annual accoun(s on a going concern basis.

v) The Directors have devised a proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws, including the applicable Secretarial Standards and that this system is adequate and operating
effectively.

vi) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY — Not Applicable

RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Board has formulated the Company’s Risk Management Policy, identifying the elements of risk that
the Company may face, such as strategic, financial, credit, market, liquidity, security, property, legal,
regulatory and other risks, pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 (3) (n) of the Act.

The management continuously reviews the risk management process including identification, impact
assessment and draws up mitigation plans.

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS:

Employee relations were cordial through the year and across the centres of the Company. The Board
wishes to place on record its sincere appreciation of the devoted efforts of all employees in advancing the
Company’s vision and strategy. Their support has helped the Company {o significantly improve its
performance during the year.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the year under review, the Company has entered into contracts / arrangements with related parties
(wholly owned subsidiaries excluded) in the ordinary course of its business and on arm’s length basis.
Thus, the provisions of Section 188(1) of the Acf are not applicable.

The particulars of the arm’s length transactions have been provided in the prescribed Form AQC-2
(ANNEXURE-III), which forms part of this Report.

APPRECIATION
Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the continuous support received from the
members, customers, suppliers, various statutory bodies of the Government of India and the Company’s

employees at all levels.
By Order of the Board NS
For Dr. Agarwai’s Health Care Limited (( S/

y b o
Dr. Add Agarwal

Dr. Anosh Agarwal
Whole-time Director Whole-time Director
Place: Chennai DIN: 01074272 DIN: 02636035
Date: 12/08/2022



Form AOC-1

ANNEXURE -1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companics (Accounts)
Rules, 2014)

Statemeni containing salient features of the Financial Statement of Subsidiaries/ Associate
Companies / Joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

SL

No. Particulars Details Details Details Details
Dr Agarwal’s Orbit Hea.lth Elis?r Life Aditya J}_mt
1 Name of the subsidiary | Eye Hospital Care St?r'vmes Sc:fances E:ye HosP “.a]
Limited (Mfllll.'ltllls) Private Private Limited
Limited Limited
The date since when
2 subsidiary was 19.04.20112 10.01.2017 31.10.2019 08.10.2021
acquired
Reporting period for
the subsidiary
3 concemed, if differ_ent * April to 31% | 1% April to 31* 1% April to 315 | 1% April to 31*
from tlhe holdfng Magch 2022 Mafch 2022 March 2022 March 2022
Company's  reporting
period
Reporting currency and
Exchange rate as on on
, | the = Qe of the INR(In| VUK
relevant Financial Year Lakhs) 1.7942 INR INR (In INR (In
in the case of foreign : Lakhs) Lakhs)
subsidiaries
5 Share capital 470.00 6974.10 237.73 340.02
6 | Reserves & surplus 7,347.45 7.64 (1,481.67) 25.83
7 Total assets 31,401.45 13,158.47 841.90 1,353.21
8 Total Liabilities 23,584.00 6,176.73 2,892.49 987.36
9 Investments - - - -
10 | Turnover 20,121.45 13,258.86 318.48 1,085.27
11 | Profit before taxation 3,231.13 3,019.63 (905.18) 99.91
12 | Provision for taxation 820.66 598.22 (98.53) (12.16)
13 | Profit after taxation 2,410.47 2,421.41 (806.65) 112.06
14 | Proposed Dividend 30% NIL NIL NIL
15 Extent of sharsholding 71.75% 100% 76% 51%

(in percentage)




@ All the figures except the Share Capital, are after the consolidation of the financials of all the step
down subsidiaries.

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations - None
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year - None.
Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies
and Joint Ventures

Name of associates/Joint Ventures IDEARX SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31/03/2022

2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held
by the company on the year end

Nos. 49,254 shares of Re.1/- each

Amount of Investment in Associates/ 201 Lakhs

Joint Venture

Extent of Holding 14.71%

3. Description of how there is significant Control of more than 15% of the voting
influence Power

4. Reason why the Associate/Joint venture | NA
is not consolidated

5. Net worth attributable to shareholding | (289.13 Lakhs)

Audited Balance Sheet
6.Profit/(Loss) for the year {521.39 Lakhs)
Considered in Consclidation (76.70 Lakhs)
Not Considered in Consolidation {444.69 Lakhs)
By Order of the Board
For Dr. Agarwal’s Health Care Limited
84 ! \\
s/ &
y \ >\ Chennai | % |}
/A\Os L\ g
N ~—"0",
Dr. Anosh Agarwal N~
Whole-time Director Whole-time Director

Place: Chennai DIN: 01074272 DIN: 02636035

Date: 12/08/2022



ANNEXURE - 11

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of the employees of the Company

Name Designation / Gross Qualification Date of Previous
Nature of Duties| Remuneration & commencement | employment
Paid Experience of employment
(Rs. in Lakhs) (in Years)
Dr. Adil Agarwal | Whole-time 211.14 MBBS 19.04.2010 -
Director & CEO M.S. Ophthalmology

MBA (Stanford)
12 Years of

Experience
Dr. Anosh Agarwal | Whole-Time 150.87 MBBS, M.S., | 30.01.2014 -
Director Opthamology, MBA

(Harvard) 10 Years
of Experience

a. The above employments are contractual.

b. As per the disclosures available with the Company, Dr. Adil Agarwal who is related to Dr. Amar Agarwal and Dr. Anosh
Agarwal and holds 511985 shares in the Company and Dr.Anosh Agarwal who is related to Dr. Amar Agarwal and Dr. Adil
Agarwal and holds 524263 shares in the Company.

By Order of the Board

For Dr. Agarwal’s Health Care Limited

Dr. Adj Agérwal Dr. Anosh Agarwal
Whgte-time Director Whole-time Director
DIN: 01074272 DIN: 02636035

Place: Chennai
Date: 12/08/2022



ANNEXURE -I11

FORM NO. AOC.2

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s
length transactions under third proviso thereto

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section(3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounis) Rules, 2014)

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis
None
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis

Please refer to Note No.38 of the Notes on Accounts forming part of the standalone Financial
Statements

By Order of the Board
For Dr.Agarwal’s Health Care Limited

Xy M

Dr. AdjyA) fal;wal Dr. Anosh Agarwal

Whole-time Director Whole-time Director
DIN: 01074272 DIN: 02636035

Place: Chennai
Date: 12/08/2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Dr. Agarwal’s Health Care Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We bhave audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of
Dr. Agarwal’s Health Care Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as
at March 31, 2022, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”)
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2022, and its loss, total comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143{10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAl’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

* The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information inciuded in the Board Report but does not include
the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

¢ Qur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

* In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, cansider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge

btained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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» If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these ind AS standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with
the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accou nting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting uniess management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
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whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standaione financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in {i) planning the scope of our audit wark and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among ather matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We aiso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a} We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
djsqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of
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f)

g}

h)

Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financiai
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is
in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in Note No 36 to the standalone financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  {a) The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the notes to the accounts no funds {which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies}, including foreign entities(“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds {which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been received by the Company from any person or entity(ies)/ ,
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”) , with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise , that the Company shall,
directly or indirectty, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
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caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii)
of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

v. The company has not declared/proposed or paid any dividend during the year.
Hence compliance of section 123 of The Companies Act 2013 is not applicable.

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 0080725)

ggA,-'t f\Ou»i!}\‘/

Ananthi Amarnath

(Partner)

Place: Chennai (Membership No. 209252)
Date: 26 August, 2022 (UDIN 22209252AQQ0BRI2481)
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1{f} under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
Dr. Agarwal’s Health Care Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
contrals based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards
on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting,
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Acompany's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and {3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the criteria for internal financial control over
financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins and Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm‘s Registration No.0O80725)

M(- .
«JJ\/

Ananthi Amarnath

(Partner)

Place: Chennai {Membership No. 209252)
Date: 26 August, 2022 (UDIN 22209252AQQ0BR12481)
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

(i} In respect of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, Capital work-in-
progress, and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The property, plant and equipment , capital work-in-progress and right of use assets
were physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance with a regular
programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides for physical verification at
reascnable intervals. According to the information and explanation given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties, which are reported under
Property, Plant and Equipment and hence reporting under clause{i)(c} of the CARQ 2020 is
not applicable.

In respect of immovabie properties of buildings that have been taken on lease and
disclosed as Right of use assets as at the Balance sheet date, the lease agreements are duly
executed in favour of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including right
of use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

{e} No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company
as at March 31, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
{Prohibition) Act, 1388 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(ii)(a) As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the
Management at reasonable intervals. In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of
inventories were naticed on such physical verification of inventories when compared
with books of account.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at any point of
time during the year, for a period of 60 days, from banks on the basis of security of
current assets but were not required to submit the quarterly returns or statements.
Hence, reporting on the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such
banks is not applicable.
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(iii} {(a) The Company has provided loans and stood guarantee during the year and details of
which are given below:
{Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars lLoans Guarantees
A. Aggregate amount granted / provided during

the year:

-Subsidiaries 208.57 8,612.55
-Associates - -

B. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in
respect of above cases:*

-Subsidiaries 2,416.67 3,531.44
-Associates - -

* The amounts reported are at gross amounts, without considering provisions made.

The Company has not granted any advances in nature of loans or security to any other
entity during the year.

{b) The investments made, guarantees provided, and the terms and conditions of the grant
of all the above-mentioned loans and guarantees provided, during the year are, in our
opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(c) In respect of loans granted provided by the Company, the schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments of principal
amounts and receipts of interest are regular as per stipulation.

{d) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed, in respect of loans granted provided by the Company, there is no
overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date.

(e) During the year, working capital loan aggregating to Rs. 632 lakhs fell due and was
renewed by modifying it as a term loan and extending the repayment period. The details
of such loans that fell due and those granted during the year are stated below

Name of the party Aggregate amount of overdues | Percentage of the aggregate to
of existing loans renewed or the total loans or advances in
extended or settied by fresh the nature of loans granted
loans (Rs. in Lakhs) during the year

Elisar Life Sciences 632 304%

Private Limited

(f} According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed, the Company has not granted any loans either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence,
reporting under clause (iii){f) is not applicable

(iv) The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees and securities
provided, as applicable.
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(v} According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence, reporting under
clause (v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has maintained the cost records which has been specified by the Central
Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly
reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies {Cost
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended, prescribed by the Central Government for
maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and are
of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and
maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with
a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Income-tax, duty of
Custom, cess Employee’s State Insurance and other material statutory dues applicable to
the Company have generally been regularly deposited by it with the appropriate
authorities though there has been a delay in respect of remittance of dues towards
Provident fund, Professional Tax and Labour Welfare Fund.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax,
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, duty of Custom, Professional
Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(c)There are no statutory dues referred in sub-clause (a) above which have not been
deposited on account of disputes as on March 31, 2022,

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there were
no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or
disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961}
during the vear.

{ix) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority.

(c) To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the
Company were, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the
loans were obtained, other than temporary deployment pending application.

(d) in our opinicn and according to the information and explanations given to us,
funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for
long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us i
the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
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(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries or joint ventures or associate companies.

(x) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause (x}(a) of
the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has made private placement of Compulsorily Convertible Preference
Shares and Compulsory Convertible Debentures during the year. For such allotment of
shares, the Company has complied with the requirements of Section 42 and 62 of the
Companies Act, 2013, and the funds raised have been, prima facie, applied by the
Company during the year for the purposes for which the funds were raised, other than
temporary deployment pending application.

{xi) (a} To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given
to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed
or reported during the year.

{b) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given
to us, no report under sub-section {12} of section 143 of the Companies Act has been
filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.

(c}) As represented by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year and up to the date of this report.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the CARO
2020 Order is not applicable.

{xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013,
where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv){a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the
nature of its business.

{(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the year
and covering the period up to 31 March, 2022 under audit, in determining the nature,
timings and extent of our audit procedures.

{(xv} Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the
year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

(xvi){(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause {xvi){a), {b) and (c) of the Order is not
applicable.
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(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there
is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016} and accordingly reporting under clause
(xvi)(d} of the Order is not applicable.

{xvii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit
and the immediately preceding financial year.

{xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the
year.

{xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall
due.

(xx) The Company was not having net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, or
turnover of rupees one thousand crore or more or a net profit of rupees five crore or
more during the immediately preceding financial year and hence, provisions of Section
135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3{xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For Deloitte Haskins and Sells

Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 0080725S)

Hxon

Ananthi Amarnath

(Partner)

Place: Chennai (Membership No. 209252)
Date: 26 August, 2022 {UDIN 22209252AQQBR)2481)




DR, AGARWAL'S HEALTH CARE LIMITED
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Asat As at
Particularg Note No. 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Refer note 18.4)
I. ASSETS
{1} Non-current assets
(a} Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets
(i) Property, Plant and Equipment 5{A) 11,447 40 19,844 .81
{ii} Intangible assets
[a} Goodwill 7 5,023.15 6,801.27
{b) Other Intangible assets 7 3,220.34 2,138.47
(ifi) Capltal work-in-progress 5{B} 185.24 1,081.86
(b} Right of use asset 6 13,025.35 18,806.58
{c} Financial assets
(i} Investments 14,740.66 12,137 .54
(il Leans 9 2,107.67 1,650.01
(ili}) Other Financial assets 9 1,235.58 928.60
[d} Non-current income tax assets (net) iz 1,749.26 1379.20
{e} Other non-current assets o0 220.86 10.22
{f) Deferred tax assets {net) 13 52.22
Total Non - current Assets 56,955.91 55,930.57
(2} Current assets
{2} Inventories 11 1,751.42 1,337.32
{b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 14 3,051.64 2A5647
{1} Cash and cash equivalents 15(A) 4,373.86 237077
{iif}) Other Bank balances 15(B} 1,626.38 S06.40
{iv} Loans 16 = 357.10
{v) Other Financizl Assets 16.1 695,23 51938
[} Other current assets 10 790.31 360.36
Total current assets 12,288.84 8,408.30
TOTAL ASSETS 59,244.75 64,338.87
1I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Expurity
(a) Equity Share capital 17 686.00 686.00
{k} Other equity 18 15,205.48 15,432.44
Total Equity 19,391.48 20,118.44
{2} Nan-current liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings 19 22,814.48 15,805.83
(ia) Lease Liability 40 {8) 14,014.52 15,876.00
(i} Qther financial liakilities 20 73205 561.79
{b) Provisions 21 161.66 20.76
Tatal Non - Current Liabifities 37,722.71 36,334.44
(3} Current labilitias
() Financial Liahilities
{i) Borrowings 23 237084 280.20
i} Lease Liability 40 (B} 1,596.92 1,184.35
{il) Trade payables
- Totai outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 24 67645 -
- Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micre enterprises 24 4,690,213 5,105.16
and small enterprises
{ifi} Other financial liabilities 20 1,77344 892.80
(b} Provisions P2 6671 93.65
{c) Other current liabilities 22 45599 281.97
{d} Current tax liabilities 22 {a) - 47.82
Total Current Liabilities 11,630¢.56 7,885.99
TOTAL LIABILETIES 49,353.27 44,220.43
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 69,244.75 64,335.87

See accormpanying notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

In terms of aur report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells

Chartered Accountanis
Firm,Regn.No, D0B0725

Ananthi Amarnath
Partner
Membership No.209252

Place : Chennai
Date ; August 26, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

101074272
(Q/F{J_\f 6

Myr. B. Udhay Shankar
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Chennai
Date : August 12, 2022

%SV,V

Dr. Anash Agarwal

Whaletime Directar
DiN: 02636035
-~

®r. Thanikainathan Arvmugam
Company Secretary




CR. AGARWAL'S HEALTH CARE LIMITED
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Far the Year ended For the Year ended
Particudars Note No, 31 March 2022 31 march 2021
[Refer note 1E.4)
i Revenue from Operations 25 36,158.98 23,224.47
Il Other Income 26 1,036.72 364.95
Il Total Income {141} 37,195.70 23,589.42
IV Expenses
Purchzse of Stock-in-trade 27 4,5858.19 2,880.99
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 28 {293.39) 18550
Employee bensfits expense 29 5,818.10 4,287.08
Finance costs 3G 3,657.22 3,244.85
Depreciation and amartisation expense 31 5,829.47 5,516.68
Other expenses 32 17,490.30 12,692.66
Tatal expenses (V) 37,290.8% 28,307.76
V  Loss before tax (lll1V) {95.19) {5,218.34)
VI Tax expense
(4] Current tax 2.2 - 5640
(b} Prior Year Tax 12,2 - 125.37
[c) Deferred tax 12.2 52.22 780
52.22 139.57
VIl Lass for the Year (VIL-VIIY (147.41} (5,407.91)
VI Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
{a}) Remeasurements of the defined benefit liabilities / {asset} {79.55) (32.45)
{b} Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Total other camprehensive Joss for the year {74.55) {32.45)
X Total comprehensive loss for the year (VIV} {226.96) {5,440.36)
Earnings per equity share [Face value of R5.10/- each) 41
{a) Basic [in Rs.) {2.15} {73.83)
{b) DHuted (in Rs.) (2.15) {78.83)

See accompanying notes forming part of the standalene financial statements

In terms of aur report sttached
For beloitte Haskins & Sells

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn.No, 0080725

nanthi Amarnath
Parther
Membership No.209252

Place : Chenaai
Date ! August 25, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

arwal

Dr. Adil
Whajetim
DIN: 01074272

Director

L SBWEAR

Mr. B, Udhay Shankar
Chief Financiat Officer

Place : Chennal
Date : August 12, 2022

-

DrrAnesh Agarwal
Wholetime Director
DIN: 626360

\C

Wie. Thanikainathan Arumugam
Compzny Secretary
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DR. AGARWAL'S HEALTH CARE LIMITED
falone Cash Flow Statement as on 31 March 2022
{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
For tha Year ended
For th
Particulars Note No, ‘:1‘ r:a\;::rzzr;(;ed 31 March 2021
{Refer note 18.4)
A, Cash flows from operating activities
Loss after tax for the year {147.41) {%,407.91)
Adiustments for;
Deprecfation and Amortization Expenses 31 5,929.47 5,516 68
Income taxes {current and deferred taxes) 12&13 52.22 188.57
Finance Costis / Interest Expense on financizf liabilities at amortized cost 30 3,657.22 3,244.85
Interest income - Bank & ather investments 26 (353.72) {221.53)
[nterest Incame - Other Financial Assets at amortized cast 26 {14.26} (27.95}
Lizhilities / provisions na longer required written back 26 {228.99) -
Het gain on termination of right-of-use assets 26 {243.32} {37.78}
Loss on sale of Property, Flant and Equipment (Net) 32 - 67.68
Allowance far £xpected Credit Lasses 32 529.57 603.62
Lass on property, plant and equipmant discarded 32 4784 86.77
Interest on Income Tax refund 26 {143.05) (24.57)
Unrealised Foreign Exchange Loss / {Gain} 26 15.95 40.50
Provision for doubtful lozns and advances 32 309.00 -
Operating Profit before Working Capital and othar changes 9,411.53 | #.023.95‘
Movernents in working capital.
[increase} f Dacrease in Inventories 11 (514.10) 327.06
[Increase} / Decrease in Trade receivables 14 {1,124.74) 586.74
{increase} in Loans and Other Financial assets (Current and Non Current) 9 [599.15) {625.58)
{increase) in Other Assets (Current) 10 [(429.45) {41.67)
Increase in Trade Payables 24 26150 93846
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities {Current and Non Current) 20 1,064.44 {318.11)
{Decrease} / Increase in Provisions {(Current and Non Current} 21 {35.63) 7.22
Increase / (Decreasa} in Cther Labilities {Current) 22 174.02 {51.45)
Changes in Working Capital and ather ¢hanges {2,303.11) 82227
8,108.42 4,846.22
Inceme taxes (paid) - net of refunds 121 {275.23} [217.23}
Net cash generated from operating activities 7,829.19 4,628.99
B. Cash flows frem investing activities
Capital Expendittre on Property, Plant and Equipment {Including Capita! work in Prog s(A) {7,828.07} [2,321.79)
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant 2nd Equipment and Capital Work in progress 26 1,156.00 15.2¢
Purchase of investments 8,14 {2,600.08) -
Increase in Bank balances not censidered as Cash and cash equivalents 15[8) (715.58} [389.15)
Interest Received from Bank & other investments 26 108.93 51.13
Net cash flows used in investing activities {9.843.20} (2,644.61}
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Freceeds from Long-term borrowings (net of repayments) 20 5,358.47 2,000.00
Proteeds from Shart-term borrowings{nat of repayments) 23 154.52 {23171}
Finance costs paid an borrowings 31,21 (2,163.30) {1,706.25)
Proceeds from issue of compulserily convertible preference shares of the company 17 2,008.39 -
Proceeds from issue of Debentures of the company 18 1,475.79 -
Payment of lease liabilities 41 (2,816.77) {2,173.87)
Net cash flows generated fromt / [used in) financing activities 4,017.10 {2,111.83)
Met increase/{decrease} bn cash and cash equivalents [A+B+C] 2,003.09 (127.45)
Add- Cash and cash equivalents on account of merger at the baginning of the year = 101,65
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 15{A} 2,370.77 2,386.57
Lash and cash equlvalents at the end of the year 15{A} 4,373.86 2,370.77
Interms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sefls For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm,Regn.No. 0080725 OQ
Ananthi Amamath Dir. Angsh Agarwral
Partrer Whaletime Director P
Membership No.209252 DIN: 02636035
(US4
1 .
Mr. B, Udhay Shankar Mr. Thanikainathan Arurmugam
Chief Financial Otficer Lompany Secretary
Place : Chennai Place : Chennai
Date : August 26, 2022 Date : Aupust 12, 2022




DR. AGARWAL'S HEALTH CARE LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financlal Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

1  Corporate Information

Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited ('the Company’) was incorporated on 15 April 2010 and is primarily engaged in running, owning and managing eye care
hospitals, opticals, pharmactes, ete. and related services. As at 31 March 2022, the Company is cperating in 66 locations in India.

2 Application of New and Revised Ind AS

Ministry of Corporate Affairs {“MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting $tandards JRules as
Issued from time to time.

On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies {Indian Accounting Standzrds) Amendment Rules, 2022, vide Notification No.G.S.R 255{E), as below.
{i}Ind AS 16 — Property Plant and equipment

The amendment clarifies that, excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but
deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipmant. The amendment is effective for the annual
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022, However, the company is in the nature of renderTng services and hence the above amendment does not have any
impactin the financials.

{it} Ind AS 37 — Previsions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The cest of fulfiliing a contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract cansist of both-

{a) the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract—for example, direct lahour and materials; and

{b) an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts— for example, an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant
and equipment used in fulfilling that contract among others

The amendment is effective for the annual period commencing on or after 01 April 2022 and early adoptlon is alsc permitted.

The same will be reviewed by the company in next year.

3 Significant Accounting Policies
3.1 Sstatement of Compliance

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards notified under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards)
Rutes, 2015 and relevant ammendment rules issued thereafter.
The financisl statements were authorised for the issue by the Company's Board of Directors on August 12, 2022

3.2 Basis of Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements

These financial statements have been preparad on the historical cost basis, except for certafn financial instruments which are measured at fafr values at the and
of each reporting period, as explained in accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fatr value of tha consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between markei participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique, In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or lizbility if market participants would take these characteristics Into account
when pricing the asset or lability at the measurement date.

in addition, for financial reporting purpeses, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are ohservable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are describad as foilows:

« Lavel 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;
+ Level 2 Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
s Lavel 3 Inputs are uncbservable inputs for the asset or liability.

3.3 Use of Estimates

The preparaticn «f the financial statements requires the Management to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities {including contingent Nakbilities) as of the date of the financial statements and the reparted income and expensas during the reporting pericd.
Examples of such estimates include provision for doubtful debtsfadvances, provision for employse benefits, useful lives of fixed assets, lease tarm, provisien far
cantingencies etc. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial staternents are prudent and reasonable. Future results may
vary from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized
prospectively in the year in which the estimate is revised and/or in future years, as applicable.

3.4 Cash and Cash Equivalents {for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement)

Cash comprises cash on hand, cheques and demand drafts on hand, balances with banks in current accounts f demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-
term halances [with an origina} maturity of three months or fess fram the date of acguisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to Insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank balances other than the balance included in cash and cash aquivalents
represents balance on account of margin money deposit with banks and balances in earmarked Escrow acrounts.

3.5 Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect methed, whereby profit / {loss) before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of trensactions of non-
<ash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated based on the available information.




DR. AGARWAL'S HEALTH CARE LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

Functional and Presantation Currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates {i.e. the “functional currency”). The financial statements are presented i Indian Rupees {Rs.), the national currency of India, which is the functicnal
currency of the Company. All the financial information have been presented in [ndian Rupees except for share data and as otherwise stated.

Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time betweean acquisition of assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents,
the Company has determined its opersting cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of 1ts assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

Business Comthinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in & business combination is measured at fair value,
which Is calculated as the sum of the acquisttion-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Company, [iabilities incurred by the Company to the former
owners of the acquiree and the eguity interesis issued by the Company in exchange of control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognized
in profit or loss as incurred,

At the acqguisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liakilities assumed are recognized at their fair values, except that:

(1) deferred tax assets oriiabilities, and assets or liakilities related to employee benefit arrangements are recognized and measured in accordance with ind AS 12
Income Taxes and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively; and

{it} assets {or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are measured in accordance with that Standard.

Property, Plant & Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss {if any). The cost of Property, Plant and
Equipment comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates and includes taxes, duties, freight, incidental expenses related to the acquisition
and installation of the assets concerned and is het Goods and Service Tax (GST), wherever the credit is avalled. Berrowing costs paid during the period of
construction in respect of berrowed funds pertaining to construction / acquisition of qualifying property, plant and equipment is adjusted to the carrying cost of
the underlying property, plant and equipment.

Any part or components of praperty, plant and equipment which are separately identifiable and expected to have a useful life which is different from that of the
main assets are capitalized separately, based on the tachnical assessment of the Management.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date are disclosed as “Capital Advances” under
Cthar Non Current Assets and cost of Proparty, Plant and Equipment not ready to use before such date are disclosed under “Capital Work- in- Progress”,

Bepreciation
Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an assst less its estimated residual value.

Depreciation on tangible property, plant and equipment has been provided on the written down value method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule i to
the Companies Act, 2013.

Category Useful life
Leasehold Improvements Over |ease term
Medical Equipments 13-15 years
Office Equipments 5 years
Wehicles 8-10 yeats
Corputers 3-6 years
Electrical Fittings 10 years
Furniture and Fixtures 8-10 years
Lab Equipments 10 years
Kitchen Equipments 8 years

Depreciation is accelerated on property, plant and equipment, based on their condition, usability ete., as per the technical estimates of the Management, where
necaessary.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of
the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Staterment of Profit and Loss.




DR, AGARWAL'S HEALTH CARE LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

3.10 Goodwill

Goodwili is measurad as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquire (if any) over the net of the acguisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acguired In a business combination is, from the acquisition date, zllocated to each of the Company’s cash-
generating units that are expectad to benefit from the combination, irrespactive of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to these units.
Cash generating unit te which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may
be impaired. if the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any geedwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the vnit. Any
impairment loss fer goodwill is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Lass, An impafrment loss recognized for goodwiil is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the dispesed
cperation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill dispesed in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

3.11 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accurnulated amortization and accumuleted Impairment losses (if
any). The intangible assets are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, commencing from the date of asset
available to Company for its use. The useful life considered for the intangible assets are as under:

Particulars Useful Lives
Software Five years
Trademarks Ten years
Customer Relationship Five years
Non-Compete Agreement Agreed term or Five years whichever is lower

The esttmated useful life and amaortization method are reviewed at the end of each reporting periad, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from use of disposal. Gains or losses arising from
deracognition of an intangible asset measured as the difference betwesn the net disposat proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset as recognized in profit
or loss when the asset is derecognized.

3.12 hand Devek t Expenditure

Expenditure on research activities are recognized as expense in the pericd in which it isincurred.

An Internally generated intangible asset arising from development {or from development phase of an Internal project) is recognized if, and only if, all the
following have been demonstrated:

2} the technical feasibility of completing the intangible assets so that it will be available for use or sale;

b) the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

¢} the ability to use or sell the intangible assst;

dj how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

e} the availability of adequate technical, financial and cther resources to complete the development and to use or sell the Intangibie asset; and

1) the zhility to refiably measure the expenditure attributable tc the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recegnized for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible asset first
meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no internatly-generated asset can be recognized, development expenditure is recoghized in the statement of
profit and loss in the period in which itis incurred.

Subseguent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets re reported at cost less accumulated amortization and accumutated impairment losses,
on the same basis as intangible assets that are acguired separately.




DR. AGARWAL'S HEALTH CARE LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

3.13 Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amaunts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in arder to
determine the extent of the impairment |oss {if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also alfocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating Units for which a
reascnable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and whenaver thers is an
indication that the asset may be impaired.

Aecoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to seil and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated futura cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that retlects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amcunt of an asset (or cash-generating unit} is estimated to ke less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset {or cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recaverable amount. An impafrment loss is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit aad Loss, unless the relevant
asset Is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss

been recognized for the asset (or cash generating unit} in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is racognized immediately in profit or loss.

The Company's palicy for impairment of Gaodwill is given in Note 3.10 above.
3.14 Equity Investrments in Subsidiaries and Assotiates
Investment in Subsidiaries and Associates are carried at cost in the Standalone Firancial Statements as permitted under ind AS 27,

3.15 Inventories

Inventory of Traded Goods comprising Opticals, Pharmaceutical Products, Contact Lenses and Accessories and Consumables are valued at lower of cost
ascertained using the First-in-First-out method and net realizable value. Cost Includes cost of gurchase, freight, taxes, duties and other charges incurred for
bringing the goods to the present location and condition and are net of G5T credit, wherever credit has been availed.

Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price for inventaries less all estimated casts of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Due allowance is estimated and made for unusable/ non-sateable/ expired items of inventory wherever necessary, based on the past experience of the
Lompany and such allowances are adjusted against the inventory carrying value.

3,16 Revenue Recognition

{i) Revenue from Operations

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration recelved or receivable. Revenue is recagnized upon transfer of control of promised products or
services to customers fn an amount that reflects the consideration we expect fo receive in exchange for those products or services. Sales and Service Income
exclude Goods and Service Tax (G5T) 2nd are net of trade / volume discounts, where applicable.

Sale of products comprising Sale of Optical Frames and Lens, Pharmaceutical Products, Contact Lens and related accessories and food iterns is recognised on
delivery of items to the customers and when cantrol on goods is passed on to the custorers.

Sale of services comprising Income from Consultation, Surgeries, Treatments and Investigations performed are recognised when performance ohligation is
satisfled at a point in time, on rendering the related services.

QOther Operating Income comprises medical support services provided by the Company and is recognised on rendering the related services.

{ii} Cther Income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow o the Company and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial
recognition. Dividend fncome is accounted for when right to receive it is established.

{iii} Crass Charges

The Company and Cr Agarwal's’ Health care Limited [DAHCL) its Helding company, incur expenses such as salaries, software development and depraciation on
common assets eic on behalf of the group company and share the common rescurces for the group functions. Such expenses, which are incurred for the group,
are identified, and cross-charged between the companies.




DR. AGARWAL'S HEALTH CARE LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial § ts for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

317

Foreign Currency Transactions

Initial Recognition:
On inltial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate betwesn the reporting
currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Subseguent Recognition:
As at the reporting date, non monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a fereign currency are reported using the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction.

Treatment of Exchange Differences:
All monetary assets and liabifities in foreign currency are restated at the end of accounting period at the closing exchange rate and exchange differences on

restatament of a!l menetary items are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Employee Benefits
Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits:

1) Defined Benefit Plans:

Employee defined benefit plans include gratuity,

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them ta the
contributions.

For defined benefit retiremant benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being
carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if
applicakie) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immeadiately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognized in other
comprehensive incame in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognized tn other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained
earnings and 1s not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognized in the Statement of profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest
is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

Defined benefit costs are categorized as follows:

- Service cost {including current service cost, past service cost, as well as galns and losses on curtailments and sett/ements);
- Net interest expense or income; and

- Remeasurement

The Cempany presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item 'Employee benefits expense’. Curtailment gains and
losses are accounted for as past service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Company's defined benefit plans. Any surplus
resufting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any ecanomic benafits available In the form of refunds from the plans or reductions tn future

coentributions to the plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognized at the earlier of when the entity can no longsr withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when the
entity recognizes any related restructuring costs.

The Company makes contribution to a scherme administered by the Insurer to discharge gratuity lizbilities to the employees.

Shart-term and other long-term employee benefits

A dlability Ts recognized for benefits accruing to employees In respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick eave in the period the related service is
rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be pald in exchange for that servics.

Liabilities recognized in respect of short term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the henefits expected to be paid in exchange for
the related service.

Liabllities recognized in respect of other long term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be
made by the Campany in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

ii} Defined Contribution Plans
Employee defined contribution plans include provident fund and Employee state insurance.
Pravident Fund and Employee State Insurance:

All employees of the Company receive benefits from Provident Fund and Ermployee’s State Insurance, which are defined contribution plans. Both, the employee
and the Company make monthly contributions to the plan, each equaling to a specified percentage of employee’s basic salary. The Company has no further
obligations under the plan beyond Its menthly contributions, The Company contributes to the Employee Provident Fund and Employee’s State Insurance
scheme maintained by the Central Government of India and the contribution thereof is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which the
services are rendered by the employzes.
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3.22

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs include interest, amortization of ancillary casts incurred and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent thay
are regarded as an adjustment te the interest cost. Costs in cohnection with the borrowing of funds to the extent not directly related to the acquisition of
qualifying assets are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the tenure of the loan. Borrowing costs, allocated to and utilized for quatifying assets,
pertalning to the pericd from commencerrent of activities relating to construction / development of the gqualifying asset upto the date of capitalization of such
asset are added to the cost of the assets. Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during extended
pericds when active development activity on the qualifying assets is interrupted.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings panding their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalization.

All sther berrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government Grants, Subsidies and Export Incentives

Governmant grants znd subsidies are recognized when there is reasonatle assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attached to them and
the grants / subsidies will be received. Government grants whose primary condition 1s that the Company should purchase, construct or otherwlise acquire capital
zssets are presented by deducting them from the carrying value of the assets. The grant is recognized as income over the life of a depreciable asset by way of a
reduced depreciation charge.

Export benefits, if any, are accounted for in the year of exports kased on eligibility snd when there is no uncertainty in receiving the seme.

Government grants in the nature of promoters' contribution like investment subsidy, where no repayment is ordinarily expected in respect thereof, are
accounted in Reserves and Surplus in Other Equity. Government grants in the form of nen-monetary assets, given at 2 concessional rate, are recorded on the
basis of their acguisition cost. In tase the non-monetary asset is given free of cost, the grant is recorded ata nominal value.

Other govarnment grants and subsidies are recognized as income over the periods necessary to match them with the costs for which they are intendad to
compensate, on a systematic basis.

$egment Reporting

Operating segments raflect the Company's management structure and the way the financlal information is regularly reviewed by the Company's Chief operating
decision maker {CODM). The CODM considers the business from both business and product perspective hased on the dominant source, nature of risks and
returns and the internal organization and management structure. The operating segments are the segments for which separate financial information is available
and for which operating profit / {loss} amounts are evaluated regularly by the executive Managament in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing
performance.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the Company. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segmeant
assets and segment liabifities have been identified to segments on the hasis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment.

inter-segrment revenue, where applicable, is accounted on the basis of transactions which are primarity determined based on market / fair value factors.

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Company as a whaole and are not allocable to segments on reasonable basis are included under
“unallecated revenue [ expenses / assets / liabilities”.

leases

The Company’s lease asset classes consists of leases for bulldings and medical equipments. The Company, at the inception of a contract, assesses whether the
contract is a lease or not lease. A centract Ts, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a time in exchange
fora consideration. This policy has been applied to contracts existing and entered into on or after 1 April 2019.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initiaily measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any
leasa incentives recelved.

The right-of-use 2sset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the end of the leasa term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid st the commencement date, discountad using the Company’s
incremental borrowing rate, It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in
the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it wil!
exercise a purchase, extenpsion or termination option. When the lease liability is remneasured in this way, 2 corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease iiabillties for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months er less and leases of
low-value assets. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense over the lease term.

Curing the year ended 31st March 2021, the company has availed COVID related rent concessions and the impact for the same has been adjusted in the carrying
amount of the Right-to-use asset to reflect lease modifications.
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3.24

3.25

3.26
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Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the pericd.

Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic £P$ and also
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Potential equity shares are deemed to be difutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease earnings per share from continuing operations.
Dilutlve potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. The dilutive potential equity shares are
adjusted for the proceeds recefvable had the shares heen actually issued at falr value (Le, average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential
equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for
share splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate.

Taxes on Income
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferrad tax.

Current tax expense for the year is ascertained on the basis of assessable profits computed in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid as current tax expense in accordance with the tax [aws, which gives future economic benefits in the form of adjustment to
future income tax liability, s tonsidered as tax credit and recognized as deferred tax asset when thers is reasonable certainty that the Company wili pay normal
income tax in the future years and future economic henefit associated with it will flow t¢ the Company. The carrying amount is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow ali or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and lizbilTties in the Financial Statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognized for all deductible temparary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available zgainst which thoss deductible
temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
{other than in a business combination) of assets and liahllities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the lishility is settled or the asset realized,
based on tax rates (and tax laws} that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting pericd.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the
end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A previsicn is recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events and it 15 probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the cbligation Tn respect of which a relizble estimate can be made. Provisions are determined based on the best estimate
required ta settle the obligation at the balance sheet date and measured using the prasent value of cash flows estimated to settle the present obligations {when
the affect of time value of money is material). These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent ITability 1s disclesed for

(i) Possikle obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or

(i) Present ohligations arising from past events where it Is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable
astimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made,

The Company dees not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the Financlal Statements. Contingent assets are only disclosed when it is
probakle that the econemic benefits will flow to the entity.

Insurance claims

fnsurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be admitted and to the extent that the amount recoverable can be measured
reliably and itis reascnahble to expect ultimate collection.

Financial Instruments

{nitial Recognition

Financlal assets and financial liabilittes are recognized when the Company becomes 2 party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assats and
lizkilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial labiiities
{other than financial assets and financiat liabilities at fair vaiua through profit or loss {(FYTPL)} are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial
recognition of financial asset or financial lizbility. The transaction costs directly attributable ta the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit and loss are immadiately recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
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3.27.1 Financial Assets

{a) Recognition and initial measurement

(i) The Company initially recognizes loans and advances, deposits and subordinated liabilities on the date on which they originate. All other financial instruments
(including regular way purchases and sales of financial assets) are recognized on the trade date, which is the date on which the Company becomes z party to the
contractua! provisions of the instrument. A financtal asset or liability is initiafiy measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributabla to its acquisition or issue.

(b} Classification of financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified to he measured at amortized cost, fair value through cther comprehensive income (FYTOC or FYTPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated at FVTPL:

= The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

= The contractuzl terms of the financiai asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal ameunt
outstanding.

For the impairment pelicy in financial assets measured at amortized cost, refer Note 3.27.1 [e]
A debtinstrument is cfassified as FVTOC! only if it meets both of the following conditions and s not recognized 2t FVTPL:

» The asset is held within a business model whaose obyjective is achieved by bath collecting cantractual cash flows and selling financiat assets; and
= The cantractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are sclely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financiai assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

(c] Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant pertod. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and peints paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or where approprizte, 2 shorter
period, to the gross carrying amount on initial recognition,

Income is recognized on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognized in
prefit ar loss and is included in the “Other Income” ling item.

{d} Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss [FVTPL)

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortized cost criteria or FVTOC criteria {see above) are measured at FYTPL. In addition, debt instrumeants that meet the
amortized cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FYTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortized cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FYTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition
if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities er
recognizing the gains and lesses on them on different bases. The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting perfod, with any gains or losses arlsing on remeasurement recognized in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financizl asset and 15 included in the *Other income'
line item. Dividend on ffnancial assets at FVTPL Is recognizad when the Company's right to receive the dividends is established, it Ts probable that the economic
benefits assoclated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the armnaunt of
dividend can be measured relizbly,
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(e} Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognizing impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortized cost, debt instruments at
FVTQC, trade receivakies and other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. Cradit loss is the difference
between slf contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive {i.e.
all cash shortfalls), discounted at the orlginal effective interest rate {or credit-adjusted effactive interest rate for purchased or originated creditimpaired
financial assets). The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financlal instrument {for example, prepayment, extension, call
and similar options) through the expected life of that financtal instrumant.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrumant at an amount egual to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit josses. 12-month expected credit
lesses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12 months after the
reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months.

for trade receivables, the Company always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit icsses. Further, for the purpose of
measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient as permitted under ind AS 109. This
expected credit loss allowance 1s computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-
lecking information.

{f) Derecognition of financlal assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flaws fram the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to ancther party. If the Company neither transfars nor retains substantially a/l the Isks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an associgted [iability for
amounts it may have to pay, if the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues
to recognize the finzncial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received,

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative galn or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in profit or lass if
such gain or |loss would have otherwise been recognized in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

On derecognition of 2 financial asset other than in its entirety (2.g. when the Company retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company
allocatas the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognize under continuing involvemmant, and the part it no longer
recognizes on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount ailocated to the part
that is no kenger recognized and the sum of the consideration received for the part noionger recognized and any cumulative gain or loss allocated tao it that had
been recognized in cther comprehensive income is recognized In profft or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognized in profit or loss on
disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in cther comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues
to be recognized and the part that is no longer recognized on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

{&] Foreign exchange gains and losses

The fair vaiue of financlal assets denominated in a foreign currency Is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each
reporting period.

« For foreign cutrency denominated financial assets measured at amortized cost and FYTPL, the exchange differences ara recognized in profit or loss.

* Changes in carrying ameunt of Investments in equity fnstrumments at FVTOCI relating to changes in foreign currency rates are recognized in other
corriprehensive income.

* For the purposes of recognizing foreign exchange gains or losses, FYTOC! debt instruments are treated as financial assets measured at amortized cost. Thus,
the exchange differences on the amortized cost are recogrized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and other changes in the fair valua of FYTOCQ) financial assets
are recognized in other comprehensive income.
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3.27.2 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY INSTRUMENTS
{a) Uassification as debt or equity:

Financial lizhilities and eguity instrumeants issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered inte and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

{b} Equity instruments:

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual Interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognized and deducted directly in eguity.
Ne gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s awn equity instruments.

(c] Financial Liabilities at FYTPL:
Financlal lfakilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either hetd for trading or it is designated as st FVTPL.

Afinancial liability is classified as held for trading if:

+ it has baen incurred principally for the purpese of repurchasing it in the near term; or

= on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-
term profit-taking;

A financial Hiablity other than a financial liakility held for trading may be designated as at F¥TPL upan initial recognition if:

+ such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

» the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financlal liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with the Company's documented fisk management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on
that basis;

{d] Financial lfabilities subsequently measured at amaortized cost;

Financial liabllities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortized cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortized cost are determined based on the effective interest method.
Interest expense that is not capitalized as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'finance costs' line item.

The effective interest method is 2 methed of calculating the amortized cost of a financial fability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective Interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cesh payments (including sll fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) &
shorter peried, to the net carrying amount on initial recegnition.

{e} Foreign exchange gains and losses:
Fer financial lizbilities that are deneminated in a foreign currency and measured at amortized cost at the end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange
gains and losses are determined based on amortized cost of the instruments and are recognized in the Stztement of Profit and Loss.

The falr value of the financal liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the
reparting period. For financial liabilities that are measured at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses recognized in
the Statement of profit and Loss.

{f} Derecognition of financial liabilities:

The Company derecognizes financial liakilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration patd and payable is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.28 Goods & Serfvce Tax Input Credit

Goods & Serivee Tax Input Credit is accounted for in the books during the period in which the underlying service received is accounted and whare there is no
uncertainty in availing/utilizing the same.

3.29 Exceptional Items

Exceptional items are items of inceme and expenses which are of such size, nature or incidence that their separate disclosure is relevant te explain the
perfarmance of the Company.
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4 Critical Accounting ludgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of Financial Statements In conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expanses and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about the
assumptions and estimates could resultin outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying value of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basls. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the pertod in which the estimates
are revisad and future periods are affected.

In particular, infarmation about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements area included in the following notes:

{i) Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment {Refer Note 3.9}

{if} Useful lives of intangible zssets {Refer Note 3.11)

{iil} Assets and obligations relating to employee benefits {Refer Note 3.18)

{iv] Valuztion and measurement of income taxes and deferred taxes {Refer Note 3.24)

{v) Provisions for disputed statutory and other matters [Refer Note 3.25}

{vi) valuation of Goodwill and intangible asstes on business combinations [Refer Note 2.25)
(vii) Impairment of Goodwill [Refer Note 3.10)

{vili) Allowance for expected credit losses (Refer Note 3.27.1{e})

{ix) Fair value of Financtal Assets and Liabilities {Refer Note 3.27.1 and 3.27.2)

Determinaticn of functicnal currency:
Currency of the primary sconomic envirenment in which the Company operates (“the functicnal currency”} is Indian Rupee (INR) in which the company
primarily generates and expends cash. Accordingly, the iManagement has assessed its functional currency to be Indian Rupee {iNR}.
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DR, AGARWAL'S HEALTH CARE LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022
6 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
{Amount in Rs. Lakhs]
As at
0 Asat
Particulars 31 March 2021
SUiMarch]z22 {#efer note 18.4)
Carrying amounts of:
Right-of-use assets 13,025.35 13,806.58
Total 13,025.35 18,806.58
6.1 Details of movement in the carrying amounts of right-of-use assats
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
Description of Assets Medical Equipments Buildings 1leasehold fand Total
| - Gross carrying value
As at 1 April 2020 392.25 13,546.61 - 13,538.86
Additions - 1,040.98 734276 8,750.74
Disposals / Adjustments during the year - (36.80) - {36.80)
As at 31 March 2021 39225 14,550.79 7,748 76 22,692.80
As at 1 April 2021 392235 14,550.79 7,49.76 22,692 80
Additions - 3,998.25 B 3,998.25
Disposals / Adjustments during the year - {189.14 {7.7458.76) {7,938.20}
As at 31 March 2022 392.23 18,359.90 E 18,752.15
3. Accumulated depreciation and impairment
As at 1 April 2020 144 83 1,759.99 - 1,904.82
Charge for the year 50.92 1,663.00 267.48 1,981.4¢0
Disposals / Adjustments during the year - - - -
As at 31 March 2021 195.75 3,422.99 267.48 3,8B86.22
As at 1 Aprd 2021 195,75 2,422,99 267.48 3,886.22
Charge for the year 4045 2,124.52 123.53 2,288.50
Disposals / Adjustments during the year - {56.91) (381.04) (447.92)
As at 31 March 2022 236.20 5,490.60 = 5,726.80
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2022 156.05 12,869.30 3 13,025.35
Net carryinig value as at 31 March 2021 196.50 11,127.80 7,482.28 18,806.58
{} Quring the year ended 31 March 2022, the notional interest on the leased asset located at Cathedral Road amounting to INR 229 Lakhs and depreciation an Right to
use asset gmounting to INR 123.53 lakhs has been accounted under CWIP
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DR, AGARWAL'S HEALTH CARE LIMITED

Motes to the Standalane Financial 1ts for the Year Ended 31 March 2027
& INVESTMENTS
[Amount in Rs. Lakhs]
Asat
Particulars Azt 31 March 2021

3liMarch2022 [Refar note 18.4}

Mon-current, at cost
(2} Investment in Eqoity [nstrements of Subsidiary - Quoted, at Cost
Or. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited [Refar Note {i] bekow)
As at 31 March 2022 - 3,372,408 Shares of Rs. 10 each fully pald 3,392.36 339236
As at 31 March 2021 - 3,372,408 Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid

b} Investment in Equity instruments of Subsidiary - Unquoted, at Cost
Orbit Healthcare Services (Mauritivs} imited {Rafer Note (i) below)
Asat 31 March 2022 - 617,894,737 Qrdinary Shares of MUR. 0.57 2ach fully paid 8,366.66 8,363.62
- - 64,426,001 Ordinary Shares of MUR. 1 each fully paid
As at 31 March 2021 - 617,894,737 Ordinary Shares of MUR. 0.57 aach fully paid
- -24,426,001 Ordinary Shares of MUR. 1 each fully paid

{c} fnvestment in Equity Instruments of Associate - Unguoted, at Cost
[deaRx Services Private Limited {Refer Note (i) below)

As at 31 March 2022 - 48,254 Equity Shares of Rs. 1 each fully paid 20100 201.00

As at 31 March 2021 - 49,254 Equity Shares of Rs. 1 each fully paid

(d}  investment in Equity Instruments of Sybsidiary - Unquoted, at Cosi
Elisar Life Sciences Private Limited { Refer Note (v} below}) 180.56 180156

As at 31 March 2022 - 18,05,618 Equity Shares of Rs, 10 gach fully paid

As at 31 Mareh 2021 - 18,05,618 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid

] Investment in Equity Instruments of Subsidiary - Unquoted, at Cost 2,600.08 -
Aditya lyot Eya Hospital Private Limited | Refer Note (vi] below)
As at 31 March 2022 - 173,410 Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid
As at 31 March 2021 - NIL

Total 14,740.66 12,137.54

Notes:

{i} The Company had entered into a Share Purchase Agreement dated 11 January 2012, with the promoters of Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited [DAEHL) to purchase
2,472,408 Equity Shares of DREHL, comgrising 54.9424% cf the total Equity Share Capital af DAEHL, for which the Company proposed to issue Equity Shares of Rs. 10
each of the Company as consideration in the ratio of 1 Share of the Company for every 3.12 Shares of DAEHL.

Pursuant to the same, during the year ended 31 March 2012, in accordance with Securities and Exchange Board of Indiz {Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 1997, the Company had acquired 500,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each {being 20% of the total share capital of DAEHL) at s price of Rs. 159 per
Equity Share through Open Offer to the shareholders of DAEHL for a total consideration of Rs. 1,431.00 |akhs.

During tive year ended 21 March 2013, post completion of the open offer, the Company had acquirad 2,472,408 shares from the promaters of DAEHL in the month of
April 2012 at the agreed price of Rs. 79.33 per Equity Shara for a total consideration of Rs. 1,561.356 lzkhs and as a result thereof, DAEHL became the subsidiary of the
Company with effect fram 2 April 2012. The Company discharged the consideration by way of allotting 792,089 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each {at a premium of Rs.
237.6188 per Equity Share] of the Campany to the pramoters of DAEHL at its Board Meeting held on 26 April 2012. Tha premium on these Equity Shares amounting to
Rs. 1,882.15 lakhs was credited to the securities premium accatrnt.

As at 31 March 2022, the Company is holding 71.75349%, of the total Eguity Share Capital of GAEHL.

{ii) Buring the year ended 31 March 2017, the Cempany has zcquired 1t ordinary shares of MUR 1 each, of Orbit Heaithcars Services {Mauritius) Limited, from
International Securities Limited on 10 January 2017 for a nil considetation, The Company also subscribed to additional 100,000 Ordinary Shares of MUR 1 each for Hs.
1.94 lakhs on 9 February 2017, The same has been approved in the Sharehoiders mesting hald on 2 January 2617,

During the pericd ended 31 March 2018, the Company has subscribed to 64,326,000 ordinary shares of MUR 1 each in vsrious tranches for Rs. 1,257,71 lakhs and the
same has been allotted.

Further, during the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company had subscribed to 617,894,737 ordinary shares of MUR 0.57 each for Rs. 7,074.19 lzakhs and the same
was allottad on 21 March 2018,

As at 31 March 2022, the Company is holding 100% cf the total equity share capital of Grbit Healthcare Services {Mauritius} Limited.

{iii} Pursuant to an invastment agreement dated 12 January 2017 entered inte by the Company with the promoters of Ideark Services Private Limited {"ldear<'} and
Idearx, the Company has purchased 49,254 shares of Rs. 1 each (at 2 gremium of Rs. 407.03 each) for Rs. 201 lakhs appreved in its general meeting held on 2 January
2017.

As at 31 March 2022, the Company is holding 14.71% of the total eguity share capital of |dearx Services Private Limited.

{iv} Pursuant to the baard Resolution dated 28th lanuary 2021 the Board of Directors of the Company have approved the scheme of Amalgamation of "Advanced Eye
Institute Pyt Ltd {AEIPL)" Transferror Company {which was a wholly owned subsidary) and "Dr. Agarwals Health Care Ltd. {AHCL]" (the halding company). The Compaty
has recieved the sald approval for the scheme of Amalgamantion vide order no CP No.10/5.233/2021 issued by Regional Director (RD) dated 15th September 2021, the
Financial Statments are prepared given offect to the scheme of I; w.e.f the isition date {| ber 2019),, in line with Ind AS 103 - on Business
combination. Refer note 18.4 for further details.

{u) Pursuant to the Board Resclution dated 03 Septembier 2018, the Board has approved the transfer of Elisar Research and Development undertaking of the Company
to Efisar Lifesciences Private Limited, for a constderation of 18,05,618 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each and Face valus of Rs,10 2ach amouting to Rs. 180,56 jakhs_

As at 31 March 2022, the Company is holding 763 of the tolal aguity share capital of £lisar Lifesciences Private Limited
fvi) Pursuant to the Share purchase agreement dated 3th Octoher 2021 antered inta by the Company with the promoters of Aditya Jyot Eye Hospital Private Limited
["AJEHPL') and AJEHPL, the Company has purchased 1,73,410 shares of Rs. 100 each {at a premium of Rs.1400 each) for a total consideration of Rs. 2600 lakhs.

As at 31 March 2022, the Company is holding 51% of the total equity share capital of Aditya Jyat Eye Haspital Private Limited.

[Amaunt in Rs. Lakhs)

o Asat
Particulars . 21 March 2021

nMarchi022 {Refer note 18.4)

{a) Aggregate book value of quoted [nvestments 338238 3,392:36
Aggregate market vakie of quated investments 24,850.62 10,599.01

{b) Aggregate boak value of unguoted investments 11,348.30 8,745.12
(e} Aggrepata amount of impairment in the value of investments E S




TR, AGARWAL'S HEALTH CARE LIMITED
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Financizl Stakements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

loans

Particulars

Asgat
31 March 2022

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021
{Refer note 18.4)

Men-current, at amortized cost
{a} Loans ko related parties

- Consldered good and recivarable {Refer Note 38 and notes below) 2,107.67 1,650.00
- Considered doubtful (Refer Note 38 and nates below] 309.00 E:
Less ; Provision for doubtful loans and advances {209.00)
Total 2,107.67 1,650.00
Netes:

[i) Pursuant ta the Board resolution dated 31 May 2021, the Company has converted its outstanding short term loans inte long term |oans granted to Elisar Life
Sclences Private Uimited {Elisar]. The management carried out an impairment analysls of carrying value of investments of INR 180.56 lakhs as well as loan of INR
2416.57 lakhs given te Elisar using the discounted cash flow method. Based an impairment assessment, management has recognised a provision of INR 309 lakhs

against the outstanding lean kalance as ar March 31, 2022,
lii)

[Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars

Asat
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021
[Refer note 18.4)

don - current
Due from private company in which director of the Company is a director in the private company
Current

Bue fram private company in which director of the Company is a director in the private company

2,107.67

1,650.00

557.10

Other financial assets

{Arpount in Rs. Lakhs)

Asat Asat
Particulars o 31 March 2021
21 M i}
Miarch202 {Refer note 18.4)
MNon-currant, at amertized cost
{a} Rental Deposits
- Ralated Parties [Refer note 38} - 20.34
- Others 1,157.17 851.58
{b] Secucity dapaosits 78.8% 56.68
Total 1,235.98 928.60
OTHER ASSETS (Unsecured, Considered good)
{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
Asat Asat
Particalars . : : 02z 31 March 2021
- Refer note 18.4)
Other non-current assets
£ Capital Advances 220.36 10.22
Total 220.86 10.22
Other current assets
{2}  Prepaid Expenses 139.62 12318
(o)  Advancesto Suppliers 172.28 44.88
{r}  tmployee Advances 214 108
{d) Balances with Governmant Authorities
- Input Credit Receivahles 359.86 131.72
{e) Prepaid share issue expenses {refer note balow} 116.41 -
Total F90.31 360.56
Note:

During the year, the company incurred an amount of Rs. 116.41 |akhs towards fund raise which got concluded in FY2022-23. This amount is shawn as prepaid share

issua expenses which will be adjusted against sacurity premium in the FY 2022-23,

INVENTORIES {at lower of cost and net realizable value)

[Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

asat Asat
Particulars. ST 31 March 2023
larc}
Refer note 18.4}

{a) Traded Goods

- Qpticals 454.67 298.58
- Pharmacesutical Products 281.00 227.04
- Contact Lens and Accessories 62.96 23.87
{b)  Cosnsumables [goods held for use in rendering services) 806.61 585,90
ic} Clinical items and Equipments held for trading 139.18 101,93
Total 1,751.42 1,237.32
Notes;
[Amounit in Rs. Lakhs)
As at LEEL
Sl Mo Particulars 31 March 2021
31 March 2022
(Refer note 18.4)

The cost of inventorfes recognized as an expense during the year 9,139.30 6,213.54
2 | The cost of inventories recognized as an expense, includes write downs of inventory to net 36.54 151.08

rezlizable value

3 | The mode of valuation of inventories has been stated in Note 3.15
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12 INCOME TAX

12.1 Man-current Income tax assets

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs}

As at Asat
Particulars LN 31 March 2021
are {Refer note 1.4}
Income tax payments made against returns filed /demands received (including taxes deducted at sotirce} 1,749.26 1,375.20
Tax Refund receivable {net) 1,749.26 1,379.20
12.2 incowne tax expense
{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
For the Year Ended
Particalars For the Year Ended
31 March 2022 a2 L.
{A.1} Incame Tax recognized in statement of profit and loss

{iy Current Tax:

- in respect of current year 56.40
- i respect of prior years 125.37
Total {A) - 181.77
{ii) Defarred Tax:
- In respect of current year (refer note below] 52.22 7.78
Total (8] 52.22 7.78
Total income tax expense re in peofit and loss account [A+B) 52.22 189.55
{A.2} Income tax recognized in other Comprebensive income
Deferred tax related to items recognized in other comprehensive income during the year:

- Remeasurement of defined benefit obiigations E 3
Total - -
Classification of income tax recognized in vther comprehensive income

- Income taxes related to itemns that will be reclassifted to profit or loss E =

- Income taxes refated to ftems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Total o =
{A.3) Reconciliation of inceme tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company's domestic tax rate:

Loss befare tax [(95.19) {5,218.34)
Income Tax using the Company's domestic Tax rate (23.96) {1,313.46)
Tax Effect of :

- adjustment on account of brought forward business lasses and depreciation {541_16) (353.97)
- Reversal of deferred tax including MAT credit relating to AEIPL, merged entity 52.22 -

- Adjustments recagnized in current year in relation to current tax of prior years 689.15

- Change in Tax Rate =

- Deferred Tax Credit not recognized {Refer Mote 13.2) 565.12 1,167.85

Tax nse recognizad in of profit or loss from continuing operations 52.22 189.57

taxable profits under Indian Income Tax Laws.

The tax rate used for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 reconciliations above are the corporate tax rate of 25.17% payable by corporate entities in India on
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13 ODEFERRED TAXES

13.1 Deferred Tax Balances

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Pasticulars

As at
31 March 2022

Asat
31 March 2021
{Refer note 13.4)

The following is the analysis of the net deferred tax asset/ ({/iability) position as presented in the financial statements

Deferred tax assets - 52.22
Deferred tax liabilities - -
Net Deferred tax Liabilities - 52.22

13.Z Movementin Deferred Tax Balances

A.For the Year Ended 31 March 2022

[Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Charge/[Credit] recognizad in
= Asat Other As at
Farticulars i i
1 April2021 Statement of Profit Camprehensive Directly 'f‘ Gther 31 March 2022
and Loss Equity
Incon:e
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets / {deferred tax liabilitles)
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 373.20 (273.26) - - 8294
Employee Benefits 55.73 21.22 - - 76.95
Provision fer Cantingency 1.93 0.00 - - 193
Provision for Expected Credit Loss 211.05 133.45 - = 344.50
Brought Forward Loss and Unabsorbed Depreciation 4,003.62 595.569 - - 4,599.31
Valuation of Investments - - - - -
Other jtems 361.10 82.02 = = 449.312
Lease assats net of lzase liabilities 168.00 - B 168.00
Less: Valuation Allowance (5,174.63} {565.12) - - (5,739.75)
Qther items 26.80 (52.22) (25.42)
MAT Credit 26.42 o 25.42
Net Tax Asset /[Liabilities) 52.22 (52.22) - - -
B. For the Year Ended 31 March 2021
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
- Chargel(tret:::lrecognlzed in e
Particulars 1 April 2020 Statement of Profit c hErn . Diractly in Other 31 March 2021
and 1oss il Equity (Refer note 18.4)
Income
Tax effect of iterms constituting deferred tax assets / [deferred tax liabilities)
Praperiy, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 834.72 (461.51) - - 373.20
Employee Benefits 45.74 49.99 - - 55.73
Provision for Contingency 183 = = = 1.93
Pravision for Expected Credit Loss 22826 (17.21} - - 211.05
Brought Forward Loss and Unabsorbed Depreciztion 243038 1,573.24 - - 4,003.62
Valuation of Investments = = - - -
Qther ltems 297,76 63.34 = = 361.1C
Lease assets net of lease liabilities 168.00 0.00 - - 168.00
Less: Valuation Allowance (4,006.79) {1,167.85) - - {5,i74.63)
Other items 34.58 [7.78) 26.80
MAT Credit 49,50 {24,08) 25.42
Nel Tax Asset /{Liabilities) 84.08 (31.86) = . 52.22

Note: The Company has deferred tax asset primarily on account of unabsorbed business loss, unabserbed tax deprecfation and other items againsi which a valuation allowance
of INR 5,738.75 lakhs and INR 5,174.63 lakis has been considered in the absence of future taxable profits based en the anpual analysis of future projections of taxable income of
the Company as 2t 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, respectively. As a result thereof, there is no deferred tax asset / liability recarded in the financial statements on a net

basis.

On account of scheme of amalgamation, the deferred tax asset in the beaks of Advance Eye Instituite Private Limited amounting to INR 52.22 lakhs was recognised during the
previous year. During the current year, valuation allewance of INR 52.22 lakhs has been created against this deferred tax asset to be consistent with the Company’s policy as

referred above.
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14 TRADE RECEIVABLES

[Amoutit In Rs. Lakhs)

Asat As at
Particulars — ° : - 31 iMarch 2021
arc [Refer note 13.4)
Current
Unserured, considered good {includes related part receivables refer note 38§ 4,42032 3,295.34
Allowanee for expected credit loss [1,368.68, [838.47,
Total 3,051.64 2,456.47

Nate: The Company has certain export receivables, which are overdue for more than @ manths, and accordingly the Company has filed the necessary applications with its Authorised Dealer, as required
under the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 for extension of time. The management is confident on the recovery of such dues and hence no additianal previsions other than those recorded

thraugh the expacted credit loss model have been considered

As at 31 March 2022

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs}

Particulars =
Less than & months 5 r:::;:“ 3- 2years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
{a) Undisputed Trade Receivables -Considered goad 2,648.11 600.45 552.17 476.60 142.99 442032
Allowance for expected credit loss {392.62) {170.79) (288.21) {384.05) (131.41) {1.368.68)
[b} Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - -
{c} Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - = = = = E
[d} Disputed Trade Receivables -Considerad gaod = 5 ] b
{e) Dispited Trade Receivatles -which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - -
{f} Disputed Trade Receivables credit impaired - - - - E C
Total 2,254.49 A29.66 263.26 92.55 11.58 3,051.64
As at 31 March 2021 {Amount in Rs, Lakhs}
Particulars .
Less than 6 menths s ";::::s 1- 2years 2-3years More than 3 years Total
{a) Undisputed Trade Receivables -Considered good 1,593.00 307.51 701.41 200,95 92.47 3,295.34
Allowance far expected credit loss {278.97) (F6.41) {367.97) (125.12} - {833.87)
{b} Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in credit nisk - - - - - -
(¢} Undisputed Trade Receivatrles - credit impaired - - - - - -
(d] Disputed Trade Receivables -Considerad good - - = . 5
(e} Disputed Trade Receivables -which have si incresse in credit risk - - - - - -
f} Disputed Trade Receivables -credit impaired = N 4 3 p »
Total 1,734.03 240.70 333.449 7583 92.47 2,456.47
14.1 Credit period and #1sk
Significant portian of the Company's business is against receipt of advance. Credit is provided mainly to Insurance Companias, Corparate ¢ and Undartakings. The Insurance

Companies are reguired to maintain minimum reserva levels and pre-approve the insurance claim, Government undertzkings and the Corporate Customers are enterprises with high credit ratings.
Accordingly, the Company's exposure to credit risk in relation to trade receivables is low.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generafly on terms of upto 30 days. Of the Trade Receivable as at 31 March 2027 and 31 March 2021, following is the details of custemers having more

than 5% of the total balance of trade receivables:

Nuraber of
customers having N
Particulars more than 5% of Balance (?utslandlng
[Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
the total balance
of trade
As at 31 March 2022 4 1,861.50
As a1 31 March 2021 5 1,681.88

14.2

Particulars Expacted Credit
loss (%}
Within the credit perind T%hto2i%
1-90 days past due 7% to 21%
91-180 days past dua 23% te 52%
151-270 days past due 24% 16 58%
271-360 days past due 30% to 55%
351-450 days past due 32% to 100%
451-540 days pastdus 35% to 10034
541-630days past due 42% to 100%
630-720 days past due 58% ta 100%
720-310 days pastdue 64% to 100%
More than 810 days past due 100%
143 M in the for doubtful {includi d cradit [oss all )
2021-2022 2020-2021
Particulars
Balance at beginning of the year 838.87 905.86
{Add} Provision Created during the year 529.57 B03.62
{Less] Provision Utilised during the year - (671.61)
Maovement In expected <redit loss allowance on trade receivables calculated at lifetime expected credit losses 529.57 {67.93)
Balance at end of the year 1,368.44 838.87

There are no other rustomers who represent more than 5% of the total balance of trade receivables.
Mo trade receivable are due from directors ar ather officers of the Campany either severally or jointly with eny other person. Mor any trade receivakle are due from firms or private campanies respectively
in which any director Is a partner, a director or 2 member,

Expected credit loss allowance

The Company has used a practical d loss all for trade ivabl

by the based on p matrix. The prevision matrix takes into account the historical credit loss
experience and sdjustments far forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the days the receivables are due and the rates as given in the provision matrix,
considering the amovlnts due from the government underiakings and the other undertakings.

During the year ended 31 march 2021, the Company had written-offs trade receivables balances amounting to Rs. 662.52 lakhs which were outstanding for more than 3 years and cther receivables
amounting to INR 5.0% lakhs as at 31 March 2021 and had utilised the existing allowances towards expectad credit loss. The company does not expect to recaive fuiure cash flows/recoveries from trade
receivables previously written off.
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CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash and cash eguivalents

[Amount in Rs. Lakhs}

Asat Asat
Particulars el ° : e 31 March 2621
= {Refer note 18.4)
{a}  Cashon Hand 59.76 50.43
{b) Balancas with Banks
- In Current Accounts 1,515.10 920.28
- In Fixed deposits with maturity less than 3 months 2,800.00 1,400.00
Total 4,373.86 2,370.77
QOther Bank Balances {Amount In Rs. Lakhs)
Asat Asat
Particufars o 31 March 2022
31 March 2022
E (Refar note 18.4}
fa)  InFixed Depaosits - under Lien 1,576.38 B56.40
b} InEarmarked Escrow Accounts 50.00 50.00
Tatal 1,625.38 906.40
Notes:
{i} Of the above, the bafances that meet the definition of Cash and Cash
Equivalents as per AS 3 Cash Flow Statements.
{i} Deposit under Lien represents deposits placed for Bank Grraranteas obtained by the Company
- Central Government Health Scheme (CGHS) 46.00 44.00
- Ex-Servicemen Contributory Health Scheme {ECHS) 36.62 2800
- 5.V.P. Nationa! Police Academy 2.00 2.00
- The Comimercial Tax Officer, First Circle, Trivandrum 0.50 .50
- Rail Wheel factory ampanelment {RWF) 0.50 2.50
-EPFQ Q.50 Q.50
- Outstanding Interest Payable to Debenture Holder [CDC Group PLC) 389.26 350.00
- Sauth Western Railway (SWR) 0.50 2.50
- 8ank Guarantee placed against the Insolvancy Resclulian Procass 250,00 250.00
- #0 marked under Lien - towards acquisition R50.00 F
- KASBA Metro 0.50 E
Total 1,576.33 856.40

(i} Balance in Escrow accounts represents smount deposited in the account spaciically earmarked for payment of interest on debentures to the debenturs hol

ders |Refer Note 19.

Loans
{Amaount in Rs. Lakhs)
Asat i
Particulars 31 March 2021
SiMerchi2022 (Refer note 18.4}
Current
Loans to related parties {Refer Note 38 & 9{il) E 557,10
Total E 557.10
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
{Armount in Rs. Lakhs}
Asat
q Asat
Particulars 31 March 2021
0.
SLMurchi 2022 (Refer note 18.4)
Curreant
ia) Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits
- Banks 17.14 16.64
- Related parties (Refar Note 38) 411.00 190.69
b}  Others
- Receivahle from Others 271 254
fc) Rental Deposits
- Qthers 264,33 308,51
Total €95.23 519.38
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173

17.2

17.3

17.5

17.6

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
A As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Particulars = -
Number of shares Rs. in Lakhs Number of shares Rs. in Lakhs
Authorisad Shara capital :
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 70,00,000 700.00 70,00,000 700.00
10% Curmulative Redeemable Non-Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each 1,00,00,000 1,000.00 1,00,00,000 1,000.00
0.001% Fully and Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Participative Preference Shares of 71,00,000 7,100.00 71,00,000 7,100.00
Rs. 100 each
8,800.00 8,800.00
[ssuzd and subscribed capital comprises:
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 68,59,969 E86.00 68,595,969 6856.00
Total 68,59,96% 686.00 68,59,362 686.00
Reconcliliation of the Number of $hares and Amount Outstanding at the Beginning and at the End of the Reperting Period:
Partiulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Number of shares Rs. in Lakhs Nurnber of shares Rs. in Lakhs
Equity Shares
Sharas outstanding as at the beginning of the year 58,59,969 686.00 68,59,969 €86.00
Add: Fresh issue of shares/Ad justment during the year - - -
Add: Canversion during the year = i = =
Shares outstanding as at the end of the year 68,59,969 £86.00 68,59,969 £86.00

Terms [ rights attached ta Equity Shares :

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10. Each holder is entitled to one vote per equity share. Dividends are paid in Indlan Rupees. Dividend proposed by
the Board of Directors, if any, Is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting except in case of interim dividend. Repayment of capital will be in accordance with
the ferms of the Articles of Association and in progortion to the number of equity shares held.

Deetails of shares held by each shareholder holding mere than 5% shares

Class of Shares

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

% holding of equity

% holding of equity

Number of Shares hetd Number of Shares held
shares shares

Equity shares

{2} Or. Amar Agarwal 4,23,350 6.17%) 423350 6.17%
(b) Dr. Athiya Aparwal 5,23,586 7.63% 5,23,586 7.63%
{c) Dr. Adil Agarwal 511,285 7.46%| 5,11,985 7463
{d) Dr. Ancsh Agarwal 5,24,263 7.64% 5,24,263 7.64%
(e} Or. Ashvin Agarwal 509,514 7.43% 5,09,514 T A3%)
{f) Value Growth Investment Holdings Pte. Limited 21,74,285 31.70% 21,74,28% 31.70%)
(g} Dr. Anosh Agarwal on behalf of Dr Aganwval's Eye institute 3,66,339 5.34% 3,656,339 5.34%]
{h} M/s Claymore Investments {Mauritius} Pe. Ltd. 16,14,815 23.54% 16,14,815 23.54%)
TOTAL 66,48,137 96.91% 66,48,137 96.91%

Share holding by promoters
The details of shares held by pramaters as at 31 March 2022 are as foliows:

Class of Shares

As at 31 March 2022

Number of Shares held

% holding of equity

shares

Equity shares

(a} Dr. Amar Agarwal 4,23,350 6.17%;
(b} Dr. Athiya Agarwal 523,586 7.63%
(c) Dr. Adil Agarwai 511,985 74655
{d} Dr. Anosh Agarwal 8,90,602 12.98%
(e} Dr. Ashvin Agarwal 509,514 7.43%]
(f} Dr_ Ashar Agarwal 16,435 0.24%
{g) Dr Agarwals Eve Institute Private Limited 1,44,744 2.11%
{h) Farah Agarwai 20,500 0.30%]
()} Urmila Agarwal 20,500 0.30%]
Total 30,61,216 44.62%|

Subsequent events (Refer note 19)

Pursuant to the hoard meeting dated 26 April 2022 , the Company has allotted 53,024 equity share to the helders of 1,24,301 Compulserily Canvertible Prefernce shares holders and 71,394
equity shares to holders of 1,67,366 shares to ail of its Cormpulsorily Convertible Debentures holders,
Pursuant to the board meeting dated 05 May 2022, the company has allotted on a preferentlal and private placement basfs, 5,96,420 fully paid equity shares of Rs. 10 each to Arvon
Investments Pte Limited, and 3,45,286 fully paid equity shares of fis. 20 each to Hyperion Investments Pte Limited .
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12 QOTHER EQUITY

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs}

o Asat
Particetars Note il 31 March 2021
312022 [Refer note 18.4}
Securities premium reserve 18.1 42,722.83 42,722.83
Retained earnings 18,2 {23,520.85) {23,293.95}
Capital redempticn resenve 18.3 360 3.60
Total 19,205.48 19,432.44
18.1 Securities premium
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
Asat As at
Particulars = 31 March 2021
31 March 2022
{Refar note 18.4)
Opening Balance 42,722.83 4272283
Less: Application of securities premium for issue of eguity shares - -
Less: Transaction cost arising on equity issue - -
Closing Balance 42,722.83 42,722 B3
Amounts received on issue of shares in excess of the parvalue has bean classified as securities premium.
18.2 Retained earnings
{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
Asat
Asat
Particulars 31 March 2021
31 March 2022
[Refer note 18.4]
Cpening Balance (23,2939} {17,951.41j
Adjustments
Profit attributable to owners of the Campany {147.41) (540791}
Add/(Less): Other Comprehensive Income for the year {79.55) {32.45)
Adjustments pursuant to merger [Refer Note 18.4} - 97.78
Closing Balance {23,520.95) {23,293.99)
Notes
in accordance with Notification G.5.R 404{t}, dated 6 Aprll 2016, remeasurement of defined benefit plans is recognized as a part of retained earnings.
18.3 Capital redemption reserve {Amaunt in Rs. Lakhs}
Asat
. Asat
Particulars 31 March 2021
31 March 2022
{Refer note 18.4)
Opening Balance 3.60 3.60
Adjustmants during the vear -
Closing balance 3.60 3.60

18.4 5cheme of merger - AEIPL

Advanced Eye Institute Private Limited ("ALIPL’} was in the business of eve care hospital. Pursuant to the Share Purchase agreement dated 8 Decemnber
2019, the Company acquired busingss of AEIPL through acquisition of it's entire share capital for a tots| purchzse consideration of INR 2500 Lakhs which
was discharged in the form of cash. During the year, AFIPL is amalgamated with the Company with an appointed date of April 1, 2021 under a Scheme of
Amalgamation approved by the registrar of companies vide order dated September 15, 2021 {being the date of filing of the Order with Registrar of
Companies) and effective date April 01, 2021.

In accordance with paragraph 9 [ii} of Appendix C of ind AS 103, “the financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods should
be restated as if the business combinatien had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the financial statements, frrespective of the actual
date of the combination. Accordingly, the comparative financial information for the year ended March 31, 2021 has been restated to include the
account balances of AEIPL ,as referred in the table below, with effect from April 1, 2020 {bsing the beginning of the comparative period in the financial
statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022). Hence, figures for the current year ended March 31, 2022 is not comparable with figures for the
previous year ended March 31, 2021.

Further, as per the requirements under the Scheme of Amalgamation, the Company has accounted for the amalgamation as per the principles lafd down
by Appendix C of Ind AS 103, ie. business combination of entities under common control read with the clarification issued by Ind AS Transition
Facilftation Group’ {“ITFG") issued by Institute of Chartered Accauntants of India {CAI'Y. Consequently, the Company has recognized the assets and
liabilities of AEIPL at their carrying values appearing in consolidated financial statements of the Company [mmediately before the amalgamation. Such
carrying values of assets and liabilities were based on the purchase price allocation undertaken by the Company for the assets and liabilities as on the
date of acquisition of AEIPL by the Company, adjusted for all mevements up to 1 April 2020,

Retained earnings of AEIPL for the period from 8 December 2019 to 31 March 2020 amounting to INR 97.78 lakhs has been considered 23 “Adjustments
pursuant te merger” in the Statement of Changes In Equity for the year ended 31 March 2021.

This amalgamation results in increased operational efficiencies, bring sconomies of scale and results in synergetic integration of business carried aut by
campany and AEIPL. Tahle below : Figures for the year endad 31 March 2021 of the Compahy has been restated to include the impact of above
transactions

relating to AFIPL sfter eliminating transactions between the Company and AEIPL.

The position of assets and Fabilities as at March 31, 2021 Is as follows:;
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{Amount Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Asat 31 March
2021
{2} Non-current assets
{a} Property, plant and equipment 194.77
{b] Right-cf-use assets 83.58
{c} Capital work-in-progress 20.24
{d}) Goodwill 2217.11
{e} Cther intangible assets 5.03
{f) Financis| assets
{1} Other Financial assets 33.00
{i) Non-current incame tax assets {net) 43.63
{i} Deferred tax assets (Net) 52.22
Total Non - current Asselts 2,649.74
{2) Current assets
{2) Inventaries 58.89
{b) Financial assets
{i) Trade receivables 39.21
{1} Cash and cash equivalents 101.65
{iii} Other bank balances 180.90
{iv} Other Financlal Asset 2.36
{c) Other current assets 10.22
Total current assets 39273
{1) Equity
{a] Capkal redemption reserve 3.60
{a) Retained earnings 57.78
Tatal Equity 101,38
Liabilities
{2) Non-current liabilities
[2) Financial Liabilities
(i} Lease Liabilities 3213
Total Non - Current Liabilities 3213
{3) Current liahilities
(a) Financial Liahilities
{7} Trade payables iDL.67
{ii} Other financial liabilities 12.94
{iii) Lease lizhilities 10046
[{b} Other current liabilities 14.98
f¢} Current Tax Liabilities (Net} 47.82
Tatal Current Liabilitias 277.87
Total Liabilities 310.00
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19 NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particuiars

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021
(Refer note 18.4)

(a}

Borrowlngs measured at amortized cost;

Secured Borrowings

{il 2,150 Senior Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures of Face Value Rs. 10,00,000 each {Paid Up value - 14,345.01 15,783.94
Rs. 10,090,000 each){"2,15¢ Senlor Redeemable, Nen-Canvertible Debentures of Face Value Rs. 10,00,000
each (Paid Up value - Rs. 10,00,000 eachj )
{Refer Note {18.1{2)} below]
{il  Term Loans / Others {Refer Note (19.2) below)
- From Banks 4,976.86 -
{ii}  Vehicl loans 843 21.89
{iv]  0.001% Fully 2nd Compuisarfly Convertible Debentures of Face Value of Rs. 1200 each {Refer note {18.3} 2,008.39 -
below}
{v}  0.001% Fully 2nd Compuisorily Convertible Mon- Cumulative Participative Preference Shares of Rs. 100 1475.79 ]
each (Refer note (15.3) helow)
Total 22,814.48 15,805.53
19.1 Details of Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures
{a) 2,150 Senior Redeemable Non Convertible Debetures of Face Vaue Rs.10,00,000 each
During the vear ended 31 March 2022, the company had a total drawdown of IMR 16,000 Lakhs.
The details of tenor, interest rate, repayment terms of the same are given below:
No. of instalments Asat As at
S.No. Original Tenor (in Months) Interest Rate ol ding asat | Repay it Terms 31 March 2022 31 March 2022
31 March 2022 {Refer note 18.4}
96 Mol 9
1 el il 6 Refer Nate {i} 15,785.01 15,783.94
Refer Note 1} Refer Note (i)
Sub-Total 15,785.01 35,783.94
Notes:

0]
(i
tiif)

{iv}

)

The first installment of principal is payable on expiry of 36 months from the date of first drawdown i.e. 11 December 2019,
As per the tarms of Debeniure Trust Deed, the coupon rate shall be charged at the rate of 10%, Coupon interest payments are to he made on a monthly basis.

The details of Security provided are as follows:
-first-ranking security over the fixed assets of the Campany
-first-ranking security over the debt service reserve account

-first-ranking pledge over the shares of the Company cwned by Dr. Amar Agarwal, Dr. Athiya Agarwal, Dr. Adil Agarwal, Dr. Anosh Agarwazl, Dr Ashvin Agarwal, Dr
Ashar Agarwal, Ms. Farah Agarwal, Ms. Urmila Agarwal, Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute Private Limited and Dr. Aganwal’s Eye Instiiute
-first-ranking pledge over the shares in Orbit Healthcare Services [Mauritius) Limited ("Orbit") cwned by the Company.

-non-disposal undertaking and negative pledge in respect of the shares: {a} in Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited owned by the Company; and {b} in all Orbit

subsidiaries awned directly or indirectly by Orbit (as applicable}; and

-persenal guarantee of Dr. Amar Agarwal, Dr. Athiya Agarwal, Dr. Adll Agarwal, Dr. Anosh Agarwal, Dr Ashvin Agarwal and Dr Ashar Agarwal, members of the

Prometer Group and corporate guarantee from Orbit.

Balance in Escrow accounts represents amount deposited in the account specifically earmarked for payment of interest on debentures to the debenture hclders

{Refer Note 15(8).

Pursuant to the board meeting dated 26 April 2022 , the Company has allotted 53,024 equity share to the holders of 1,24,301 Compulsorily Convertible Prefernce
shares halders and 71,394 equity shares to holders of 1,67,366 shares to all of jis Compulsorily Convertible Debentures helders.
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19.2 Details of Term Loan fram Banks / Others - Secured
The Cempany has availed Term Loan from Banks as at 21 ivtarch 2022, The details of tenor, interest rate, repayment terms of the same are given below:
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

No. of Instalments ER Asat
S5.No. Qriginal Tenor {in Months) Interest Rate cutstanding as at | Repayment Terms 21 March 2022 31 March 2621
31 March 2022 [Refer note 18.4)
I - Term Loan frem HOFC Bank {Refer Note (i) below)
1] 67 [ 6.50% [ 67 | ReferNate() | 5467 90] .
] | [ | 5467.90] -

II - Vehicle toans from HOFC Bank [Refer Note {i} below)

Principal Manthiy,

2 24 8.75% 19 25.86 34.24
|nterast Monthly
Sub-Total 25.86 34.24
Yotal of borrowings from Banks 5,493.76 34,24
Less ; Current Maturities of long-term borrowings (Refer Note 23.1) {508.47} {12.35})
Long-term Borrowings fram Banks 4,985,239 21.39
Notes:

(i) The loans zre secured by hypothecation of respective Vehicles financed by the Bank.
(i} The details of security provided against the Equipment loans are as follows:
- Exclusive charge on the Medical Equipments financed out of the term loan provided.
- Extenslon of Equitable mortgage an a property owned by Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute vafued at Rs. 5,181 lakhs,
- Personal Guarantees of Dr. Amar Agarwal, Dr. Athiya Agarwal, Dr. Adil Agarwal, Dr. Anosh Aganwai, Dr. Ashar Agarwal and Dr. Ashvin Agarwsal, being the promoter and
relatives of the promater.
- Comfort Letter from Dr. Agarwal's Eve Hospital Limited, the subsidiary of the Company,
(i} The details of security provided against the Equipment loans are as follows:
- Exchisive charge on Medical Equipments.
- First and exclusive charge on the entire current assets of the company including all present and future receivables, stock, plant and Machinery, medical equipments,
movable machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessaries, furniture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable assets, present and future created out of the facility.
- Extension of Equitable morigage on a property cwned by Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute valued at Rs. 5,181 lakhs.
- Board backed letter of comfart from Dr. Agarwal's Eve Haspital Limited, the subsidiary of the Company.
- Personal Guarantees of Dr. Amar Agarwal, Dr. Athiva Agarwal, Dr. Adil Agarwal, Dr. Anosh Agarwal, Dr. Ashar Agarwal, Dr. Ashwin Agarwal and Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute,
heing the promoter znd relatives of the promoter.

{iv} The details of security provided against the Equipment lcan are as follows:
- Exclusive charge by way of Hypothecation of Medical Equipments.
- Persenal Guarantee of Dr. Anosh Agarwal.

19.

w

Issues of Fully and Compulsarily Convertible Cumulative Participative Preference Shares

Mote: Duringthe year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has issued, 0.001% Fully and Compulscrily Convertible ton- Cumulative Participative Preference Shares to Arvon
Investments Pte Ltd of Rs, 100 each into 124,301 Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each {ata premiurn of Rs. 1,100 each] in its Board meeting held on 20 August 2021,

The cenversion of Fully and Compulsorily Convertible Non- Cumulative Participative Preference Shares will happen at the earlier of two years or a fund raise exceeding Rs.
100 Crares, 2t a fixed return over the said period.

1.991% Fully and Compulsorily Convertible Debantures of Face Value of Rs. 1200 each

1. Pursuant to the extra ordinary general meeting of the company held on 12 August 2021, the company hss allotted 1,67,366 units of Compulsarily Convertible Debentures
{CCD} of Rs. 1200 each te Value Growth Investments Halding Pte Lid.

The conversion of Fully and Compulsarily Canvertible Debantures will happan at the earlier of two years or a fund raise exceeding Rs. 100 Crores, at a fixed return over the
said period.
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20 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

{Amound in Rs. Lakhs)

Asat
Particulars = M:;:tmn 31 March 2021
(Refer note 18.4)

Non-current liabifities
Measured at Fair Value
{a} Acquisition LiabHities [Refer Note 7 and below) 732.05 561.79
Total 732.05 561.79
Current
Measured at Amortised Cost
(a) Payables towsrds purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment 1,065 38 134 88
(b) |nterest Accrued But Not Due on Borrowings

- from Banks - 0.21

- fram Other Parties (Refer Note 19.1) - 215.24
Measured at Fair Value
Ic) Acquisition Liabilities {Refer Note 7 and helow) 708.05 492.47
Total 1,773.44 892.80

Note: Acquisition Liabilities represents the estimated fair value of the contingent consideration relating ta the acquisition of various eye clinics which was acquired upto 31

March 2022,

21 PROVISIONS

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021
[Refer note 18.4)

Non-current portion

{2} Provision for Emaloyee Benefits:

- Gratuity Payable [Refer Note 37.3) 31.64 -

- Compensated Absences (Refer Note 37.2) 130,02 90,76
Total 161.66 96.76
Current portion
{a) Provision for Employee Benefits:

- Compensated Absences {Refer Nete 37.2) 59.03 62.60

- Others - 2341
{h} Provision far Centingencies 7.68 7.68
Total 66,71 93,69

21.1 The Company carries a "provision for contingencies” towards various claims z2gainst the Company not acknowledged as debts {Refer Note 38), based on Management's best

estimzte. The details are a5 follows:

{Armount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars Ll 31 MaArs::tznn
SiiMarchiz22 {Refer nate 18.4)
Opening Balance 7.68 7.68
Provision made during the year - -
Amounts Utilized during the year E =
Unused Amounits Reversed during the year S =
Closing Balance 7.68 7.68

Note;

Whilst the provision as at 31 March 2022 is considered as current In nature, the actual cutflow with regard to said matters depends on the exhausticn of remedies avafiable

under the law based on various developments, No recoveries are expected against the provisian.
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22 OTHER UARILFTIES
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs}
As at
Particulars =7 MAS :1 31 March 2021
e (Refer note 18.4)
Current flabilities
{a) Statutory Remittances 23045 145.24
{3 Advances from Customers 140.53 84.70
{c)  Gratuity Payahle {Refer Note 37.3} 85.01 52.03
Tatal 455.99 281.97
22 {a) CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES {NET}
{Ampunt in Rs. Lakhs)
Asat
Particulars 5 M:s":tzuu 31 March 2021
{Refer note 13.4)
Provision for Tax {Net of income tax assets) - 47.82
Total - 47.82
23 CURRENT BORROWINGS
[Ampunt in Rs. Lakhs)
Asat
Particulars Asat 31 March 2021

25

31 March 2022

{Refar note 18.4)

{a) Loans Repayable on Demand
(i) From Banks - Secured

- Cash Credit Facllity {Refer Notes {i) and {7} below} 42237 257.85
(i) Current Maturities of Long-Term Borrowings {Refer Note 19.1 & 19.2)
- from secured borrowings 1,440.00 -
- from kanks (securad) 508.47 1235
Total 2,370.84 280.20
Notes :
(i} The details of interest rate, repayment and other terms of the Shart Terrn Borrowings are as follows:
{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
asat S
Type Name of the Party Interest Rate ARepayment Terms 31March 2021
31 March 2022
[Refer note 18.4)
- Rat
Cash Credit facility HDFC Bank HDREAaR RataLy Gr Demand 42237 267.85

2.85%

(i} The Cash credit facility availed by the Campany as at 31 March 2022 & 31 March 2021 is secured by the following:

- First and exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of current assets of the company
- Comfart Letter from Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited;

- Personal Guarantees of Dr. Amar Agarwal, Dr. Athiya Agarwal, Dr. Adil Agarwal, Dr. Anosh Agarwal, Or. Ashar Agarwal and Dr. Ashwin Agarwal, being the promaters and

refatlves of the promoters and Dr. Agarwal's Eye lnstitute.

TRADE PAYABLES

R As at
Particulars STNETc2022 31 March 2021
{Refer note 18.4)

Current

- Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises (Refer Note 33) 576.45 -

- Dues of Creditors Other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 4,690.21 5,105.16

- Disputed dues of Micra Enterprises and Smal] Enterprises {Refer Note 33) - -

- Disputed dues of Crediters Other than Micre Enterprises and Small Enterprises - =
Total 5,366.66 5,105.16

As at 31 March 2022

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
- MSME 676.45 S = - 676.45
- Others 4,690,21 > o - 4,690.21
- Disputed duss - MSME
- Disputed dues - Others
Total 5,366.66 - - - 5,366.66
As at 31 March 2021 {Amaount in Rs. Lakhs)
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
- MSME - - - - -
- Others 5,105.16 - - - 5,105,168
- Disputed dues - MSME
- Disputed dues - Others
Total 5,105.16 o o - = 5,105.16
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25  REVENUE FROM QPERATIONS

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

. For the Year Ended Far the Year Ended
Particulars
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{a) Sale of Products (Refer Note 25.1{i) below) 8,653.44 5,586.11
(b}  Sale of Services (Refer Nate 25,1(#) below) 27,490.71 17,602.85
(c) Other Operating Revenues 14.83 35.51
Total 36,158.98 23,224.47

25.1 Bisaggregation of the revenue Information

Notes :

(i) Sale of Products comprises the following:

The takles below present disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers for the year ended 31 March 2022 by offerings. The Company believes that this
disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainity of our revenues and cash flows ara affected by industry, market and other economic factors.

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs})

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Traded (Domestic} :
{1 Opticals 4,923.06 3,211.94
{ii} Pharmaceutical Products 2,693.00 1,803.87
fii}  Contact Lens and Accessories 141.88 136.63
7,757.84 5,152.44

Traded {Export) :
fiy Opticals 4.33 4.95
i) Pharmaceutical Products 5.40 3273
{iii]  Clinical items and Equipments 885.77 395.98
B855.50 433.67
Total - Sale of Products 8,653.44 5,586.11
{ie} 5ale of Services comprises the following : {Amount in Rs. Lakhs}
J For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particilars
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

(i} Income from Surgeries 22,317.91 13,600.56
(i) Income from Consultation 1,323.40 2,126.48
(il Income from Treatments and Investigations 3,849.40 1,875.80
Total - Sale of Services 27,490.71 17,602.85

252

253

The services are rendered to various patients and there are no patients who represent more than 10% of the total revenue. However, the Hospital also serves patients who are
covered under insurance/health schemes run by insurance companies, corporates and the central/state government agencies, wherein the services rendered to the patient is
on credit to be reimbursed by the said insurance company, carporate or government agency.

Trade Receivables and Contract Balances

The eompany classifies the right te consideration in exchange for deliverables as receivable.

A receivable is a right to consideration that is unconditionai upon passage of time. Revenue is recognized as and when the related goods / services are delivered / performed to
the customer.

Trade raceivable are presented net of impairment in the Balance Sheet.
Contract liabilities include payments received in advance of performance under the contract, and are realized with the associated revenue reccgnized under the contract.

Performance obfigations and remaining performance obligatians

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yat to be recognised as at the end of the reporting period and an
explanation as to when the Company expects o recognise these amounts in revenue. Applying the practical expedient as given in IND AS - 115, the Company has not disciosed
information about remaining performance obligations in contracts where the ariginal contract duration is one year or less or where the entity has the right to consideration
that corresponds directly with the value of entity’s performance completed to date,

26 OTHER INCOME
particulars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

{a)  Interest Income

- Bank deposits 108.93 48.28

- Loans to Subsidiary (Refer note 38} 244,78 17375
{b)  Interest Income - Other Financial Assets at amortized cost 1426 27.95
{c} Gain oh modification of lease agreement/ termination of right-of-use assets 243.32 37.76
{e} Liabilities no Jonger required written back [refer note 7.2 {ii}) 228.99 -
{f) Interest on Income Tax refund 143.05
{h} Miscellaneous Income 53.38

1,036.72
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27

28

29

30

PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE

[Amount in Rs. Lakhs}

For the Year Ended

For the Year Ended

Particulars
31 Warch 2022 31 March 2021
{a) Opticals 2,001.88 1,187.94
{b) Pharmaceuticals Products 1,771.13 1,216.28
{c) Contact Lens and Accessories 114.06 30.83
{d) Clinical items and Equipments 702.12 445,94
Total 4,589.19 2,880,599
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF STOCK IN TRADE
A. Inventaries at the beginning of the year: {Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
. For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(a) Opticals 298.58 551,72
[b) Pharmaceuticals Products 227.04 252,81
{c] Contact Lens and Accessories 23.87 32.29
{d) Clinical ltems and Equipments 101.93 E
Total (A} 651.42 836.92
B. [nventories at the end of the year: {Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
. For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particufars
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(a} Opticals 454.67 298.58
b} Pharmaceuticals Preducts 281.00 227.04
(3] Cantact Lens and Accessories 69.96 23.87
{d}  Clintcal Items and Equipments 139.18 101.23
Total (B} 944.81 651.42
Total (A) - (B) {293.39) 185.50
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
. For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

(a) Salaries and Bonus 5,372.14 3,885.02
[{3)] Centributions te Provident and Other Funds {Refer Note 37.1) 335.70 27549
{c) Staff Welfare Expenses (Refer Note 37.1) 210.25 126.57
Total 5,918.10 4,287.08
FINANCE COSTS
{Amount in Rs. Lakhs})
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

{a) Interest on Loan

{i) On Term Loans 165.38 32.70

{il) On Debentures 1,666.50 1,617.36

{ii} On Others 11597 120.63
(b} Interest on Leasa Liability {Refer Note 40} 1,700.37 1,465.51
(e} Interest on delayed remittance of statutary dues - 8.65
Total 3,657.22
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31  DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

. For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(a) Depreciation on Tangikle Assets [Refer Note 5) 2,800.26 2,787.45
(b}  Amortization on Intangihle Assats {Refer Note 71 920.55 788.75
[€) Impairment on Intangihle Assets (Refer Note 7) 370.25 -
(d} Depreciation on right of use asset (Refer Note 6 & 40} 1,838.33 1,930.48
Total 5,929.47 5,516.68

32  OTHER EXPENSES

[Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars

For the Year Ended

For the Year Ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{a} Consultancy Charges 5,985.74 4,791.26
(b) Consumables 4,843.50 3,147.06
(4] Power and Fuel 488.07 431.80
{d)  Water Consumption 24.88 16,62
{e} Rent {Refer Note 40} 407.65 633.46
1] Repairs & Maintenance
- Equipments 257.11 14253
- Others 419.66 339.43
{g) Haspital Maintenance Charges 850.37 852.57
{h} Insurance 108.12 £9.8%
{i) Rates and Taxes 67.93 4326
i) Communication 162,68 144.24
{k) Travelling and Conveyance 437.18 213.77
{ Printing and Stationary 127.52 97.04
{m] Legal and Professicnal Charges 632.63 411.09
(n}  Software Maintenance Charges 139.47 116.16
(o} Business Promotion and Entertainment 534.03 234.75
(n) Marketing Expenses 72341 364.68
(a} Payments to Auditors (Refer Note 32.1 below) 41.17 47.0%
r) Bank Charges 159.03 115.98
(s) Allowance for expecied credit losses 529.57 612.71
Less: Bad debts written off - 9.09
529.57 £03.62
(t} Less oh Sale of property, plant and equipment - 657.68
{u) Loss on property, plant and equipment discarded 47.84 80.77
(v} Net Lass on Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation 16.96 40.59
{w)  Prowvision for doubtful loans and advances 309.00 -
{x) Miscellaneous Expenses 176.78 187.36
Total 17,490.30 12,692.66
32.1 Payments to the Auditors Comprises :
{Amount in Rs. Lakhs}
(a) As Auditors:
- For Statutory Audit 29.00 29.75
- For Tax Audit - -
- For Limited review 2,50 5.00
- Other Services 3.20 5.00
- Reimbursement of Expanses 0.22 0.27
- Goods and Service Tax/Service Tax 6,25 7.07
Total 41.17 47.09
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33 Disclosuras requirad under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Devalopmant Act, 2006
{Ampunt in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars® 20212022 2020-2021
{i}  Principal ameunt remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year §76.45 -
{ii}  Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year 5.53 -
{lij The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier - -
keyand the appointed day
{iv}] The amount of interest dus and payable for the year 5.53 -
{v} The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year 553 E
(v} The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, untll such date 553 -
when the interest dues as sbove are actuzlly paid

*Dues to Micre and Small Enterprises have been determined te the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by the Management.

34 Disclosure under Section 135 {4) of the Companies Act, 2013
The particutars of investments made as required to be disclosed ufs 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013 are disclosed in Note 8 of Notes forming part of the
Standalone Financial Stataments.

The particulars of guarantees given as required to be disclosed u/s 186 {4) of the Companies Act, 2013 are as follows:
[Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

. . As at
Beneficiary of the Guarantes Rartylto Wh'Fh Gilraranted]ls 31 MA! :tznzz 31 March 202t
BIvEn ar {Refer note 18.4)
Dr, Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited (Refer Note 38} Axis Bank 3,193,55 E
Dr. Agarwal's Eve Hospital Limited (Refer Note 38} HDFC - 3,312.00
Aditya Jyot Eye Hospital Private Limited Kotak iahindra 337.88 -
Orbit Health Care Services {Mauritius) Limited (Refer Note 38) 5B Bank {Mauritius} Limited = 253.13

Further, 1350,000 Equity Shares held by the Company in Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospitat Limited has been pledged as one of the coliateral securitfes with Axls bank
{previous year: HDFC Bank), for the loans taken by Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited to the extent of INR 3,193 lakhs , including CC Facility of INR 294 Lakhs and
Overdraft facility of INR 300 lakhs

35 Capital Commitments
{Amount in Rs. Lakhs}

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2021
31 March 2022
ot {Refer note 13.4)
(i) The estimated amount of centracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account, net of advances
697.94 35.95

and not provided for

36 Contingent Liabilities
{Amount in Rs. Lakhs}

- As at
Particulars 21
31 March 2022 ‘::fztal::':fs N

Consumer Clalms against the Company not acknowledgad as deht 14.82 12.32]

Notes:

{l} Based on Professional Advice / Management's assessment of all the above claims, the Company expects a favorable decision In respect of the above claims and
hence no specific provision has been considered for the above claims. Also refer Note 21.1

{ii} The amounts shown above represent the best possible =sstimates arrived at on the basis of the available information. The uncertainties and possible
refmbursement are dependent on the cutcome of the various legal praceedings which have been initiatad by the Company or the Claimants, as the case may be and,
therefore, canhot be predicted accurately.
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37 Employee Benefits

37.1 Defired Contribution plans
{a]  The Company makes Provident and Pension Fund contributions, which is 2 defined contribution plan, for gualifying employees. Additionally, the Company also provides, for cavered
emplayees, health insurance through the Employee State Insurance scherne. Under the Schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs
to fund the benefits. The contributions payahle to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes,

{b] Expenses recognized :

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
For the Year ended For the Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
[Refer note 1B.4}

{if  tncluded under 'Contributicns to Provident and Other Funds' {Refer Note 29.1}

Lontributions to provident and pensien funds 270.599 227.65
(i) Included under ‘Staff Welfsre Fxpenses' (Refer Note 29.1)
Contributions to Employee State Insurance 44.73 43,80
37.2 Compensated Absences {Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
For the Year ended For the Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2022 21 March 2021

{Refer note 18.4)

{a) Included under 'Salaries and Bonus ' {Refer Note 29.1) 67,17 42.95
{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
Particul - 31 rmAs G
articulars arc|

SLuarciuaz {Refer note 18.4)
() Net asset £ {liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet {189.05) {153.36}
Current portion of the above {Refer Note 21.1) {59.03) {62.60}
Non - current portien of the above {Refer Note 21.1) {130.02) {90.76}

The Key Assumptions used in the cormputation of provision far compensated ahsences are as given below:

Particulars 2001-2G22 2020-2021
Discount Rate {% p.a} 5.85% 5.20%
Future Safary Incraase (% p.a) 8.00% 6€.00%

37.3 Defined benefit plans

The Company operates a gratuity plan covering qualifying employees. The benefit payable is calculated as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 and the benefit vests upen cormpletion of
five years of continuous service and ence vested it is payable to employees on retirement or en termination of employment. tn case of death while in service, the gratuity is payable
irrespective of vesting. The Company makes annuz( contribution te the group gratuity scheme administered by the Life Insurance Corperation of india.

In respect of the plan, the most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out as at 31 March 2022 by M/s Kapadia
Actuarias and Consuitants. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and paid service cost, were measured using the projected unit cost
cradit mathod.
fa} Amount recognized in the statement of profit & boss (including other comprahensive income) in respact of the defined benefit plan are as follows :

{Amgunt In Rs. Lakhs)
For the Year ended Far the Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Refer note 18.4)

Amounts recognized in Statament of Profit & Loss i respact of these defined benefit plans are as follows:

Servire Cost [Refer Note{i) below] :

- Current Service Cost 63.77 46.30
- Net intarest expense 0.24 0.71
Components of defined benefit costs recopnized in the Statement of Prefit and Loss 64.71 47.01

Remeasurement on the net defined benefit iability:

Return on plan assets {excluding amount included in net interest incame) 085 2.30
Actuarial gains and loss arising from changes in Demographic assumptions 1933 -
Actuartal gains and loss arising from changes in Financizal assumpticns 15.30 2.18
Actuarial gains and joss arising from experience adjustments 43.57 27.97
Compenents of defined benefit costs recognized in other comprehenisive income . 79.55 32.45
Tetal defined benefit cost recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Encome 144.26 79.46

{i) The current service cost and interest expense for the year are included in Note 29.1 - "Employee Benefit Expenses” in the Statement of Profit & Loss under the line item
"Contribution to Provident and Other Funds"

{ii) The remeasurement of the nat defined henafit liability is included in other comprehensive income.

{b) The amount inckuded in the balance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of defined benefit pian is as fallows :

As at ey
Particulars 31 March 2021
31 March 2022 {Refer note 18.4}
Net Asset/iLizbility) recognized in the Balance Sheet
1. Present value of defined benefit cbligation 375.10 264,17
2, Fair value of plan assets 258.45 21213
Net asset / [liability] recognized in the Balance Sheet {116.65) {52.04}
Current portion of the above {refer note 22.1) {85.01) {52.04)
Non - currant portion of the above {refer note 21.1) {3364}
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Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows :

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars

For the Year ended

Far the Year ended
31 March 2021

LS {Refer note 18.4)
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 264.17 198.31
Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss:
- Current Service Cost 63.77 46,30
- Interest Expense {income) 11.35 9.43
Adjustments (7.39) -
Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income:
Remeasusernent gains / {losses)
- Actuarial (Gain}/ Loss arising from:
i. Demographic Assumptions 18.83 -
ii. Financial Assumptions 15.30 218
ifi. Experience Adjustments 43.57 2797
Benefit payments {35.49) (20.02)
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 375.10 264.17

Movement in fair value of plan assets are as follows :

Far the Year ended

For the Year ended

Particulars 31 March 2021
3UMEchi2022 {Refer note 18.4}
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 212.13 159.85
Adjustment to Opening Balance
Expenses Reccgnized in Sfatement of Profit and Loss:

- Expected return on plan assets 10.41 8.72
Recogrized in Other Comprehensive Income:

Remeasurement gains / [losses)

- Actuarial gains and loss arising from changes I financizl assumptions - -

- Return on plan assets {excluding amount included in net interest income} {0.85} (2.30}
Contributions by employer 7225 G5.88
Benefit payments {35.49) {20.02)

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the yzar 258.45 212,13
The fair value of plan assets plan at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs}

As at
Particulars As at 31 March 2021
31arch 2022 {Refer note 18.4)

Investment Funds with Insurance Cempany
- Life Insurance Corparation of India 25845 231213

(i) The plan assets comprise insurer managed funds. None of the assets carry a quotad market price in active market or reprasent the entity's own transferable financial instruments

or property accupied by the entity.

The Actual return on plan asset for the year ended 31 March 2022 was Rs.9.56 lakhs { For the year ended - 31 March 2021: Rs. 6.42 lakhs).

Actuarial assumgtions
Investment Risk:

The present value of defined benefit plan liability is calcutated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to the prevalling rmarket yields of Indlan governmant securities

as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the ohligations.

Intarest Risk:
A decrease In the yield of Indian government securities will increase the plap liability,

Longevity Risk:

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An

increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Salary Risk:

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calcuiated by reference to the future salaries. In particular, there is 3 risk for the Company that any adverse salary growth

can result in an increase in cost of providing these benefits to emplayees in future.

The principal assumptions used for the purposa of actuarlal valuation were as follows ;

As at
Particulars ey 31 March 2021
31 March 2022
{Refer note 18.4)
Discaunt rate 5.85% 5.20%
Expected rate of salary increase 3.00% 6.00%
Expected return oh plan assets 5.85% 5.20%
Expected Attrition rate based on Past Service (PS) (% p.a} 28%" “57%
Martality Indfan Assured Lives | Indian Assured Lives
(2012-2014) (2012-2014)

1. The discount rate Is based on the prevailing market yields of Indizan Government securities as at balance sheet date for the astimated term of the obligation.

2. The estimates of future salary increases considered tzkes Into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.

3. fn arder to pretect the capital and optimize returns within acceptable risk parameters, the plan assets are maintained with an insurer managed fund {maintaj

Insurance Carporation ("LIC"}) and is well diversed.

y 5 ea
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Sensitivity Analysis:
The benefit obligation results of a such a scheme are particularly sensitive to discount rate, salary growth and employeae attrition, if the plan provision do previde far such increases
on commencement of pension.
The foilowing table summarizes the impact in financial terms on the reported defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period arfsing on account changes in these four
key parameters:

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs}

As at
Increase / {Decrease} an the Defined benefit Obligation Aslat 31 March 2021
31 March 2022
{Refer note 18.4)

{iy Discount Rate

Increase by 100 bps {12.25) {6.13}

Decrease by 100 bps 13.13 5.46
fiiy Salary growth rate

Increase by 100 bps 12.53 6.31

Decrease by 100 bps {11.68) {6.10}
{iii] Attrition rate

Increzse by 100 bps {0.88) [0.62)

Decrease by 100 bps 0.88 0.62
{iv] Mertality rate

Increase by 10% .01 g.01

These sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit obligation in isolation and assuming there are no other changes in market conditions at the
accounting date. The sensitivity analysis presented above may not he representative of the actual change in the defined banefit abligations as it is unlikely that the change in
assumptions would occur in isalation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furtharmore in presenting the above sensitivity analysis the pressnt value of defined bensfit obligetion has baen calculsted using the projected unit eredit method at the end of the
reparting period which is the same as that applied in caleulating the defined benefit obligation liahility recognized in the balance sheet.

There is no change in the metheds and assumptions used in preparing tha sensitivity analysis from the prior years.
Asset Liability Matching Strategies

The Company has purchasad insurance policy, which is basically a year-on-year cash accurnulation plan in which the interest rate is declared on yearly basis and s guaranteed for a
period of ane year, The insurance Company, as part of the paticy rules, makes payment of all gratuity fizbility occurring during the year (subject ta sufficiency of funds under the
nolicy). The policy, thus, mitigates the liquidity risk. However, being 2 cash accumutation plan, the duration of assets is shorter compared to the duration of liabilities. Thus, the
Company is exposed to movement in Interest rate..

Effect of Plan on Entity"s Future Cash Flows

A) Funding Arrangements and Funding Policy

The Cormpany has purchased an insurance policy to provide for payment of gratuity to the emplayees. Every year, the insurance Company carries out a funding valuation based on
the [atest employee data provided by the Company. Any deficit in the assets arising as a result of such valuation is funded by the Company.

B} The Company expects to make 2 centribution of Rs. 85.01 lakhs during the next financial year.

C) The weighted average duration of the benefit abligation at 31 March 2022 is 3.44 years (as at 31 March 2021 is 2.66 years).

D] Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:

Expected cash flows over the nekt [valued on undiscounted basis): {Amaunt in Rs. Lakhs)

Within 1 year 8110
210 Syears 239.35
G to 10 years 105.84

mare than 10 years .

Experience Adjustments

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19 2HH17-18

Defined Benefit Obligations 375.10 264,17 194.93 138,70 §5.43
Plan Assets 258.45 212,13 158,85 117.82 89,75
Surplus / (Deficit} {116.65) (52.04] {35.08) (20.38) (5.68)
Experience Adjustments on Pian Liabilities 43.57 27.97 19.20] 19.20 7.13
Experience Adjustments on Plan Assets - - - - 4.23'

Experience adjustments related to prior years have been disclosed based an the infarmation to the extent availabie,
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38 Related Party Disclosure
38.1 Names of Refated Parties and WNattre of Relationships
Nature of Ral: hij 2021-2022 2020-2021
{i) |Subsidiary Company Ds. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited Or. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited
Orkit Healthcare Services (Mauritius) Limited Orbit Healtheare Services {Mauritius) Limited
Orbit Healthcare Services international Operations Limited Orbit Healthcare Services International Operations Limited
Qrbit Health care services {Tanzania} Limited Orbit Health care services {Tanzania} Limited
Orhit Healtheare Services Limited, Rwanda Orbit Healthcare Services Limited, Rwanda
Orbit Healthcare Services Ghana Limited Orbit Healthcare Services Ghana Limited
Qrbit Healthcare Servicas i bi Limited Orbit Healthcare Services Mozambigue Limited
Orbit Healthcare Services SARL, Mad ar Orkit Healthcare Services SARL, Madagascar
QOrbii Healthcare Services Uganda Limited Orbit Healthcare Services Uganda Limited
Orbit Hezltheare Serviees Zambia Limited Orbit Healthcare Services Zambia Limited
Orbit Thelish Healthcara Sarvices [Nigeria) Limited Orbit Thelish Healthcare Services [Nigeria) Limited
Orbit Healthcare Services Kenya Limited Orbit Healthcare Services Kenya Limited
Elisar Life Sciences Private Limited Elisar Llfe Sciences Private Limited {w.e.f 14 Navembar 2019}
Aditya Jyot Eye Hospital Private Limited (W.e.f 08 october 2021} Advanced Eye Institute Private Lirnited [w.e.f 11 December 2015}
{ii) JAssaciate Company 1deaRx Services Private Limited IdeaRy Services Private limited
(i} |Entities having significant Value Growth Investment Holdings FTE Ltd Value Growth Investment Holdings PTE Ltd
influence over the company Claymore lnvestrments {Mauritius] Pte. Ltd Claymore Investments {Mauritius) Pre. Led
Arvon Investments Pre Ltd [W.e.f August'21) e
{iv) |Key Management Personnel of  |Dr. Adil Agarwal, Wholetime Director Dr. Adil Agarwai, Wholatime Director
the Company Or. Anosh Agarwal, Wholetime Director Dr. Anosh Agarwal, Wholetime Director
Dr. Amar Agarwal Or. Amar Agarwal
Mr, Shiv Azrawal M. Shiv Agrawal
Wr. Sapjay Dharambir Anand Mr. Mithun Padamchand Sacheti
. Vanh h Ratnasamf Mr, Suresh Eshwara Prabhala
M. Mithun Padamchand Sacheti (Upto 23 Aprll 2021) Mr. Sanfay Dharambir Anand
Mr. Thanikainathan Arurmugam Mr. Venkatesh Ratnasami
Mr. Batakrishnan Venkatraman Mr. Udhay Davey [Group CFO) (w.e.f 02 December 2020}
Mr. Udhay Davey (Group CFQ) Mr. Thanikainathan Arumugam
Wr, Balakrfshnan Venkatraman
(v} |Enterprise over which the Key|OrbitInternational - Partnership Firm Orbit International - Partnership firm
Management Personnel of the|Maztrum Technologies Private Limited WMaatrum Technologies Private Limited
Company is in a pesition te}Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute - Partnership Firm Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute - Partnership Firm
exercise contral/joint control Or Agarwals Eye institute Private Limited Dr Agarwals Eye Institute Private Limited
{vi} | Relatives of KMP/Individuals Dr. Athiya Agarwal Dr. Athiya Agarwal
having stgnificant influence Dr. Ashar Agarwat Di. Ashar Agarwal
Dr. Ashvin Agarwal Dr. Ashvin Agarwal
*Related party relationships are as identified by the Management and relied upon by the auditors.
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38.2 Transactions carried out with related parties referred ta above in the ordirary course of business during the Year

[Ampunt In Rs. Lakhs)

o 2021-2022 2020-2021
Pemticelars Related Party [Amount in Ris. Lakhs) {Amotent iz Rs. Lakhs)

Transacticns during the Year

Revenue

Export $ales Orhit Healtheare Serivices Limited, Rwanda 17.15 37.30
Orbit Healthcare Services Ghana timited 122.86 7281
Orbit Health Care Services (Mauritius} Limited 83.67 .01
Orbit Healthcare Services Mozambigue Limited 89.98 68.37
Orbit Healthcare Services SARL, Madagascar 37.34 32.84
Orhit Health Care services (Tanzania) Limited 5272 25.01
Orhit Healthcare Services Uganda Limited £7.65 2880
Orbit Healthcare Services Zzmbia Limited 335.00 50.76
Orbit Thelish Healtheare Services (Migeria) Limited 1962 25.40
Orbit Healthcare Services Kenya Limited 2451 12.26

Corporate Guarantze Charges Dr. Agarwal's Eve Hospital Limited 1115 17.14
Crbit Healtheare Services [Mauritius) Limited - 3.22

Otherincame Oririt Healthcare Serivices Limited, Rwanda 228 5.19
Orbit Healthcare Services Ghana Limited 5.45 6.13
Orbit Health Care Services (Mausitius) Umited 459 570
Orbit Healthcare Services Mezambigue Limited B27 868
Orbit Healthcare Services SARL, Madagascar 305 4,66
Orbit Health Care services {Tanzenia) Limited 4.58 1.43
Urbit Healtheare Services Uganda Limited 7.33 2.52
Orbit Healthcare Services Zambia limited 25.35 5.15
Orbit Thelish Heaitheare Services [Nigeria) Limited 2.33 3.94
Orbit Healthcare Services Kenya Limited 153 0.83

Expenses

Reimbursement of Expenses Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited 236.65 228.68

Purchases {deaRx Servicas Private Limited 1,790.38 591.96
Elisar Life Seiences Private Umited 9.24 3.08

Racovery of Expenses
Orbit Hezlth Care Services {Mauritivs) Limited - 29.00
Orbit Healthcare Services Mozambigue Limited = 543
Orbit Healthcare Services Zambia Limited 0.54
Orbit Thelish Healthcare Services (Nigeria) Limited - 1.08

Others

Rental Deposit Recovery Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute 458.00 5

Capital Work in progress- Rent expense|Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute 295.00 50386

investments Aditya lyat Eye Hospital Pyt limited 2,600.08 -

Transfer of Capital Work In Progress | Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited 1,196.00 -

Issue of instruntents equity in nattre  [Value Growth Investment Holdings PTE Ltd { issue of Compulsorily 2,008.39 =
Cunvertible Bebentures)
Arvon Investments Pre Ltd {issue of Compulsorily Convertible 124.30 -
Preference Shares)

Notes:

{il  The Company accounts for costs incurred by / on behalf of the Related Parties based on the actual inveices f debit notes raised and accruals as confirmed hy such related parties.
The Related Parties have confirmed to the Management that as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, there are no further amounts payable to / receivable fror them, other than
as disclosed ahove. The Company Incurs certain costs on behalf of other companies in the group. These casts have been allocated/racoverad from the graup companies on a basis
mwtually agreed to with the group companies.

(i} The Company has provided Guaranteas to TNR 4,812 lakhs to Axis bank for the joans taken by Dr. Agarwals Eye Hospital , Also the loans previously held with
HDFC during the previous year is taken over by Axis bank to the extent of iNR L8603 lakhs. Further, 1,350,000 Equity Shares held by Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited in the
Company has been pledged as one of the collateral securities with Axis bank {previously with HDFC), for the loans taken by Dr Agarwats Eye Hospital Limited.

{iii) The Company has provided Corporete Guarantees amounting to INR 253.13 lakhs (MUR 25,400,000) to SEM Bank {Mauritius) Limited for the loans taken by Orbit Health Care
Services (Mauritius) Limited, its wholly cwned subsidiary.

{iv] During the Current year ended 31 March 2021, the lease rental paid towards the leased Premise at Cathedral road has been considered as Right to use asset and accordingly lease
lizbility has been created against the leased premises as per Indas 116 , further the amount transferred ta CWIP is the Depreciztion on right of use asset and Interest on lease
Liability , whereas during the year ended 31 March 2020 the treatment of creation of Right te use asset and lease fiability was not carried due to the lease agreement and other
terms wera pending finalisation.

{v) During the Curcent year ended 31 March 2022, pursuant to the Annual General meeting held in the current year,the company had received the refund of security deposit INR 458
lakhs from Or. Agarwal's Eve Institute.
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38.3 Lomp ion of key [ l
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs}
Particulars Related Party 20421-2002 2019-2020

Short-term employee benefits Dr. Anosh Agarwal 104.85 37.00
{Refer Note {i) Dr. Adit Agarwal 111.8% 39.40
Mr. Udhay Shankar Cavey 50.02 16.10
Mr. Thanikainathan Arumogam 31.24 20.65
Pest employee benefits Dr. Anosh Agarwal 0.22 027
Dr, Adit Agarwal 022 0.22
Mr. Udhay Shankar (avey 011 0.04
Mr. Thanikainathan Arumugam 0.22 0.22
Other perquisites Dr. Anosh Agarwal 45.81 45.46
Dr. Adil Agarval 92.08 92.71
Sitting Fees Mr. Shiv Agarwal Q.75 0.75
Mr. Mithun Padamchand Sancheti - 0.25
Mr. Balakrishnan Venkataraman 0.75 0.75
Mr. $anjay Dharambir Anand 0.75 1.00

Nates:

{i

Excludes gratuity and compensated absences which cannct be separataly identified from the compaosite emount advised by the actuary.
{ii} Employee Senefits paid to Br Anash Agarwal and Dr Adil Agarwal, represents remuneration of salary and alfowances hut excluding perquisites.

(iti} The remuneration payzble to key management persocnnel is determined by the nomination and remuneration commitiee having regard to the performance of individuals and

market trends.

{iv} There were no halances outstanding ta be paid f raceived as at the year end,

{v) The above remuneration for Key management personnel does not include vehicle, communication expenses & other expenses for which the pregulsite value is detarmined as Nil.

Balances outstanding as at year end

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Asat
Particulars Related Party = MaA:::tZOZZ 31 March 2021
{Refer note 18.4}
Assets
Trade Recalvables Orbit Healthcare Serivices Limited, Rwanda 2.35 74.52
Orhit Healthrare Services Ghana Limited 7842 46.12
Qibit Healthcare Services Mozambique Limited 25.51 2.3%
Orbit Healthcare Services SARL, Madagascar 26.34 37.45
Orbit Health Care services {Tanzanja) Limited 1116 228.02
Orbit Healthcare Services Ugandaz Limited 16.71 55.20
Orbit Healthcare Services Zambia Limited 27352 50.37
Orbit Thelish Healtheares Services {Nigeria) Limited 13.34 17.61
Orbit Healthcare Services Kenya Limited 17.87 -
Orbit Health Care Services (Mauritius) Limited 2.96 14.56
Loans Elisar Life Sciences Private Limited 2,416.67 2,207.10
interest Accrued but not Due on Loans | Flisar Life Sciences Private Hnited 411.04 190.69
Rental deposit Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute - 45800
Trade Payable Idea Rx Services Private Umited 335.44 341.56
Dr, Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited 24245 586,89
Elisar Life Sciences Private Limited .24 -
Advance from Customers Orhit Healthcare Services Kenya Limited - 7.05
Instruments equity in nature Value Growth Investmant Holdings PTE Ltd { issue of Compulsarily 2,008.39 -
Convertible Debentures)
Arvon Investments Pte Ltd {issue of Compulsorily Convertible 12430 -

Preference Shares)

The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have been glven or recelved against the aforesaid outstanding balances. There have bean no instances
of amounts due to or due frem related parties that have been written back or written off or octherwise provided for during the year.
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39 Segment Reporting

The Company publishes these financial statements zlang with the consolidated financial statements. 1n accordance with Ind AS 108, Gperating Segments, the Company has

disclosed the segment infermation in the consclidated financial statements.

43 Leases

A.  The Compeny has taken medical equipment and buildings on leas=s having remaining lease terms of more than 1 year to 10 years, with the option to extend the term of leases.

Refer Nate 6 for carrying amount of right-to-use assets at the end of the reporting period by class of underlying asset.

B. The following is the breakup of current and nan-current lease liabilities as at 31 March 2022:

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

As at
Particulars 1 MAS :t 31 March 2021
aach 2022 [Refer note 18.4)
Current 1,595.92 1,184.35
Nan-current 14,014.52 149,876.06
Total 15,611.44 Z1,060.41

€. The contractual maturfties of lease liabilities as at 31 March 2022 on an undiscaunted hasis is as fofows:

{Amaunt in Rs. Lakhs)

Lease Dhligation

Expected Minimum Lease Commitment

As at
31 March 2022

Asat
31 March 2021
{Refer note 13.4}

Payable - Not later than one year 3,189.17 1,316.95
Payahle - Later than one year but not later than five years 12,091.36 4,934.42
Payable - Later than five years 8,387.75 14,891.63
Total 23,668.28 21,193.00
T. Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:
{Amount in Rs. Lakhs}
Far the Year anded for the Year ended
Particufars STNRrEI12022 31 March 2021
({Refer note 18.4)
Interest on lease liabilities 1,709.37 1,465.51
Expanses relating to short term leases 407.65 63346
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 1,838.33 1,930.48
Profit on termination of lease 243.32 37.76
E.  Amounts recognised in the Cash Flow Statement:
{Ampunt in Rs. Lakhs)
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
31 March 2021
SLMarchi2022 [Refer nate 18.2)
Totai cash outflow for leases (2,816.77) {217343)

41 Earnings Per Share

Particulars

For the year ended 31

For the year ended 31

March 2022 March 2021
Earnings Per Share - Basic —Rs, {2.15) {78.83)
Earnings Per Share - Diluted —Rs, {2.15) [78.83)
Loss after Tax - Amaunt in Rs. Lakhs {147.41) {5,407.91)
Add: Share issue casts - -
Less: Dividend en Compulsorily Canvertlble Cumulative Preference Shares {Including Tax thereen) - Rs. In lakhs = =
Net Profit attributabie to Equity Shareholders - Rs. in lakhs (Basic and Diluted) {147.41} (5,407.91)
Welghted Average Number of Equity Shares (Face Value of Rs. 10 Each) - Basic and Diluted [Nes ) 6,853,969 5,859,569
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42 Financial Instruments

42.1 Capital Management

The Company manages capital risk in order te maximize shareholders’ profit by maintaining scund/foptimat capital structure. For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capita|
ncludes Equity Share Capital and Other Equity and Deht includes Borrowings and Other Financial Lizbilities excluding Payables towards FPE net of Cash and bank balances. The Company
monltors capital on the basis of the follewing gearing ratio. There is no change in the averall capital risk management strategy of the Company compared to last year.

Gearing Ratio :

{(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

. As at Asat
Particulars
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Borrowings and Gther Financial Liabilities 26,625.44 17,355.74
Cash and Bank Balance {6,000.24} {3,277.17)
Net Deht {a) 20,625.20 14,078.57
Total Equity (B) 18,891.48 0,118.44
Net Deht ta equity ratia [A/B) 1.04 0.70
42.2 Categories of Financial Inst)
The carrying value of the financial instruments by categories 2s on 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 is as follows:
{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
Particulars 2t At
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

{a} Financial Assets
Measured at fair value through P&1. (FVTPL)
- Curreni Investments - -
Measured at amortized cost
-Loans 2.107.67 2,207.1¢
-{ash and Bank balances 4,373.896 2370107
- Other Bank balances 1,626.38 506.40
- Trade raceivables 3,051.64 2,255.47
-Other financial assets 1,931.21 1,447.98
Measured at cast
- Non Current Investments 14,740.66 12,137.54

27,831.42 | ™™ 21,526.26
{b] Financial Li es ;
Measured at amortized cost
- Borrowings 25,185.33 16,086.03
- Trade Payables £,366.66 5,105.16
- Payables towards PPE 1,065.38 184,88
- Other financial liahilities 1,440.11 1,26%.71
-Lease Liabillties 15,611.44 21,060.41

48,668,91 43,706.19

The management assessed that fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, loans, borrowings, trade payables and other current financial assets and habilities approximate their
carmying amounts largely due ta the short-term maturities of these instrurnents.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liguidation sale.

The followi hods and plions were used to estimate the Fair value/amortized cost

1) Leng-term fixad-rate recei rrewings are 1 by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates, specific cauntry risk factors, individuzl lesses and creditworthinass
of the receivables

2) The fair value of unqueted instruments, leans from banks and cther financial liabilities, as well as other non-current financial fiabilities are estimated by discounting futura cash flows using
rates currantly availzble for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities, In addition to being sensitive to a reasonably possible changz in the forecast cash flaws or discount
ratg, the fair value of the unquoted instruments is &fso sensitive to a reasonably possible change in the growth rates. The valuation requires management to use uncbservable inputs in the
model, of which the significant uncbservable inputs are disclosed in the tables below. regularly 3 range of reasonably possible alternatives for those significant
unabservable inputs and determines their impact on the total fair value.

3} Fair values of the Company’s interest-bearing borrowings and [oans are determined by using Discounted Cash Flow (CCF) method using discouni rate that reflects the issuer's borrowing

rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own nen- performancs risk as at 31 March 2027 was assessed to be insignificant.

Fair Value Hierarchy

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets ar liabilities,

Leve! 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observakble for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or llabiities that are not based on observable market data (unohservable inputs).

Details of financial assets and financia! liakilities which were valued at fair value a5 of 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 are disclosed in Note 43,

42,

Financial Risk Management Framework

The C ¥'s board of di has everall respansibility for the estak and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The Company manages financial risk refating
ta the operations through internat risk reports which analyze exposure by degree and mzghitude of risk.

The Company’s activities expose it o a variety of financial risks: liquidity risk, credit risk and market risk (including interest rate risk end other price risk). The Company's primary risk
management focus is to mnimize potential adverse effects of market risk on its financial performance. The Company's risk management assessment and policies and processes are
established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and contrals, and ta monitar risks and cornpliznce with the same. Risk assessment and
management policies and pracesses are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee is

1t policies and processes. -

responsible for overseeing the Ci /s risk and
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{a) Liquidity Risk Management :

Liguidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations as they hecome due. The Company manages its liguidity risk by ensuring as far as possible, that it will
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under bath normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Company’s reputaticn. The
Cempany maintains adeguate reserves znd banking facilities, and continucusly monitors the forecast and actual cash flows by matching maturing profiles of financial assets and financial
liabilities in aceordance with the approved risk management policy of the Company periodically. The Company believes that the working capital lincluding banking limits not utilized) and its
cash and cash equivalent are sufficent to meet its short and medium term requirements.

Liguidity ard Interest Risk Tables :

The follawing tables detall the Company's remaining contractuzl maturity for its non-derivative finzncial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables include both interest and
principal cash flows.
Ta the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derlved fram interest rate curves at the end of the reporting period. The contractual maturity is based on the

earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay.
{Amount in Rs. Lakhs]

Particulars Less than 1 year 1ta5years 5 years and above Tatal

31 March 2022

Interest bearing 8,160.00 13,808.70 20,288.17 42,236.87
Mon-interest bearing 6,432.04 - - b,432.04
Total 14,592.04 13,808,70 20,268.17 48,668,91
21 March 2021

Interest bearing 2,172.47 14,608.10 21,635.57 38,415.15
Non-interest beating 5,290.05 - - 5,220.05
Total 7462.52 14,698.10 21,635.57 43,706.20

The following tables detait the Campany's remaining contractu

al maturity for its non-derivative financial Assets with agrzed

epaymant perivds, The Company does not hald any dervative

financial instrument.
{Amount in Rs. Lakhs}

Particulars Less than 1 year 1to 5 years 5 years and ahove Total

31 March 2022

interest bearing 4,376.38 3,343.65 5 7.720.03
Non-interest bearing 5,370.72 & 14,740.66 20,111.33
Tatal 9,747.11 3,343.55 14,740.66 27,831.42
31 March 2021

Interast bearing 3,380.34 2,525.26 20.34 5,935.94
Non-interest bearing 3,629.78 33.00 13,137.54 15,600.32
Tatal 6,910.12 2,558.26 12,157.88 2i,526.26

(b} Credit Risk:

Credit risk is the risk of firancial loss to the Company if & custemer or counterparty to a financial instrument faiis to meet its contractual abligations. Credit risk encompasses of bath, the
direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks. Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk principally consist
of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, bank depasits and other financial assets. None of the other financial instruments of the Company result In material concentration of credit
risk. Credit risk Is controlled by analyzing credit limits and creditwerthiness of custamers on a continuous basis to whorn the credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for
credit.

The carrying amount of the financial assets recorded in these financial statements, grossed up for any allowance for lusses, represents the maximum exposures 1o credit risk.

Trade receivables: The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the customer, including the default risk
of the indusiry and credit history, also has an influence on credit risk assessment.

Refer Note 26 and Note 15 for the details in respect of revenue and raceivable from top custamers.

Credit risk on current investments, cash & cash equivalent and derivatives is limited as the Campany generally transacts with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned
by internatianal and demestic credit rating agencies. Investments primarily include investment in Mutual Funds.
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{c} Market Risk :

Market risk is the risk of loss of any future earnings, in realizable fair values or in future cash flows that may result fram adverse changes in market ratas and prices (such as interast rates and
foreign currency exchange rates) or in the price of market risk sensitive insiruments as a result of such adverse changes in market rates and prices. farket risk is attributable to ail market risk-
sensitive financial instrumenis, all foreign currancy receivables and payables and all short-term and long-term debt. The Company is exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign
exchange rate risk and interest rate risk and the market value of its investmenis. Thus, the Company’s exposure te market risk is 2 function of investing and borrowing activities and revenue
generating and operating activities in fereign currencies.

{c.2) Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a finandizl nstrument will fluctuate because of changes [n market interest rates. The Campany's exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s debt ohligations with floating interest rates.

The Company’s management monitors the interest fluctuations, if any, and accardingly, take necessary steps to mitigate any interest rate risk.
interest Rate sensitivity analysis:

A change {decrease/fincrease) of 100 basis peints in interest rates at the reperting date would intrease/{decrease) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes
that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.

Impact on Profit and loss for the reporting period (Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
A As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Particulars
Increase by 100bps 1 Decreass by 100bps increase by 100hps | Decrease hy 100bps
Impact on Profit and loss for the reporting period {250.26)] 250.26 [160.34)] 160.34
Empact on total eguity as at the end of the reporting periad {Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
N As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Particufars
Increase by 100bps | Decrease by 100bps Increase hy 100bps | Decrease by 100bps
Imparct on total equity as at the end of the reporting periad 1250.26|| 25026 (160,34)| 160.34

{c.2) Foreign Currency Risk Management :

The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currancies and consequently, exposures te exchange rate fluctuations arises. The Company has not entered into any derivative
contracts during the year ended 31 March 2022 and there are no outstanding contracts as at 31 March 2022,
The carrying amounts of the Company's foreign currency denominated menetary assets and monetary lfabilities at the end of each reporting perfod are as follows :

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Particulars Currenc
i atin {Amaunt in Rs. Lakhs} L {Arsount in Rs. Lakhs)
Foreign Currency Fareign Currency
Trade Receivables usn 881,279.00 B6B.17 715,915.56 526.25
Other Current Liabilities uso - - 9,592.00 7.05

Foreigr Currency sensitivity analysis:

The following table details the Company's sensitivity to 2 5% increase and decrease in INR against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% is the rate used in crder 1o determine the sensitivity
analysis considering the past trends and expectation of the management for changes in the fareign currency exchange rate. The sensitivity analysis includes the outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 5% change in fareign currency rates. A positive number below indicates a increase in profit / decrease n less
and increase [n equity where the INR strengthens 5% against the relevant currency. For a 5% weakening of the INR against the relevant currency, there would be 2 comparable impact on the
profit or lass and equity and balance below would be negative,

[mpact on Profit and loss for the reporting period (Amaunt in Rs. Lakhs)
. For the year ended 31 March 2022 For the year ended 31 March 2021
Particulars
Increase by 5% Decrease by 5% Ircrease by 5% Decrease by 5%
usn 3341 (33.41) 25.56 {25.96)
Impact gn total equity as at the end of the reporting period {Amaunt in Bs. Lakhs)
. For the year anded 31 March 2022 For the year ended 31 March 2021
Particulars
Increase by 5% | Decrease by 5% Increase by 5% | Decrease hy 5%
usn 33.41 | {31.41) 25.96 | (25.98)
Note ¢

This is mainly attributable te the exposure of receivable and payable outstanding in the zbove mentioned currencies to the Company at the end of the reporting period.
Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair valuee {but fair value disclosures are required)

The Management considers that the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recognized in the financiaf statements approximate their fzir values.
Oftsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Company has not offset financial assets and financia! liabilities.

Fair Value Measurament
Financlal Assets and Financial Liabilities that are nat measured at fair value
Fair Val t (A t 5
. . =iV lielas aE{Am e in Rsabakhe] . N Value Technique and Key
Financial Assets f Firandial Liabilities Asat Fair Value Hierarchy
As at 31 March 2021 Inputs
31 March 2022
it i - B i

lnues.trner! |.n Subsidiaries - Dr. Agarwal's fye 24,650.62 10.559.01 ik Quoted l‘jletAsset value in
Hospital timited Active markets

The management assessed that financial assets and financiai lizhilities that are not measured at fair value in the financial statements eppreximate the fair

\,
%

3
i ( Chenna;
3| Chennai

¥ L




DR. AGARWAL'S HEALTH CARE LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

43 Ratios

The following are the analytical ratios for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 21 2021
Asat Lol
Particulars Numeratar Denominatar 31 March 2021 | variance
31 March 2022
(Refer note 18.4}
Current ratio Current assets Current lizbilities 1.06 1.07 -1%
Dabt Equity Total Debt* Sharehokder’s Equity 2.05 1.85 11%
Debt coverage ratio Earnings available for debt service  |Debt Service 1.64 2.24 -27%
Return on equity % Net Profits after taxes Average Shareholder’s Equity -1% -25% 7%
Trade receivables turnaver |Revenue Average Trade Receivahle 13.13 8.26 59%
ratip
Trade paysbles turnover  Purchases Average Trade Payables 1.84 1.27 46%
ratio
Met Capital Turnover ratio |Revenue Working Capital 54.93 44.47 24%
Net profit ratio Net Profit Revenue 0% -23% 98%
Returr: on capital Earning before interest and taxes Capital Employed 0,11 [0.07) -250%
employed
Return on investment Income generated from investment |Time weighted average - - -
investment
Inventory Turnover ratio | Cost of Goods sold Average Inventory 6.12 4.44 38%

*Total debt includes long term and short term borrowings and lease liabilities.
The ratios for the period ended 31 March 2022 is not comparable with the period ended 31 March 2021 due to the impact of COVID'19 in
previous year. Hence, explanations are not provided for change in the ratip which is more than 25% as compared to the preceding year.

43.A  Undisclosed Income
The Company does not have any transaction which are not recorded in the books of accounts that has keen surrendered or disclosad as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

43,8 Transactions with companies whose name is struck-off

The company has not entered into any transactions with entities whose name has been struck off under Secticn 248 of the Act or section 560 of
Companies Act, 2013,
43.C  Other disclosures
{ij The company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet
date.

{i} The Company neither has any immovahble property nor any title deads of Immaovable Property not held in the name of the Company.

{iii}  During the financial year, the Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment, Right of Use Asset and {ntangible Assets.

{iv] The Company has not granted any Loans or Advances to promoters, directars, KMPs and the related parties {as defined under Companies Act,
2013,) either severally or jointly with any othar person, that are:
{a) repayable on demand or
{b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment

{v) The Company does not have any intangible assets under development as at 31 March 2022, and hence disclosure under Schedule 1l is not
applicable.

[vi) There are no proceedings which have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions [Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.

{vii) The company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of INR 500 lakbs, in aggregate, at any point of time during the year, for a
period of 60 days, from banks en the basis of security of currenr assets but were not required to submit the quarterly returas or statements.
Hence, reporting on the guarterly returns or statements filed by the company with such tanks is not apglicable.

{viii} The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender

{ix} The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period, as at the year ended
31 March 2022.

[x)  Asat 31 March 2022, the Company has subsidiaries and complies with clausa {87} of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Coempanies {Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

{x1}  The company has not advanced or boaned or invested funds {either borrowed funds or share premium or any cther sources or kind of funds) to
any other person{s) or entity{ies}, including foreign entities {Intermediaries} with the understanding {whether recorded in writing or othetwise)
that the Intermediary shall ;-

{i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoaver by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Benefictaries) or
{it) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

{xii) The Company has not received any fund from any person{s) or entity(ies), ncluding fareign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding

(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall:-
(i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identifiad in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(ii] provide any guarantee, security or the ifke on behatf of the Ulsimate Beneficiaries
{xifi) The Campany neither has traded nor invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the Financial year.
{xiv} The Company does not have any investmeant properties as at 31 March 2022 as defined in Ind AS 40.
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44  Estimation uncertainity due to COVID-19 outbreak

The Company has considered internal and certain external sources of information including credit reports, econamic forecasts and industry reports up
to the date of approval of the financial statements in determining the impact on various elements of its financial statements relating to COVID-19
pandermic. The Company has used the principles of prudence in applying judgments, estimates and assumptions inclugding sensitivity analysis and
based on the current estimates, the Corpany expects to fully recover the carrying amount of trade receivables and right-to-use asset. The eventual
outcome of impact of the global health pandemic may be different from those estimated as on the date of approval of these financial statements.

45 Approval of Financial Statements

The Board of Directors of the Company has seviewed the realizable value of ail the current assets and has confirmad that the value of such assets in
the ordinary course of business will not be less that the value at which these are recognized in the financial statements. In addition, the Board has also
confirmed the carrying value of the non-current assets in the financial statements. The Board, duly taking into account all the relevant disclosures
made, has approved these financial statements in its meeting held on 12 August 2022.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr. Adil
Wholetim

, DG L

Mr, 8. Udhay Shankar
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Chennai
Date : August 12, 2022

Dr. Anosh Agarwal
Wholetime DBirector
DiN: 02636035

-

Mr#Thanikainathan Arumugam
Company Secretary
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of DR. AGARWAL’S HEALTH CARE LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of
Dr. Agarwal’s Health Care Limited {"the Parent”) and its subsidiaries, {the Parent and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) which includes the Group’s share of
loss in its  associate, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at
31 March 2022, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereafter referred to as “the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, and based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial
statements of the subsidiaries and an assaciate referred to in the Other Matters section
below, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Indian
Accounting Standards”), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2022, and their consolidated
profit, their consolidated total comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and
their consclidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consaolidated financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143 (10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group, its associate in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in
terms of their report referred to in the Other Matters section below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial
statements.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

¢ The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board report but does not include
the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

* Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

* In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information, compare with the financial statements of the
subsidiaries, and associate audited by the other auditors, to the extent it relates to these
entities and, in doing so, place reliance on the work of the other auditors and consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. Other information so far as it relates to the
subsidiaries and associate, is traced from their financial statements audited by other
auditors.

* If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these consclidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance
including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes
in equity of the Group including its Associate in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Group and its associate and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errar, which have been used
for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of
the Parent Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for assessing the ability
of the respective entities to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate their respective entities or to cease
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The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate
are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its
associate.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

* QObtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i} of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Parent has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabieness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the
Group and its associate to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group and its associate to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group and its associate to express an opinion on
e consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
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and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities or business
activities included in the consclidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors. For the other entities or business activities included in the
consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by the other auditors, such
other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit
work and in evaluating the results of our work; and {ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of two subsidiaries and the consolidated financial
statements of a subsidiary, whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 15,353.58
Lakhs as at 31 March, 2022, total revenues of Rs. 15,205.50 Lakhs and net cash inflows
amounting to Rs. 1,655.44 Lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. The cansolidated financial statements aiso include the
Group’s share of net loss of Rs. NIL for the year ended 31 March, 2022, as considered in
the consolidated financial statements, in respect of one associate, whose financial
statements have not been audited by us. These financial statements have been audited by
other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion
on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and associate, and our report in
terms of subsection (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiaries and associate is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with
respect to our reliance an the work done and the reports of other auditors.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of
the reports of other auditors on the separate financial statements of the subsidiaries and
associate referred to in the Other Matters section above we report, to the extent
applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

b} In our opinion, proper boaks of account as required by law relating to preparation
of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it
appears from our examination of thase boaks, returns and the reports of the other
auditors.

c} The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
including Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with
the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent
as on 31 March, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and
the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies and associate
companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies, its
associate companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March, 2022 from
being appeointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure A” which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Parent,
subsidiary companies, associate companies incorporated in India. Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
internal financial controls over financial reporting of those companies for the
reasons stated therein.

g} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Parent to its directors during the year is
in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.
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h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations
on the consolidated financial position of the Group and its associate.

ii) The Group and its associate did nat have any material foreseeable losses on long-
term contracts including derivative contracts.

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Parent, Subsidiaries (other than the listed
subsidiary) and associate company incorporated in India.

In respect of the listed subsidiary, there has been no delay in transferring amounts,
required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
subsidiary.

(iv) (a) The Managements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act, have represented to us and to the other auditors of such
subsidiaries respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Parent Company or any of such subsidiaries to or in any other person(s) or
entity{ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shail, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Parent/ Holding Company or any of such
subsidiaries (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{iv) (b} The management has represented, that , to the best of its knowiedge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have
been received by the Company from any person or entity(ies)/ , including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”) , with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise , that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iv) {c) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us and those performed by the
auditors of the subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or
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representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a)
and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

(v} The Parent has not deciared or paid any dividend during the year and has not
proposed final dividend for the year.

With respect to the matters specified in clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 and paragraph 4 of
the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“CARQO”/ “the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, according to the information
and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us and the
auditors of respective companies included in the consolidated financial statements to
which reporting under CARO is applicable, as provided to us by the Management of the
Parent Company, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the
respective auditors in the CARO reports of the said companies included in the
consolidated financial statements.

For Deloitte Haskins and Sells

Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 008072S)

M/

Ananthi Amarnath

(Partner)

Place: Chennai {(Membership No. 209252)
Date: 26 August 2022 (UDIN:22209252AQQCML7538)
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph “f” under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company
as of and for the year ended March 31, 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of Dr. Agarwal’s Health Care Limited (hereinafter referred to as
“Parent”) and its subsidiary companies and its associate company which are companies
incorperated in India, as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent, its subsidiary companies and its associate
company, which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the respective Companies considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india {ICAl). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Parent, its subsidiary companies and its associate company, which are
companies incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards
on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to abtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
‘;\%“ASKWS‘Q internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
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exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the
other auditors of the subsidiary companies and associate company, which are companies
incorporated in India, in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting of the Parent, its subsidiary companies, and
its associate company, which are companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed ta provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recarded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial contrals over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matters
paragraph below, the Parent, its subsidiary companies, and its associate company, which are
companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controis system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the criteria for internal




DR. AGARWAL'S HEALTHCARE LIMITED
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022

As at Asat
Particulars Note No. 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Amount In Rs. lakhs) | {Amount in Rs. lakhs}
I. ASSETS
{1} Non-current assets
{a) Property, plant and equipmenat 6 20,812.90 19,205.43
{b) Right of use asset 7 30,646.29 24,328.15
{c) Capital work-in-progress [ 2,843.40 1,086.92
{d) Goodwill B{a) 14,801.49 10,136.95
{e} Other Intangible assets 8(8) 3,875.54 3,220.84
(f) Financial assets
(i} Investments -] - -
(ii) Other financial assets 10 2.144,40 1,598.40
{g} Non-current incorme tax assets (Net) 11.1 2,285.35 1,666.58
{h) Deferred tax assets {Net) 12.1 1,414.96 1,321.81
{i} Other non-current assets 13 1,031.13 86.00
Total Non - current Assets 79,861.46 63,251.08
{2) Current assets
(a} Inventories 14 3,291.63 2,786,582
{b)] Financial assets
(ij Trade receivables 15 5,671.53 4,670.99
{li} Cash and cash equivalents 16{a} 9,962.12 5521.18
(fii} Other Bank halances 15(B} 1,705.84 973.50
(iv) Gther Financial Assets 17 462.02 550.87
(c) Other currant assets 13 1,654.34 944.29
Total current assets 22,747.43 15,447.65
TOTAL ASSETS 102,608.94 78,698.73
1. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
{1} Equity
{a) Equity Share capital 13 686.00 636.00
{b} Other equity 19 20,551.26 17,737.59
Equity attributable to cwners of the Company 21,237.26 18,423.59
Non Controlling Interest 38 2,143.34 1,446.24
TOTAL EQUITY 23,380.60 19,869.82
(2] Non-current liahllities
(=) Financial Lizbilitias
{i) Borrowings 0 25,398.4% 15,802.11
{il} Other financial liabilities 21 802.43 561.79
{ii7) Lease Lizhifities 4% 31,637.78 25,911.43
{b) Provisions 22 674,16 490.51
(c) Deferred tax lizbilities {Net] 121 127.86 12.10
Total Non - Current Liabilities 58,640.82 43,784.94
(3] Current liabilities
{a} Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 24 3,619.35 1,493.29
(ii) Lease Liabilities 42 2,675.82 2,432,783
(i) Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 25 873.42 =
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 25 8,032.74 745149
and small enterprises
(iv} Other financial liabilities 21 2,807.97 1,728.95
{b} Provisions 22 15021 192,69
(e} Other current liabilities 23 1,421.29 1,122.30
(d} Current Tax Liabititias {Net) 26 1,006 .45 622.46
Total Current Liabllities 20,587.52 15,043.96
TOTAL LIASILITIES 79,228.34 58,828.30
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 102,608.94 78,698.73

See agcompanying notes forming part of the Consolidated finsncial statements

In terms of cur report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn.No. Q080725

Ananthl Amarnath
Partner
Membership No.209252

Place : Chennai
Date : August 26, 2022

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors

GMSDQ

J

Dr. Adil Agarwal
Wholetjshe'\Director
DIN: 01074272

Mr. B. Udhay Shankar

Chief Financial Officer

Flace: Chennai

Date : August 12, 2022

Dr. Anash Agarwal
Wheletime Director
DIN: 02636035

v el s AR

Mr. Thanikalnathan Arumugam

Company Secretary

,




DR. AGARWAL'S HEALTHCARE LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars Note No. 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Amountin Rs. lakhs) | {Amount in Rs. fakhs}
1 Revenue from Operations 27 69,607.68 47,118.05
1l Other Income 28 1,787.94 563.90
I Total ncome (1+1) 71,395.62 47,711.95
IV Expenses
Purchase of Stock-in-trade 29 8,662.21 5,816.04
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 30 (261.41) 204.32
Employee benefits expense 31 13,981.58 11,554.39
Finance costs 32 4,539.81 4,152.59
Cepreciation and Amortisation Expense 33 9,764.08 9,474.49
Other expenses 34 29,031.06 21,345.17
Total expenses (Iv) 65,719.33 52,547.00
v Profit / {Loss) before Share in Net Loss of Associate and Tax {ll1-1V) 5,676.29 {4,835.05)
VIl Share of Loss of Associate 39 - {70.06)
VI Profit / {Loss) before tax (V+VI) 5,676.29 {4,905.11)
VI Tax expense
{a} Current tax 11.2 1,467.94 636.01
{b) Prior Year Tax 11.2 - 689.15
{C) Deferred tax 11.2 {107.58) {322.12)
1,360.36 1,003.04
1X  Profit / {Loss) for the Year (VII-VIII) 4,315.93 {5,908.15)
X Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
{2} Remeasurements of the defined benefit liabilities/(asset] 37 {159.71} (39.15}
{b) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified o profit or toss 11.2 20.09 1.00
Items that may he reciassified to profit or loss
(c) Exchange Difference on Translation of Foreign Operations {833.10} (886.28}
Total ather comprehensive {Loss) for the year (972.72) {824.43)
Xl Total comprehensive profit / (loss) for the year {IX+X) 3,343.21 (6,832.58)
Profit / (Loss) for the year attributahle to:
Owners of the Company 3,769.34 {5,547.83}
Non controlling interests 545.59 (360.32}
4,315.93 {5,508.15)
Other comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company {955.69) {925.15)
Non controlling interests (17.03) 0.72
{972.72) (924.43)
Total comprehensive profit / {Loss) for the year attributable te:
Owners of the Company 2,813.66 {6,472.98)
Non controlling interasts 529.55 {359.60}
3,343.21 {6,832.58)
Earnings per equity share [Face value of Rs.1Q/- each) 43
{a) Basic {in Rs.) 54.95 (80.87}
{b) Diluted (in Rs.) 54.95 (20.87}

See accompanying notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn.No. 0080725

Ananthi Amarnath
Partner
Membership No.209252

DIN: 01074272

e

Nr. B. Udhay Shankar
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Chennai
Date : August 12, 2022

Place : Chennai
Date : August 26, 2022

Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Beard of Directors

Dr. Anosh Agarwal
Wholetime Director

DIN: 02636035
R
PG

Mr. Thantkainathan Arumugam
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DR. AGARWAL'S HEALTHCARE LIMITED
Consolldated Cash Flow Statemant for the year ended 31 March 2022

Year ended Year ended
Particulars Note No. 31 Maich 2022 31 March 2021
{Amount Rs. in Lakhs) {Amount Rs. in Lakhs)
A. Cash flows from operating activities
Profit / {Loss) after tax for the year 4,315.93 {5,908.15)
Adjustments for:
income taxes {current and deferred taxes) 11.2 1,360.36 1,003.04
Depraciation and Amortization Expenses 33 5,766.08 9,474.49
Finance Costs / Inmterest Expense on financial liabilities at amortized cost 32 4,486.16 £,152.59
Interest Incorne - Bank Deposits 28 (126.58) (59.34)
Loss on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment {iet) 23 23.81 61.51
Loss from Assets discarded 34 - 80.77
share of Post Acguisition joss of Associate E 70.06
Allowance for Expected Credit Losses 34 1,110.29 1,220.90
Unrealised Foreign Exchange [GaTn} 28 (819.19) (96.36)
Net gain arising on Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 28 - -
Provision for Gratuity & Compensated absence 22 - -
Bad Debts written off 34 - 9.09
Impairment Loss on Intangibie assets 33 370.29 -
Liabilities / Provisions no longer required written back 28 {228.49} -
Net gain on termination of right-of-use assets 28 {243.82} {320.40}
Operating Profit before Working Capital and Other changes 20,014.64 9,688.20
Movements in warking capital:
Decrease / {Increase) in Inventories 12 {504.81) 557.03
{Increase) in Trade Receivables 15 (1,291.64) {551.12)
Decrease in Loans and Other Financial assets 10,17 {476.23) 108.06
{Increase) / Decrease in Other Assets {Current and Non Current) 13 {710.05) {61.46)
Increase in Trade Payables 25 1,454.74 1,062.37
{Decrease) f Increase in Other Financial Liabilities {Current and Non Current} 21 396.80 {369.64)
Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions (Current and Non Current) 22 (18.44) 35.05
Increase / {Decrease) in Other Liabilities (Current) 23 298.99 196.87
Changes in Working Capital and Other changes {850.54) 577.16
19,164.00 10,665.36
Incomne taxes (paid) - net of refunds 11,28 {1,559.34) {749.47)
Net cash generated by operating activities 17,604.66 9,915.89
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Capital Expenditure on Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 6,8 {15,245.85) (12,655.34)
Proceeds from Sate of Property, Plant and Equipment §, 28, 34 49,70 9,330.13
Increase in Bank balances not considerad as Cash and cash equivalents 16(8} {734.05) {393.40)
Interest Received fram Bank deposits 17,28 14566 61.68
Net cash used in investing activities (15,784.54) (3,656.93)
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Long-term borrowings taken 20 8,628.57 2,432.22
Long-term borrowings repaid 20 {1,503.83} {241.84)
Short-term borrowings taken 24 454.52 1,251.30
Short-term borrowings repaid 24 {387.36} {1,423.31)
Dividend paid (including tax thereon) {0.95) (4.19)
Finance costs paid on borrowings 32,21 {2,173.60) (1,906.79)
Proceeds from issue of Compuisory Convertible Preference of the company 18.4,19 147579 -
Proceeds from issue of Dekentures of the company 20 2,008.39 -
Payment of lease liabilities 42 {5,047.90) (3,818.10)
Met cash used in financing activities 3,453.63 _{3,710.71)




DR. AGARWAL'S HEALTHCARE LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

1

Corporate Information

Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited (‘the Company'} was incorporated on 18 April 2010 and Is primarily engaged in running, ownirg and managing eye care hespitals, opticals, pharmacies, etc. and related
services,

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financiaf statements of the Company and its subsidiaries have been prepared in accardance with the indian Accounting Standards issued and natified by the Ministry of Corparate Affairs
under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 [as amended).

(i) Principtes of Consalidation

A, Subsidiary

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

fi) The financhal statements of the subsidiary companies, used in the consalidation are drawn upte the same reparting date as that of the Company i.e., 31 March 2022

{iij  The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies have been combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together like ltems of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after
eliminating intra-group batances, intra-group transactions and resulting unrealized prefits or losses, unless cost cannot be recovered.

i) The excess of cost to the Group of Its Tnvestments in the subsidiary company over 7ts share of equity of the subsidiary company, at the dates on which the investments in the subsidiary company were
made, is recognized as 'Goodwill’. On the other hand, where the share of equity in the subsidiary company as on the date of investmant is in excess of cost of investments of the Group, it is
reconized as 'Capital Reserve' and shown under the head 'Reserves & Surplug’, in the consolidated financial statements.

{iv]  Nen-Controlling Interest (NCIj in the Net Assets of the Consolidated Subsidiaries conslsts of:

{a) The amount of Equity attributable to helders of NCI at the date on which the investment in the Subsidiary is made; and

(b} The NCPs share of mavements in Equity since the date the Parent Subsidiary relationship came into existence.

NCI share in the Net Profit / {Loss) for the year of the Consolidated Subsidiaries is identified and adjusted ageinst the Profit After Tax of the Group even If this results in the NCI having a deficit
balance.

(v} Accounting treatment for Goodwlll on busiress combinations has been described in detail in Note 4.7 below.

() The consolidated finandial statements have been prepared using uniferm accountlng pelicies for like transactions and other evenis in simifar circumstances and are presented to the extent possible,
in the same manner as the Company's separate financial statements.

B. Associate

The investment in the associate companies has been accounted under the equity method as per IndAS 28 — ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ netified under the Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended].

An Investment in an associate Is accounted for using the equity method from the date on which the investea becomes an assodiate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recagnized as goadwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the ipvestment.
Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognized directly in equity as capital reserve in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

Details of entities consalidated
Following companies have been considered in the preparation of the cansolidated financial statements:

Country of Proportion of Preportion of
5No Name of the entity Relationship . Qwnership - As at | Qwnership - As at
(nOTPOENON | ) march2022 | 31 March 2021

1 Dr, Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited {"DAEHL"} Subsidiary India F1.75% 71.75%)
2 Orhit Health Care Services (Mauritius) Ltd Subsidiary Mauritius 100.00%) 100.00%
£} Orhit Healtheare Services International Subsidtary of 2 {ahave) Mauritius 100.00%) 100.00%)

Operations Ltd
4 Orbit Healthcare Services {Ghana) Limfted Subsidrary of 3 {above) Ghana 100.00%) 100.00%;
5 Orbit Health Care Services Madagasear SARL Subsidrary of 3 {above) Mad. B80.00% 80.00%
& Orkit Health Care Services bi Subsidiary of 3 {ahove) Mozambigu 97.00%] 97.00%|
7 Orbit Thelish Health Care Services Nigeria Subsidiary of 3 {above) Nigeria 60.00%) 60.00%|
g Qrkit Health Care Services Limited, Rwanda Subsidiary of 3 {above) Rwanda 100,00%] 100.00%|
g Orbit Health Care Services (Tanzaniz) Umlted  |Subsidiary of 3 (abave) Tanzaniz 100.00%| 100.00%)
10 Orkit Health Care Services [Zambia) Limited Subsidfary of 3 {abave) Zambia 100.00%)| 100.005%%)
11 Orbit Health Care Services (Uganda) Limited Subsldiary of 3 {abave} Uganda 100.00%)| 100.00%%)
12 Orkit Health Care Services {Kenya) Umited Subsidrary of 3 {above) Kenva 100.00% 100.00%;
13 Advanced Eye Institute Private Limited (Merged |Subsidiary india 100.00%)

with AHCL giving effect from 01st April 2021) NA|

{Refer Note 45 (C}
14 Elisar Life Science Private Limited Subsidiary india 76.00%; 76.00%)|
15 IdeaRX Services Private Limnited Assoriate india 34,71%, 28.00%)
15 Aditya lyot Eye Hospital Private Lid (wef Oct"21} |Substdiary India 51.00%; NA




DR. AGARWAL'S HEALTHCARE LIMITED

Notes to the € i { Financial $tatements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

3

4.1

42

43

4.4

45

AS KHWS ets (or disposal proups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with ind AS 105 Non-current Assets Held for 3ale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accorda

Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards nofified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued
thereaftar.

The financial statements wers authorised for the issue by the Company's Board of Directors on August 12, 2022
Except for the changes below, the Group has consistently applied accounting policies to all periads.
(i} Amendments to Ind AS 1 and (nd AS & ~ Definition of "material”

The Group has adopted the amendments te Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8 for the first time in the current year. The amendments mzke the definftion of material in Ind AS 1 easier to understand and are not intended
te alter the underlying concept of materiality in Ind ASs. The concept of ‘obscuring’ material information with immaterial information has been included as part of the new definition.

The threshold far materiality infiuencing users has been changed from 'could influence’ to 'could reasenably be expected to influence’. The definition of material Tn Ind AS & has been replaced by a reference
to the definition of material ir Ind AS 1. In addition, the MCA amended ather Standards that contain the definition of 'material’ or refer to the term 'material’ to ensure consistency.

TFhe zdoption of the amendments has not had any material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in these financial statemenis.

{ii} On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") through a notification, amended Schedule H1 of the Companies Act, 2013, The amendments revise Division |, 11 and Il of Schedule Il and are
applicable from April 1, 2021. Key amendments relating to Division || which related to companies whose financizl statements are required to comply with Companies {Indian Accounting Standards] Rules
2015 are;

Balance Sheaet:

= Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head “financial liabilities”, duly distinguished as current or non-current.
« Certain additional discl es in the it of changes in equity such as changes in equity share capital due to prior period errers and restated balances atthe beginning of the current reporting period.

# Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promaters

» Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-propress and intangible asset under devetopment.

* |f a company has not used funds for the specific purpase for which it was horrawed from banks and financial institutions, then disclosure of details of where it has been usad

= Specific disclosere under ‘additional regulatory requirement’ such as compliance with approved schemes of arrangements, compliance with number of layers of companies, title deeds of immevahle
property not held in the name of company, loans and advances to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel {KMP} and related parties, details of benami property held etc.

Statement of profit and loss:
+ Additicnal disclosures relating fo Corporate Sacial Responsibility {C9R), undisclosed income and crypte or virtual currency specified under the head ‘additional information’ in the notes forming part of the

standalone financial statements.

The amendments are extensive and the Group will evaluate the same to give effect o therm as required by law.

{fii} The Indian Parfiament has approved the Code on Sacial Security, 2020 which may impact the employee benefit expenses of the Group. The effective date from which the changes are applicable is yet to
be natified and the rules for quantifying the financial impact are yet to be determined. The Group will give appropriate jmpact in the financial results once the code becomes effective and related rules to
determine the financial impact are notifled.”

Significant Accounting Policles

Basis of Preparation and ion of i Firancial 5

These financial statements have been prepared on the histerical cost basis, except for certzin financial instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in
accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an zsset or paid to transfer a liability in 2n orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardiess of whather that price is
directty observable or esti ] using another valuation technique, In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liakility if market
participants would take those characteristics inte account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value messurements are categorized into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are chservable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

= Level 1inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or labilities that the entity can access at the measuremant date;

* Level 2 inputs are Tnputs, ather than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are ohservable for the asset or lizbility, either directly or indirectly; and

= Level 3 inpus are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Cash and Cash Equivalents (for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement]

Cash comprises cash on hand, cheques and demand drafts on hand, balances with banks in current accounts / demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term balances {with an original maturity of three

months or less fram the date of acquisition), highly liquid Investments that are readily convertible into knewn amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank balances
other than the balance included in cash and cash equivalents represents balance on account of unpaid dividend and margin money deposit with banks and kalances in earmarked ESCROW accounts,

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / {loss) after entrsordinary items and tax is adjusted far the effects of transactions of nan-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past
or future cash recelpts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated based on the availzble information.

Operating Cycle

Based en the nature of products / activities of the group and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the group has determined its operating eycle as
12 manths for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and nan-current.

Buskiess Combinations
Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business cambination is measured at fair valus, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-

date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests fssued by the Group in exchange of control of the
atquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generaily recognized in profit or lass as incurred.

Atthe acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognized at their fair values, except that:

(i) deferred tex assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are recognized and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Taxes and Ind
Benefits respectively; and
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4.6 Property, Plant & Equipmant

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss {if any}. The cost of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises fis purchase price net of any
trade discourds and rebates and includes taxes, duties, freight, incidental expenses related to the acquisition and Installation of the assets cancerned and excludes duties and taxes that are recoverable from
tax authorifies, Borrowing costs paid during the period of construction in respect of borrewed funds pertaining to construction / acquisition of qualifying praperty, plant and eguipment is adjusted to the
carrying cost of the underlying property, plant and equipment.

Any part or companents of property, plant and equipment which are separately identifiable and expected to have a useful life which is different from that of the main assets are capitalized separately, based
ai the technical of the Manag

Advances paid towards the acquisition of Property, Plant 2nd Equipment outstanding at sach balance sheet date are disdosed as "Capital Advances” under Other Non Current Assets and cost of Property,
Plant and Equipment not ready to use before such date are disclesed under “Capital Work- in- Progress”.

Depreciation

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset less its estimated residual value,

Depreciation on tangible property, plant and equipment has been provided on the written down value method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule |l to the Companies Act, 2013.

Improvements to Leasehold Premises is amortized over the remaining primary lease pericd.

Depreciation Js accelerated on property, plant and equipment, based on their condition, usability etc., as per the technical estimates of the Management, where necessary.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecagnized upon dispasal or when no future ecenomic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of

Profitand Loss.
Fartransition to Ind AS, the Group had elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property, plant and equipment recognized 25 on 1 April 2016 {transition date] measurad as per the previous GAAP

and use that carrying value as its deemed costs as of the transition date.

4.7 Goodwill
Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-centrolling interests In the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previcusly held equity
Interest in the acguire {if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifizble assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabillties of the acquiree are assigned ta those units, Cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annuzlly, or
more freguently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. if the recoverable amcunt of the cash generating unit 1s less than its carrying amount, the impairment lass is allocated first to
rechice the carrying amaunt of any goadwill ailocated ta the unit and then to the other assats of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Aay impairment loss for goodwill is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. An Impairment foss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwilt has been allocated ta a cash-generating unit and part of the operatian within that unit is dispased of, the goodwill asscciated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount
of the operatiocn when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circurnstances is measured bzsed on the refative values of the dispesed operation and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.

Guoadwill ether than Goodwill recoenized on Business Combination carries a finite usefuf life of 4 vears and subseauently carried out 3t cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses.
4.8 Intangitle Assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment {osses (if any). The intangible assets are amortized aver
their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, commencing from the date of asset available to Group for its use. The useful life considered for the intangible assets are as under:

Particulars Useful Lives

Software License period or three years, whichever is lower
Trademarks Ten years

Customer Relationship Five years

Research & Hevelepment Cost Three years

Non-Compete Agresment Agread terms or five years , whichever is lower

The estimated useful life and amaortization method are reviewed at the end of each reporting perlod, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on prospactive basis. Intangible assets
with indefinite useful livas that are acquired separately are carried at cast less accumulated fmpairment losses.

An Intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from use of disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset measured as the
difference between the net disposat proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset as recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecegnized.

4.9 Research and Development Expenditure
Expenditure on research activities are recognized as expense in the period in which It Is incurred.
Aninternally penerated intangible asset arising from develapment (ar from develapment phase of an internal praject) is recognized if, and only If, 2ll the foliowing have been demonstrated:
a} the technical feasibility of campleting the intangible assets so that it will be available for use or sale;
b) the intention te complete the intangible asset and use or sell if;
¢} the ability fo use or sell the intangible asset;
dj how the intangible asset will generate prabable feture economic henefits;
e) tha availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the Intangible asset; and
) the ability to reliably measure the expenditure atiributable to the intanglble asset during its development.

The amount Initially recognized for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred fram the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated asset can be recognized, development expenditure is recognized in the staternent of prafit and loss in the period In which it is incurred.

Subsequent to fnitial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated amartization and accumulated impairment |osses, on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately.

4.1

o

tmpairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets

At the end of each reporting pericd, the group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there s any indication that those assets have suffered an Impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment less [if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
.amaunt of an individual asset, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset balongs. Where a reasonable and censistent basis of allecation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allecated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and i assats not yat available for use are tested for impairment at feast annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.
Recoversble armount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell end value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash fiows are discounted to their present value using 2 pre-tax discount-rate
that reflects current market azsessmentz of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjustec.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrving amount of the asset {or cash-generating unit) is reduced to iis recoverable
amaunt. An impalrment lass is recognized fmmediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at 2 revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease,

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset [or a cash generating unit] is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but s
Tng amount does not exceed the carrying amaunt that would have been determined had no impairment [oss been recognized for the asset [or cash generating unit} in prior
&‘f ent loss is recognized immediately in profit or lass.

}'gfp policy for impairment of Goodwill is given in Note 4.7 above.
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4.1z

4.14

Inventories

Inventory of Traded Soods comprising Opticals, Pharmaceutical Products, Contact Lenses and Accessories, Consumables and Provisions - Food ltems are valued at lower of cest ascertained using the First-in-
First-out method and net realizable vatue. Cost includes cost of purchase, freight, taxes, duties and other charges incurred for bringing the goads to the present location and condition and are net of
VAT/GST/other tax credits, where applicable.

et realizable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale

Due allowance is estimated and made for unusable/ non-szleable/ expired items of Inventory wherever necessary, based on the past experience of the group and such allowances are adjusted against the
inventary carrving value.

Revenue Recognition

(i) Revenue from Operations
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to custamers in an amaunt that reflects
the consideration we expect to received in exchanga for thase products or services. Sales and Service Income exclude Goods and Sarvice Tax {G5T) and are net of trade / volume discounts, where applicable.

Sate of preducts comprising of Sale of Optical Frames and Lens, Pharmaceutical Products, Contact Lens and related accessories is recognized on delivery of items to the customers and where the risks and
rewards are passed on to the customers.

Sale of services comprises Income from Consultation, Surgeries, Treatments and Investigations performed are recognized on rendering the related services.

Dther Operating Income from medical suppert services provided by the Company and is recognized on rendering the refated services.

{ii) Other incame

Interestincome from a financlal asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the group and the amount of incame can be measured relfably. Interest income is accrued on 2
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash recefpts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition. Dividend fncame is accounted for when right ta recaive it is established,

Foreign Currency Transactions

Init{al Recognition:
Cr initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the
transaction.

Treatment of Exchanpe Differences:
Al monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency are restated at the end of accounting period at the closing exchange rate and exchange differences on restatement of all monetary iterns are recognized
in the Statement of Profit aned Lass.

Lonsolidation of subsidiarles situated in foreign couniries:
On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into INR st the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their Statements of Profit and Loss are translated at

exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. For practical reasons, the group uses an average rate te translate income and expense items, if the average rate approximates the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on transiation for consalidation are recognized in Other Compreheansive Incomne {OCI}. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of
OC] relating to that particular fereign operation is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Employee Benefits
Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits:

i} Defined Benefit Flans:
Employee defined beneflt plans include gratuity.

For defined henefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projectad unit credit methad, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual
reporting pericd. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset calling {if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected
immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recegnized in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognized in other comprehensive income is
reflected immediately in retained earnings and is net reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost Is recognized in the Statement of profit or loss in the periad of a plan amendment. Met [nterest is
calculated by applying the discaunt rate at the beginning of the pericd to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

Defined benefit costs are categerized as follows:

- Service cost {including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and lesses on curtailments and settlements);
- Net interest expense or income; and

- Rameasurement

The group presents the first two components of defined benefit cosis in profit or lass in the line jter 'Employee benefits expense’. Curtalment gains and lesses are accounted {or as past service costs.

The retirement benefit abligation recaghized in the balance sheet represents the actual defidt or surplus in the group's defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the
present value of any econormic benefits avallable in the form of refunds from the plzas or reductions in future coniributions ta the plans.

Alisbility for a termination benefit is recognized at the eariier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when the entity recognizes any related restructuring costs.

Certain entities of the group make contributicn to a scheme administered by the insurer to discharge gratuity lisbilities to the employees.

Shart-term and other long-term employea henefits
A liability fs recognized for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave apd sick Teave in the period the related service js rendered at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected te be paid in exchange far that service.

Liabil

es recognized in respect of short term employea benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Lizbillties recegnized in respect of other long term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected te be made by the group In respect of services
provided by employees up to the reporting date.

i) Defined Contrikution Plans:
£mployee defined contribution plans include provident fund and Employee state insurance,

Erovident Fund and Employes State Insurance:
Certain employees of the group receive benefits from Provident Fund and Employee's State Insurance, which are defined contribution plans. Both, the employee and the group make monthly contributions

o the plan, each equating to a specified percentage of employee’s hasic salary, The group has no further obligations under the plan beyend its menthly contributions.
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4.15 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs include interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred and exchange differences ng from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest
cost. Costs in connection with the borrowing of funds te the extent not directly related te the acquisition of qualifying assets are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the tenure of the loan.
Borrowing casts, allocated to and utilized for qualifying assets, pertaining to the periad frem commencement of activities relating te construction / development of the qualifying asset upto the date of
capitalization of such asset are added to the cost of the assets. Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended and charged ta the Statement of Profit and Loss during extended pericds when active
development activity on the qualifying assets is interrupted.

Interest income eamed on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the horrewing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recegnized in profit or loss in the peried in which they are incurred.

4,16 Government Grants, Subsidies and Export Incentives
Government grants and subsidies are recognized when there is reascnable assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attached to them and the grants [ subsidies will be recefved.
Government grants whose primary condition is that the Greup should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire capltal assets are presented by deducting them from the carrying value of the assets. The
grant is recognized as income over the fife of a depreciable asset by way of a reducad depreciation charge,
Expart benefits, if any, are accounted for in the year of exports based or: eligibllity and when there is no uncertainty in receiving the same.
Government grants in the nature of premoters’ contribution like investment subsidy, where no repayment is ordinarily expected In respect thereof, are accounted in Reserves and Surplus in Other Equity.
Government grants i the form of non-monetary assets, givep at a concessfopal rate, are recorded on the basis of their acquisition cost, In case the non-monetary ssset is given free of cast, the grant is

recorded at a nominal value.

Other government grants and subsidies are recognized as income over the periods necessary to match them with the casts for which they are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis.

4.1

-

Segment Reparting

Operating segments reflect the group's management structure and the way the financial information is regularly reviewed by the group's Chief operating decision maker [CODM). The CODM considers the
buslness from both business and product perspective based on the dominant source, nature of risks and returns and the internal organization and management structure. The operating segmerits are the
segments for which separate financial informatian js available and far which operating profit / (loss) amaunts are evaluated regularly by the executive Management in deciding how te allocate resources
and in assessing performance.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reparting are in line with the accounting policies of the graup. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment fabilities have been
identified to segments on the basis of their relaticnship to the operating activities of the segment.

Inter-segmeant revenue, where applicable, is sccounted on the basls of transactions which are primarily determined based on market / fair value factors.

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the group as 2 whale and zre not allocable te segments an reasonable basis are included under “unallacated revenue f expenses / assets / liabflities”.

4.18 Leases
The Company’s lease asset classes consists of leases for bulldings. The Company, a2t the inceptfon of a contract, assesses whether the contract is a lease or not lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right ta control the use of an identified asset for a time in exchange for a consideratien. This policy had been applied to contracts existing and entered into on or after 1 Aprit 2019,

The Company recognises a rfight-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease [ability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs te dismantle and remove the underlying asset or te restore the
undearlying asset or the sjte on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the end of the lease term.

The lease Habillty is inftially measured at the present value of the lease paymenis that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. It is
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a changa in an index or rate, if thera is a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expacied to be payable under a residual
value guarantes, or if the C v changes its 1t of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease liability Is remeasured In this way, a corresponding
adjustment [s made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss [ the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced te zero.

The Company has elected not to recegnise right-of-use assets and lease liabifities for short-termn leases that have alease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Campany recognises
the lease payments asscriated with these |eases as an expense over the ease term.

4.1!

-]

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted EPS is computed by di
have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

iding the net profit after tax by the weighted averasge number of equity shares considered for deriving basic EPS and also weighted average number of equity shares that could

Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversfon to equity shares would decrease earnings per shzre from continuing operations. Dilutive potentlal equity shares are desmed
converted a5 of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. The dilutive potentizl equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued atfair value (f.e.
average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and petentially dilutive equity
shares are adusted for share splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate.
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4£.20 Taxes on Income
Incame tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payakle and deferred tax.

Current tax expense for the year is ascertained an the basis of assessahle profits computed in accordance with the provisions of the Incoma-tax Act, 1961 and with the provisions of the respective tax laws of
each subsidiary.

Minimum Alternate Tax {MAT} pald as current tax expense in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the form of adjustment to future income tax lakility, is cansiderad as tax
credit and recoghized as deferred tax asset when there is reasonable certainty that the group will pay normal income tax in the future years and future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the
group. The camying amount s reviewed at the end of each reporiing period and reduced ta the extent that it is no lenger probable that sufficient taxable profits will be ayailable to allow all or part of the
asset {o be recovered

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabiities in the Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liakilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that ft is
prohable that taxable profits will be avallable against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and [iabilities are pot recognized if the temporary difference
arises from the initizl recognition {ather than in a business combinaticn) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewad at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset ta be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liahility is settied or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting pericd.

The measurement of deferrad tax [{abilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover er settle
the rarrvine amount of its assets and llabilities.

4.2

4

Pravisions, Contingent Liabilities and Cantingent Assets

A provision is recognized when the group has a present abligation {legal or constructive} as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources will ke required to settle the abligation in
respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are determined based on the best estimate reguired to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date and measured using the present value of
cash flows estimated te settie the present obligations {when the effect of time value of money is materfal). These are reviewsd at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best astimates.

Cantingent liakility Ts disclosed for

{i} Possible okligations which will be confirmed only by future events not whaolly within the control of the group or

{if} Present abligations arfsing fram past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a relfable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be
inade.

The group does not recognize a contingent Tabfity but discioses its existence in the Consalidated Financial Statements. Contingent assets are only disclosed when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow tc the entity.

4.22 nsurance claims

M

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of clalms admitted / expected to be admitted and to the extent that the amaunt recoverable can be measured relisbly and it is reasonable to expect ultimate
collection.

4,23 Financial Instruments

Initial Recognition

Financial assets and financial liablities are recognized when the group becornes & party to the contractual provisians of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are [nitially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attribitable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other then financial assets and financial liabilities at fair vaiue through profit or loss
(FVTPL)) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and
financial lizbilities at fair value through profit and loss are immediately recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

4.23.1 Financial Assets
{a} Recognition and initizl measurement
(i) The group inRially recognizes loans and advances, deposits and subordinated liabilities en the date on which they originate. All other financial instruments (including regular way purchases and sales of

financial assets) are recognized an the trade date, which is the date on which the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A financial asset or liability is initially measured at
fair value plus, for an item not at FYTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

{h) Classification of firancéal assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified to be measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI} or FYTPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated at FVTPL:

+ The asset is held within 2 business modal whose objective [s to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

+ The centractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
For the impairment policy in financial asseis measured at amortized cost, refer Note 4.23.1 {2}

A debt instrument is classified as FVTOC! only if It meets both of the following conditfons and Is not recognized at FVTFL:

+ The asset is held within a businass model whese objective is achieved by both collecting cantractual cash flews and selling financial assets; and
= The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates te cash flows that are solely payments of principal and Interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other fi ial assets are Iy measured at fair value.
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{c) Effective interest method

The effective interest methed is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over tha relevant period. The effective interest rate s the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected Iife of the debt instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter periad, to the grass carrying amounit on initial recognition.

Inceme is recognized an an effective interest basfs for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FYTPL. Interest income 15 recognized in profit or foss and is included in the “Other
Income” fne item.
{d} Financial assets at fair value through profit or Wss (FYTPL)

Debt Instruments that do aot meet the amortized cost criterla or FYTOCH eriteria (see above) are measured at FYTPL In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortized cost criteria or the FYTCCI criteria
but are designated as at FYTPL are measured at FYTPL

A financial asset that meets the amortized cost criteria or deht instruments that meet the FYTOC! criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a messurement of recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liahillties or recognizing the gains and lesses on them on different bases. The group has not designated any
debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Financizl assets at FYTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains ar losses arisihg on remeasurement recegnized in profit or loss. The net gzin or loss recognized in
profit or lass incarporates any dividend or interest =arned on the financial asset and is included in the 'Other income' line item. Dividend en financial assets at FYTPL is recognized when the group's right to
receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow fo the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment
and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

{e) Impairment of financial assets

The group applies the expecied credit loss model for recognizing impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortized cost, debt instruments at FYTOCI, trade receivables and other cantractual rights
to receive cash or other financial asset.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default eccurring as the weights. Credit loss Is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the group In accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the group expects to recsive (l.e. =il cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate {or credit-adjusted effective
Interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets). The group estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial Instrument (far example, prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

The group measures the loss alfowance for a finendial instrument at an amount equai to the jifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financlal Instrument has Incressed significantly since initial
recognition, If the credit risk on a financial insirument has not increased significantly since initizl recognition, the group measures the loss aliowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-
month expected credit losses. 12-month expected cradit losses are partion of the ife-time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if default oceurs within the 12
months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 maonths.

For trade receivables, the group always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss afiowance for
trade receivables, the group has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expetted credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes Into account histarical
credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-laoking infarmaticn.

{f) Berecagnition of financial assets

The group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another party. If the group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to contral the transferred asset, the group recognizes its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay, If the group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of & transferred financial asset, the group centinues to
recognize the financial asset and alse recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds recelved.

On derecognition of a financial asset in Its entivety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumuiative gain or loss that had
been recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in profit or loss if such gai ar loss would have otherwise been recognized in profit or loss on dispesal of that
financial asset.

©On derecognition of z financial asset other than in its entirety {e.g. when the group retains an option ta repurchase part of a transferred asset), the group allocates the previous carrying amaunt of the
financial asset between the part it confinues to recognize under continuing invalvement, and the part it no longer recognizes on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer.
The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that s no longer recognized and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognized and ary cumulative gain or loss
allocated to it that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognized in profit or loss on disposal of that financiat
asset A cumulative gain or lass that had been recognized in ather comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be recagnized and the part that is no longer recognized on the basis
of the relative fair values of those parts.

{2 Foreign exchange gains and tosses:
The fair value of financial zssets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period.

= Far forsign currency denominated financial assets measured at amartized cost and FYTPL, the exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss.

+ Changes in carrying amount of investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI relating to changes in foreign currency rates are recognized in other comprehensive income.

+ Forthe purp ofr izing foreign gains or losses, FVTOC! debt instruments are treated as financial assets measured at amortized cost. Thus, the exchange differences on the amortized cost
are recognized In the Statement of Profit and Lass and ather changes in the fair value of FVTOLI financial 2ssets are recognized in other comprehensive income




DR. AGARWAL'S HEALTHCARE LIMITED

Motes to the C lidated Financial for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

4.23.2 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUETY INSTRUMENTS

(a) Classification as debt ar equity
Financial liabilities and eguity instruments issved by the group are dassTfied according to the substance of the cantractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liakility and an equity
instrument.

(b} Equity instruments

An equity instrument 15 any coniract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its lizbilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue casts, Repurchase of the group’s own equity instruments is recognized and deducted directly in equity. No gain or Joss is recagnized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Eroup's own equity instruments.

(c} Financial Liabilities at FWTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FYTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financizl liability is classified as hetd for trading if:

o it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

= oninitlal recognition it is part of a portfolic of identified financial instruments that the group manages together and has 2 recent actual pattern of shert-term profit-taking;

Afinancizl liability other than a financial [iability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon fnitial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reducas a measuremant ar recognition incapsisteney thai would otherwise arise; or

= the finandial lizbility forms part of a group of financial assets or financfal liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in acrordance with the group's
d d risk manag arlr strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;

{d) Finameial iabilities ¥ d at ized cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated a5 at FYTPL are measured at amortized cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities
that are subsequently measured at amortized cost are determined based an the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalized as part of costs of an asset is included in the finance costs’
fine item.

The effective interest methed is 2 method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial fiability and of allocating interest expense cver the relevant period. The effective Interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments {including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected kfe of the financial Kability, or {where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on inftial recognition.

{e) Fareign exchange gains and losses
For financial liabilities that are denominated in a fereign currency and measured at amortized cost at the end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on
amortized cost of the instruments and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

The fair value of the financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that fereign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reparting period. For financial liabfities that
are measured at FVTPL, the fereign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses recognized in the Statement of profit and Loss.

{f) Derecognition of financial Habilitias
The group derecognizes financia? liabilities when, and only when, the group’s abligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial Hability
derecognized and the consideration paid and payable Ts recognized the Statemnent of Profit and Loss.

4,24 Goaods & Service Tax Input Credit

Goods & Serivee Tax Input Credit is accounted for in the books during the period in which the underlying goods and services raceived is accounted and where there is ho uncertainty in availing/utilizing the
same.

4.2

0

Exceptional ltems

Exceptional items are fiems of income and expenses which are of such size, nature or incidence that their separate disclosure is relevant to explain the perfarmance of the Group.

5 Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of Cansolidated Financial Statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management ta make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and

the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the accompanying disclosures. Lincertainty gbout the assumptions and estimates could result in sutcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying value of assets or liabilities affected in future periads.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the periad in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical jud in applying ing policies that have the maost signfficant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements are included in the following notes:

(i} Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 4.6}

{11} Assets and obligations relating to employee benefits (Refer Nate 4.14})

{ifi) Valuation and measurement of income taxes and deferred taxes (Refer Note 4.20}
{iv} Provisions for disputed statutory and other matters,

{¥) Valuation of Goodwill and Intangible Assets on Business Combinations

[wi) Impairment of Goodwill {Refer Note 4.7)

Allowance for expected credit losses {Refer Note 4.23.1 ()]

{viii} Fair value of Financial Assets and Liabilities (Refer Mote £4.23.1and 4,23.2)

Determination of functional currency:
Currency of the primary ecenomic environment in which the Company operates {“the functional currency”] is Indian Rupee (INR} in which the company primarily generates and expends cash. Accordingly,
the Management has assessed its functional currency to be Indian Rupee (INR).
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DR. AGARWAL'S HEALTH CARE LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

7 RIGHT-DF-USE ASSETS

{Amount Rs. In Eakhs]

Particulars As &t As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Larrying amaunts of:

Right-of-use assets 30,646.29 24,928.135

Total 30,646.29 24,928.15

7.1 Details of movernent i the carrying emounts of right-of-use assets
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)
Description of Assets Medical Equipments L hold fand Total

k- Gross carrying value
Asat 1 April 2020 382.25 21,606.93 = 21,999.18
Impact on account ef cancettation / modification of - {71.15) - 71.15}
lease
Additions = 1,934.25 174976 9,684.05
Disposals / Adjustments during the year - {132.07} - (132.07}
As at 31 March 2021 392.25 23,33R.00 7,749.76 31,480.01
Asat 1 April 2021 392.25 23,338.00 1,749.76 31,480.81
Additians = 5,055.68 4,329.34 9,385.02
Disposals { Adjustments during the year - {189.15} - [189.15)
As at 34 March 2022 392.25 28,204.53 12,079.10 40,675.88

Il. Accumulated depreciation and impairment
As at 1 Aprit 2020 14482 3,110.67 - 3,255.50
Charge for the year 50.92 2,981.76 267.48 3,200.16
Disposals / Adjustments during the year - (3.80} - (3.80)
Asat 3T March 2021 195.75 6,088.63 2A7.48 6,551.86
Asat 1 April 2021 195.75 6,088.63 267.48 6,551.8G
Charge for the year 40.45 3,175.80 31823 3,534.64
Dispesals f Adjustrments during the year - (56,91} - {56.91)
As at 31 March 2022 236,20 9,207.58 53581 10,029,539

Net carrying value as at 31 March 2022 156.05 18,995.95 11,493.29 30,646.29

Net carrying value as at 31 March 2021 196.50 17,249.37 7,482.28 24,328.15

{i} During the year ended 31 March 2022, the naoticnal interest on the leased asset located at Cathedral Road amounting te INR 64% Lakhs and deprediation on Right to use asset amounting ta INR

318 fakhs has been accounted under CWIP.
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DR, AGARWAL'S HEALTHCARE UMITED
Notes te the Consolidated Financial for the Year Ended 31 March 2022
9  INVESTMENTS
Asat Asat
Particulars 31March 2022 31 March 2021
{Amount in Rs. lakhs}) {Amountin Rs. lakhs}
Nen-Current
{a) Investment in Equity Instruments of Associates - Unguoted, fully paid
{i) IdeaRx Services Private Limited (Refer Note 39} - =
As at 31 March 2022 - 49,254 Equity Shares of Rs, 1 each fully paid =
As at 31 March 2021 - 49,254 Equity Shares of Rs. 1 each fully paid
Total = =
Naoke: Pursuant to an investment agreement dated 12 lanuary 2017 entered into by the Company with the promoters of Idearx Services private Limited {'|dearx'] and |dearx,
the Company has purchased 48,254 shares of Rs. 1 each {at a premium af Rs, 407.0% each) for Rs. 201 lakhs approved in its general meeting held on 2 January 2017.
As at March 2022, the Campany Ts holding 14.71% of total Equity Share Capital of Idearx Servies Pvt Ltd
Asat Asat
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Amount in Rs. [akhs) {Amount in Rs. lakhs)
{a) Agaregate book value of unqueted investments - B
{b} Apgregate amount of impairment in the value of investmants - e
10 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Asat Asat
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Amaunt in Rs. lakhs}) {Amount in Rs. lakhs}
Non-Current
{a) Rental Deposits
- Related Parties {Refer Note 40} 35.83 20.34
-Qthers 1,954.44 1417.25
{h} Security Deposits 144.13 16081
Fota} 2,144.40 1,598.40
13 OQTHER ASSETS
Asat Asat
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Amaount in Rs, fakhs} {Amount in Rs. lakhs)
Non-Current
Capital Advances 103113 86.00
Total 1,031.13 86.00
Current
[a} Prepaid Expenses 314.18 213.17
{b} Advances ta Suppiiers
- Others A78.84 297.43
(¢} Balances with Govermment Authorities
- Input Credit Receivables 78277 432,62
{d) Employea Advances 2.14 1.08
(2]} Prepaid share issue expenses (Refer nate below) 116.41 -
Total 1,654.34 944.30
Nate : During the year, the tampany incurred sn amaount of Rs, 116.41 lakhs towards fund raise which got concluded tn FY2022-23. This amount is shown as prepaid share
N issue expenses which will be adjusted against security premium in the FY 2022-23,
14 INVENTORIES (at lower of cost and net realizable value)
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Amount in Rs. lakhs} {Amount in Rs, Jakhs)
2] Traded Goods
- Opticals 932456 756.23
- Pharmaceutical Praducts 520.94 500.68
- Contact Lens and Accessaries 116.11 52.45
b} Main, Headset Assembly - Stack in Trade 871 28.04
¢} Raw Materials/Consumables {goads held for consumption) 80.85 £0.92
{d} Consumables (goods held for use in rendering services) 1,483.37 1,266.57
{e} Clinical Items and Equipments held for trading 139.18 10193
Tatal 3,291.63 2,786.82
Notes:
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Amountin Rs. lakhs) {Arnpunt in Rs. Jakhs)
1.The cost of inventories recognized as an exp during the year 15,996.37 11,190.60
2. The cast of inventorfes recognized as an expense, includes write downs of inventary to net| 42.24 2
T@Jealizable value
\‘ ::Fhe made of valuation of inventories has been stated in Note 4,11 -
/
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DR. AGARWAL'S REALTHCARE LIMITED
Notes fo the Lansofidated Financiat Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

11 INCOME TAX

111  Non-current tax assets

Asat Asat
TieaiaTs 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Amaount In Rs. lakhs) | [Amount in Rs. lakhs}
Income tax payments made against returns filed /demands received (including taxes decucted at scurce, net of provisions for tax} 2,2853% 1665658
Less: Provision for tax as carried for the respective years netted off against the paymaents made - =
Tax Refund receivable [net) 2,285.35 1,666.58
11.2 Tax Expense
m Asat As at
Particulars
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Amount in Rs. lakhs) | [Amount in Rs. lakhs)
{A.1} Income Tax recognized in statement of profit and loss
{i} Current Tax:
- in respect of currant year 1,467,94 £36.01
- in respect of prior years - 683.15
Total [A) 1,467.94 1,325.16
{ii] Deferred Tax:
- in respect of currant year (107.58) {322.12)
Total {B) {107.58) (322.12)
Total income tax expense recagnized in statement of prefit and loss (A+B} 1,360.36 1,003.04|
|A.2] Incame tax d it other Compret income
Deferred tax related to items recegnized in ather comprehensive income dusing the year:
- Remezsurement of defined hansfit ohligatians 20.09 1.00
Totat 20.09 3.m
Classiflcatian of Income tay recognized in other comprehensive income
- [ncome taxes related to items that will be reciassified to profit or loss - -
- income taxes related te items that will not be reclsssified to profit or loss. 20.09 o0
Total 20.09 .00
{A.3) Reconciliation of incame tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company’s domestic tax rate:
Profit / [Loss) before tax 5,676.29 {5,905.11)
fncome Tax using the Company's Tax rate {Refer iote {{} betow} 1,278.87 {1,027.55)
Tax Effect of :
- Effect of expenses that are non-deductible in determining taxable profit 5.50 173.58
- adjustment on account of brought forward business losses and depreciation {485.12) -
- Adjustmants racognized in current year in relation to current tax of prior years - 639.15
- Change in Tax Rate - -
- Deferred Tax Credit not recognized {Refer Note 12.3} 565.11 1,167.85
Income Tax expense recognized in statement of profit or lass fraom cantinuing operations 1,360.36 1,003.04
Notes:
(i} The tax rate used w.r.t reconciliation above for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 are the respective corporate tax rates prevalant at each subsidiary of the Group.
{ii) The subsidiary - Dr. Agarwals eye Hospital Limited has elected to exercise the option inder section 115844 of the Income Tax Act 1961, as introduced by taxation laws (Amendment} Act, 2019,
Accordingly, the subsidiary has recognised provision fer income tax and remeasured its net deferred tax asset at concessional rate of 25.37% for the year
12  DEFERRED TAXES
12.1 Deferred Tax Balances
Asat As at
Particulars 31 Ma-rch mzz 31 Mﬂ-rch 2021
{Amount in Rs. fakhs) | {Amount in Rs. lakhs}
The following is the analysis of the net defarred tax asset/ {liability) pesition as presented in the financial statements
Deferred tax assets 1,383.55 1,296.40
- MAT Credit 2541 2541
Deferred tax liabilities 127.96 19.10
12.Z  Movement in Deferred Tax Balances
A, For the Year Ended 31 March 2022
[Amount in Rs. lakhs)
[Charge)/Credit r ired in
Particulars AU isiti i i i Asst
1 April 2021 Upon acquisition | Statement of Profit and | Other {omprehensive Fnreugn CurArency 31 March 2022
of subsjdiary Lass Income Translation adjustment
Tax effect of ltems canstituting (deferred tax liabllities)/defarred tax assets
Deferred Tax Assets
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 202,65 - 135.88 {7.48) 931,05
Financial assets at Fair value through profit & loss 15.46 - 071 - - 16.17
Employee Benefits 145.26 - 14.29 20.0% = 179.64
Pravisions 62.52 N 34.37 = - 96.79
Lease liabilitias 29.18 - (78.51) - - 1067
MAT Credit 2542 - - = = 25.42
Other items 181.32 - {26.15) - - 155,17
Other items
Sub Total - A 1,321.81 - 80.49 20.08 {7.48) 1,414.91




DR. AGARWAL'S HEALTHCARE LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated FinamﬁStatemir:ts for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

Asat Charge/({Credit) recognized in Asat
Particulars igiti b Farei,
1 April 2021 Upon acq.m.smon Statement of Profit and | Other Comprehensive urEIIgn Cur'rency 31 March 2022
of subsidiary Lass Income Translation adjustment
Beferred Tax Liabilities
Property, piant and equipment and intangible assets 7174 - {14.23) = = 57.41
Financial assets at fair value thraugh profit & [ess J = E = =
Employee Benefits - - {33.82) - - {32.82}
Provisions (60.BB) - 60.88 - -
Dividend Distribution Tax on foresseable profits from subsidiary 824 - {8.24) = = -
Other items N & {39.05} - = {39.05)
Net Deferred tax lisbility on account of Aditya Jyot Eye Hospltal - 143.42 - 143.42
Sub Total-B 19.10 143.42 (34.56} 2 3 127.96
Grand Total (A - B) 1,302.71 = 115.05 20.09 {7.48) 1,286.95
B. For the Year Ended 31 March 2021
[Aenpunt in Rs. lakhs)
{Charge)/Credit ized in
Particulars S U isition | Statement of Profit and | Other Comprehensive Foreign Currens i
1 April 2020 PORSEAUISII) A P AL EurrEncy 33 March 2021
of subsidiary Eoss Tncome Translation adjustment|
Tax effect of items constituting {deferred tax liabilities}/deferred tax assets
Deferred Tox Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 748.39 - 54.26 = - 802.65
FinancTal assets at Fair Value Thraugh Profit & Lass 10.88 - 4.58 - - 15.46
Employee Benefits 143.60 E 168 (0.02) - 145.26
Provisians 38.45 = 24.07 = - 62.52
Lease liabiifties 84.50 ] 4.28 = - 89.18
MAT Credit 48.49 5 {24.07) o - 25.42
Other items 132.71 = 48.61 = = 18132
Sub Total - A 1,208.42 - 113.41 (0.02) - 1,321.81
et Charge/{Credit) recognized in Asat
Particulars 1 April 2020 Upen acq.m.smun Statement of Profitand | Other Comprehensive FurEI.gn Cur.rencv 31 March 2021
of subsidiary Eoss income Translation adjustment|
Deferred Tax Liahilities
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 99.90 - {28.16) - - 7174
Financial assets at fair vafue through profit & loss - - - - - -
Employee Benefits - - - - - -
Provisions (0.23) - {60.65) - = {60.88)
Divicdend Distribution Tax on fereseeable profits from subsidiary 8.24 - - - = 8.24
Sub Total- B 10791 = {88.81} 5 E 19.10
[Grand Total (a - B) 1,100.52 - 202.22 | [0.02)] E 1,302.71

12.3 Details of Deferred Tax not recognized

A. For the Year Ended 31 March 2622
{Amount In Rs. Lakhs)

Charge/{Credit) fzed in
As at As at
Particulars it i
31 March 2021 Statepenth Profit] |*Othercomprehensive Directly in Other Equity 31 March 2022
and Loss Intome
Tax effect of items constituting {deferred tax liabifties)/deferred tax assets
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 373.20 (273.26) - - 99.94
Employee Benefits 55.73 21.22 - - 76.95
Provision for Contingency 183 - - - 1.93
Provision for Expected Credit Loss 21105 133.45 - - 344.50
Brought Forward Loss 2nd Unabsarbed Depreciation 4,003.62 595.69 - - 4,599.31
Cther items 36LI0 88.01 = 2 449.12
Lease assets net of kease liabiities 168.00 - - - 168.00
Less: Valuation Allowance [Refer Note below) (5,174.64)) (565.11) - - (5,739.75)
Net Tax Asset /{Liabillties} - - - - -
B. For the Year Ended 31 March 2021
{Amoumt in Bs. Lakhs)
Charge/{Cradig) r ized In
A Asat . Asat
Borticulars 1 April 2020 Statement of Profit | Other Comprehensive | o2 other Equity| 31 March 2021
and Lloss Income
Tax effect of items constituting {deferred tax liabilities)/deferred tax zssets
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 83471 {46151T) - - 373.20
Employee Benefits 45.74 9.99 - - 55.73
Provision for Contingency 193 - - - 1.93
Prevision for Expected Credit Loss 228,26 (17.21) - E 211.05
Brought Ferward Loss and Unabserbed Depreciation 2,43038 1,573.24 - - 4,003.62
Valuation of lnvestments - - - N ]
Other items 29776 63.34 - = 361.10
Lease assets net of [zase [iabilities 168.00 040 = E 168.00
Less: Valuation Allowance {4,006.78)] (1,167.85) - E (5.174.64)
Net Tax Asset f(iiabilities} - = 3 - -]

Note: The Company has deferred tax asset primarily an account of unabsorbed business loss, unabsorbied tax depreciation and cther items against which a valuation allowance of INR 5,739.75 lakhs
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15.2

TRADE RECEIVAGLES

Asat

As at

Particuars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
[Amount in Rs. lakhs] [Ameunt in Rs. lalths)
Current
Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered goed 8417.03 8,775.63
Allowance for expected cradit loss (2,745,500 (2,104.54)
Undisputsd Trade Receivables - Considered daubtful - -
Disputed Trade Receivables -Considered pood - -
Disputed Trade Receivables -Cansidered doubtful - =
Total 5,671.53 4,670.99
As at 31 March 2022 [Amount in Rs. Iakhs)g
i L than 3

Particulars Less than & months 6 months - lyear 1. 2years 2-3 years u:;":" Total
|a} Undisputed Trade Receivables -Considered good 4,902.6% 1,585.64 1,160.37 636.34 13141 B41705
Aflowance for expected credit loss {819.06) {585.81) [610.37) {598.27) {13141} [2,745.52]
th) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant inerease in credit risk - - - - - -
{c} Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit i - S . o D =
{d) Disputed Trade Receivables -Considered gaod = . - - . .
te} Disputed Trade Receivables -which hava significant increase In credit risk = - E = = -
tf) Disputed Trade Receivables -credii impaired - - - - = -
Total 4,083.63 989.83 550.00 38,07 - 5,671.53
As at 31 March 2021 [Amount in Rs. lzkhs) |

it M than 3

Particulars Less than & months 6 months - lyear 1- 2years 2-3 yaars m:ear:" Total
{a) Undisputed Trade Receivables -Considered good 5,197.64 701.52 728.58 147.90 o 6,775.64
Allowance for expected credit loss (1,133.77) {385.84) (437.14) {147,90) - {2,104.65)
{b} Undisputed Trade Receivablas - which have slgnificant increase in credit risk = = - B = =
{c] Undisputed Trade Receivables - cradit impaired - - 5 = - -
{d} Disputed Trade Receivables -Censidered good - - - - - -
{a) Disputed Trade Receivables -which have significant increase in credit risk = - - - = B
{f} Disputed Trade Receivables -credit impaired - - 9 = - -
Total 4,063.87 315.58 29144 2 2 4,670.99

Credit perfod and risk

Significant portion of the Group's business is against receipt of advance. Credit is provided mainly to Insurance Companies, Corporate customers and Government Uadertakings, The Insurance Companies are required to maintain
minimum reserve levels and pre-approve the insurance claim, Government undectakings and the Corporate Customers are enterprises with high credit ratings. Accordlngly, the Group's exposure to credit risk in relation to trade

receivables is low.

Trade receivables are not-interest bearing and are ganerally an terms of upto 30 days. OF the Trade Receivable as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, follewing is the detaiis of customers having more than 5% of the total balance of]

trade receivables:

No of customers having more than

Balance Dutstanding

Particul
articulars 5% of the tn!a[halance of trade {Amount in &s. Lekhs]
raceivables
As at 31 March 7022 [ 3,135.27
As at 31 March 2021 6 2437.57

There are no cther customers who represent mere than 5% of the tetal balance of trade recefvables,

No trade receivable are due from directors or ather efficers of the Group sither severalty or [ointly with any other person. Nor any trade receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is 2 partner,

a director or a member.

Expected credit loss aliowance

The Group has used a practical expedient by computing the expectad loss allowance for trade receivables based on pravision matrix. The provisien matvix takes inte account the historical credit loss experience and adjustments for|
forward laoking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the days the receivables are due and the rates as given in the provisian matrix, considering the amounts due from the governmant undertakings|

and the other undertakings.

The provisien matrix at the end of the reporting periad [31 March 2022) is as follows:

Particulars

Expected Credit loss {26

Less than 6 months
& months - Iyear
1~ 2years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

%610 21%
42% to 100%
59% to 100%
64% to 100%

100%




DR. AGARWAL'S HEALTHCARE LIMITED

Notes to the C lidated Financial us for the Year Ended 31 March 2022
153 M In the all e for doubtful receivables {including expected ¢redit loss allowanca)
Asat As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

{Amount in Rs, fakhs}

{Amount in Rs. lakhs}

Balance af beginning of the year 2,104.64 1,293.17
Add: Provision created during the year 171029 2,006.68
Foreign Currency Translation adjustment (66.27}] {409.43)]
Less: Provision utilised during the year {403.40} {785.78)|
Balanice at end of the year 2,745.26 2,104.54

As at 31 March 2022, The Company has written-offs trade receivables balances amounting to Rs. 403.40 {31 March 2021 - Rs. 785.78 lakhs} and have utilised the existing allowances towards expected credit Joss. The company daes]

not expect to receive future cash flows/recoveries from trade receivables previously written off.

16 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

16(A)  Cask and cash equivalents

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Amount in Rs, fakhs} {Amount in Rs. lakhs}
{a} Cash on Hand 260.70 141.22]
(b} Balances with Banks
~In Current Accounts 5,711.42 2,778.47
- InFixed Deposits 4,650.00 2,601.49
Total 9,962.12 5,521.18
16(B)  Other Bank Balances
As at As ak
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

{Amount in Rs. Zakhs}

{Amount in Rs. lakhs}

{a) In Fixed Deposits - under Lien (Refer Note (i) below} 1,647.95 513.61

{b) In Earmarked Escrow Accounts (Refer Note (i} below) 50.00 50.00

{c) Unpaid Dividend Accounts 7.88 .89

Total 1,705.B4 973.50

Note:

{1} Deposit under Lien represents deposits placed for Bank Guarantees {maturity of

less than 12 months)
aitained by the Group from Banks towards:
- Central Government Health Scheme (CGHS) 64.87 56.50
- Ex-Servicamen Contributory Health Scheme (ECHS) 55.62 43.50
-5.\.P. National Police Academy 2.00 2.00
-The Commerciaf Tax Officer, First Circle, Trivandrom 0.50 .50
- Southern Rallways 9.00 4.50
- National Savings Certificate 0.03 Q.02
- Rajasthan Commerdial Tax 23.68 23.58
- Rafl Wheel Factory empanelment [RWF) 0.50 =
-EPFO 0.50 =
- North Western Railways 0.50 0.50
-South Western Railways 0.50 0.50
-ICF 0.50 0.50
- Bank Guarantee placed 2gainst the Insolvency Resolution Process 250.00 250.00
-Qutstanding Interest Payable to Debenture Holder {CDC Graup PLC) 389.26 350.00
- FO marked under Lien - towards acquisition 850.00 18140
- KASBA Metro 0.50 =

Tatal 1,647.96 913.61

i7 QTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

(ii} Balance in Escrow accounts represents amount deposited in the account specifically earmarked for payment of interest on debentures to the debeniure holders (Refer Mote 20).

Asat As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2421
(Amount in Rs. lakhs) {Amount in Rs. lakhs)

Curren

(a) Rental deposits 371.36 44541
b} Interest accrued on fixed depasits 17.25 36.33
{ P

<) Advances to Employees 56.43 66.59
(<) ploy

(d} Other Receivable 16.98 2.54
Tatal 462.02 550.87




BR. AGARWAL'S HEALTHCARE LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

18 EQUITY SHARE CAPIFAL

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Number of shares Rs. in Lakhs Number of shares Rs. in Lakhs

Authorized Share capital :

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 sach 70,00,000 700 76,00,000 700
10% Cumulative Redeemable Non-Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each 1,00,00,000 1,000 1,00,00,000 1,000
0.001% Fully and Compulsorily Convertible Cumnulative Participative Preference Shares of Rs. 71,00,000 7,100 71,00,000 7,100
100 each 8,800 8,800
Issued and subseribed capital comprises:

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 68,59,969 686.00 68,585,969 686.00
Total 686.00 686.00

18.1 Reconciliaticn of the Number of Shares and Amount Outstanding at the Beginning and at the End of the Reparting Period:

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Number of shares Rs. in Lakhs Number of shares Rs, in Lakhs

Shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year 68,59,969 £86.00 63,59,969 636.00
Add: Fresh issue of shares/Adjustment during the year - =

Add: Conwversion during the Year C = = =
Less; Buy-back of shares during the year = = = -
Shares outstanding as at the end of the year 68,59,969 686.00 68,59,969 686.00

I8,

L

Terms / rights attached to Equity Shares :

The Company has enly one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10. Each helder is entitled to one vote per equity share, Dividends are paid in Indian Rupees. Dividend proposed by the Board of
Directors, if any, is subject to the approval of the sharehoiders at the Annual General Meeting except in case of interim dividend. Repayment of capital will be in accordance with the terms of the Articles of
Association and in proportion to the number of equity shares held,

18.3 Petails of shares held by each shareholder holding maore than 5% shares

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
4] f Sh

ass of Shares Number of Shares held |% holding of equity shares| Number of Shares held [% holding of equity shares
Equity shares
(a) Dr. Amar Agarwal 4,23,350 6.17% 4,23,350 6.17%
(b) Dr. Athiya Agarwal 5,23,536 7.63% 5,232,586 7.63%
(<) Dr. Adil Agarwal 5,11,985 7.46% 511,985 7.48%
(d) Dr. Ancsh Agarwal 5,24,263 7.64% 5,24,263 7.64%
(e) Dr. Ashvin Agarwal 5,058,514 7.43% 5,089,514 7.43%
(f} value Growth Investment Holdings Pte. Limited 21,74,285 31.70% 21,74,285 31.70%
{g) Dr. Anosh Agarwal on behaif of Dr Agarwal’s Eye Institute 3,66,339 5.34% 3,66,339 5.34%
(h} M/s Claymore Investmment (Mauritius) Pte.Ltd. 16,14,815 23.54% 16,14,815 23.54%
TOTAL 66,48,137 96.91% 66,48,137 96.91%

18.4 Subsequent Event (Refer Note 20)
Pursuant to the board meeting dated 26 April 2022 , the Company has allotted 53,024 aquity share to the holders of 1,24,301 Compulsorily Convertible Prefernce shares holders and 72,394 equity shares to
holders of 1,67,366 shares to all of its Compuisorily Canwvertible Debentures holders.
Companies Board after due consideration approved for closure of M/s. Orbit Thelish Healthcare Services (Nigeria) Limited on 28 March 2022, which is step down subsidiary of Dr. Agarwal's Health Care
Limited. Subseguently the termination agreemant was entered between Thelish Eve Centre and Orbit Helathcare Services {Mauritius) Limited dated 19 July 2022, transferring it shara of hoiding £0,00,000 (six
mitlion} ordinary shares in this company.
Purstant ta the board mesating dated 05 May 2022, the company has afotted on 3 praferential and private placement basis, 5,56,420 fully paid equity shares of Rs. 10 each to Arvon Ifivestments Pte Limited,
and 3,45,236 fully paid equity shares of Rs. 10 aach to Hyperion Investments Fte Limited .
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OTHER EQUITY
As at Asat
Particulars Note 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Amount in Rs. lakhs) [Amount in Rs. lakhs)
General reserve 19,1 83.00 83.00
Sectrities prarmjum reserva 19.2 42,722.83 42,722.83
Ratained earnings 19.3 (19,183.55) {22,830.02)
Capital Redemption Reserve 19.4 3.60 3.60
Total Reserves and Surplus 23,625.89 19,979.41
Exchange Difference on Translation of Foreign Subsidiary 19.5 {3,074.63} 12,241.82)
Total Other Comprehensive Income (3,074.63) {2,241.82)
Total 20,551.26 17,737.59
Il reserve
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 202%
(Amount in Rs, lakhs) {Amount in Rs. lakhs)
Opening Balance 83.00 83.00
Add: Transferred from surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss = =
Closing Balance £3.00 83.00

The general reserve represents appropriation of retainad earnings by transfering profits. As the general reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another

and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss.

Securities premium reserve

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022
{Amount in Rs. lakhs)

As at
31 March 2022
{Amount in Rs. lakhs}

Opening Balanca
Add : Acquitision

Less: Transfer of amaunt to Capital Redempt)

Add : Premium on Shares issued/converted during the Year

Lass: Trangaction costs arising on equity issue

ion Reserve

42,722.83

42,722.83

Llosing Balance

42,722.83

42,722.83

Amounts received on issue of shares in excess of the par value has been classified as securities premium.

Retained earnings

Partlculars

As at
31 March 2022
{Amount in Rs. lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021
{Amount in Rs. lakhs}

Qpening Balance {22,830.02) {17,244.02)
Adjustments

Profit attributable to owners of the Company 3,769.35 (5,547.83)
Dividends distributed to Equity Shareholders = S
Tax on Dividend - -
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liabllity or asset {122.87} (38.17)
Closing Balance {19,183.54) (22,830.02)

The amount that can be distributed by the Group as dividends to its equity sharehclders is determined hased on the financial statements of the Company and also considering
the requirements of the Companles Act, 2013. Thus, the amounts reported sbove are not distributzble in entivety.

{apital Redemption Reserve

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022
{Amount in Rs. lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021
(Amount in Rs. lakhs)

Opening Balance 3.60 3.60
Add: Transfer from Securfties premium for buy-back - =
Llasing Balance 3.60 3.60
Exchange Difference on Translation of Foreign Subsidiary
Asat Asat
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Amount in Rs. lakhs} {Amount in Rs. fakhs)

Exchange Difference on latign of Fereign Subsidiary

Opening Balance {2,241.82) {1,342.08)
Add/{Less): Cther Comprehensive Income for the year, net of income tax {832.81) [392.74)
Closing Balange (3,074.63) {2,241.82)
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2 NCON-CURRENT BORRCWINGS

Asat Asat Asat
Particulars 31 March 2022 313arch 2021 31 March 2018
[Amount in Rs, lakhs) [Amount IeAs. lakhs} | {Amount In Ks. lakhs)
{a) Serured Borrowings
(i} 2,150 Seninr Redeemabte, Nan-Convertible Debentures of Face Yzlue Re, 10,00,00 sach (Paid Up value - 14,345.01 15,783.84 -
Re. 10,00,000 2ach ('2,150 Senior Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures of Face Valua Rs. 10.00,000
each {Pald Up value - Rs. 10,080,002 each) (Refar Hate (20.1) below)
{) TermLoans
- Fram Banks {Refer Hate 20,2 below) 7,241.03 962,86 3,895.27
-from Dthers 256,00 -
{itt)  vehicle Loans 3227 5531
v} 0.001% Fully and Compulsorily Convertitle Non- Cumulative Participative Preference Shares of Rs. 100 =
each {Rafer note {20.3) below] 1,475.78
{v} '0.001% Fully and Compulsarily Convertible Debentures of Face Value of Rs. 1200 each {Refer note {20.3) -
below) 2,008.38
Teotal 15,398.5% 15,892.11 13,764.58
2k1  Betails of Redeemakle Non Convertlble Debentures
2,159 Senlor Redeemable Non Convertible Bebetures of Face Vaue Rs.10,00,000 2ach
During the year ended 31 March 2022, Company had a tota! Srawdown for INR 16,000 Lakhs. The details of tenor, interest rate, repayment terms of the same ate
given below:
Griginal Tenor i Ho. of Instalments i Asat Asat
sa. | ey | oterestRate asat Terms 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 1%
entie} 31 March 2022 [Amount In Rs. fakhs) | famountin s Lakhs] | {Amaunt In As. Lakks)
1 96 Months 10%
Refer Nate [j} Aefer Mote fif &6 Refer Nate (i) 15,785.01 15,783.24
Sub-Total 15,785,01 15,783.94 5
Natas:
(i  Thefirstinstallment of principal is payable on expiry of 35 months fram the date of first drawdawn 2. 11 December 2013,
{lii  Asper the terms of Debenture Trust Deed, the coupon rate shall be charged at the rate of 10%, Coupon interest are to be made on a ¥

(i)  The details of Security provided are a5 follows:

-first-ranking security over the fied assets of the Company

~first-ranking security over the debt service reserve account

-ffrst-ranking pledge over the shares of the Company owned by Oz, Amar Agarwal, Dr. Athiya Agarwal, Dr. Adlf Agarwal, Br. Anosh Agarwal, Dr Ashvin Agarwal,

Dr Ashar Agarwal, Ms. Farah Aganwal, Ms. Urmila Agarwal, Dr. Agarwal’s Eye Institute Private Umited and Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute.

-first-ranking pledge over the shares In Qrbit ownad by the Company

-non-disposal undertaking and negative pledge in respect of the shares: {a) in AEHL owned by AHCL; and (k) in all Qrhit subsidiaries awned directly or indirectly
by Orbit a5 applicablz); and

-personal guarantee of Or. Amar Agarwal, Dr. Athiva Agarwal, Dr. Adil Agarwal, Or. Arosh Agarwal, Br Ashvin Agarwal and Dr Ashar Agzrwzl, members of the
Promater Graup and Services (Mauritius} timited

Balance in Escrow ts repi it earmarked for payment of interest on debentures to the debenture halders
{Refer Note 16{B}.

{iv)

212 Detalls of Term 1oan fram Banks - Secured

The details of tenor, interest rate, repayment tarms of the same are given below;

Original Tenar fin No, of Instalments Asat Asat Asat
5.Mo. Months) Interest Rate at Teams 1 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2029
31 March 2022 {Amountin Rs. kakhs) {Amount in Bs. lakhs) | [AmountIn Rs. lakhs)
1= GECL Loan from HOEC Bank (Refer Mote fis) below]
1 B0 = Principal Quarterly, interest - 35272 84,74
MCLR +0.80% Month
Sub-Total . 352,72 1.850.07
[ A - GECL Loan from Axs Bank [Refer Nota {lz) batow]
1 30 Repo=3.5% 30 Principal Quarterly, Interest 799,81 -
Monthly
Sub-Total 299.81'
H- Vehicle Loars from HDFC Banl, ICICE Bank and Axis Bank {Refer Note (iii) betow|
1 2] B.75% 19 Principal Menthly, Interast 2572 34.24 55.53
2 &0 9% 26 Menthly 3.4 3342 -
Sub-Folal 49.56 67.66 4116
HI -Term Loans from HDFC Bank (Refer Note {il & Ivrhelnw)
a3
L MRG0 80% - Principal Monthly, Interest N L027.82 -
2 38 MCLR +G.80% - Manthiy 3 67,06
3 a7 B.50% 67 5A67.90 E
Sub-Total 5,467.50 1,094.98 =
IV - Term Loans from Axis Bank {Refer Note {v] belaw)
1 7 Repo+ 3.5% 7 Principal Monthly, Interest 26,20 =
Menthly
2 0 Repo+ 3.5% 20 Principa) Monthly, (nterest 677.99 -
Monthly
3 120 Repo -+ 3.5%| 120 Principal Monthly, Interest 357138 =
Monthly
Sub-Total 2,275.57 E 282373
W1 - Term: Loans from Kotak & Deutshe Bank
1 34 8.00% 1 Principal Monthiy, Interest 105,38 3
Monthly
2 37 8.15% 1 Principal Manthiy, Interest 3845 3
Monthly
3 2 9.00% 35 Principzl Monthty, Interest 10928 o
Muonthly
Sub-Total 343.11
Totat of borrowlings from Banks 8,435.95 151535 5,281.30
Less = Current Maturitles of lang term borrawlngs (Refer Note 24) {1,162.65) {437.20} {1,386.03)
Long-tem Rorrowings fram Banks 7,713.30 3,018.15 3,895.27
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Notes:

(i} During the year endad 31 March 2022, Dr, Agarwal's Eye Hospital Ltd has swapped the existing Ipan facitity of HOFG Bank Limited ta Axis Bank Umited, Accordingly , the lozn balance with
HDFC Bank [s Re. Nil and the correspanding loan balance with Axis Benk has bean disclosed in tha above table.

The detslls of Security as listed below remains unchanged with the swap of existing ipan facility of HOFC Bank Limited to Axis Bank Limited for the periad ending 31 March 2022 , except to the
polnt refar to {v} below

{1} The Government of India under "Emergency Cradit Line Guaranteed Scheme (ECLGS) has directed the banks to provide Guarantzed emergancy Cradit Lina {GECL} by way of working capital
term loan {WCTL} . This facility is covered by 100% puarantes from NCGTC [National Credit Guarantes Trustes Company Ltd - Ministry of Finznce). The amount sanctioned ta Dr. Agarwal's Eye
Huspital Ltd is [NR 3.52 Crore with a moratodum period of 12 months , further Security provided against GECL loan are as follows:

- Fersonal Guarantees of Dr, Amar Agarwal, Br. Athiya Agarwal, Dr. Adil Agarwat, Or, Anosh Agsrwal, Dr. Ashar Agarwal, Br. Ashvin Agsrwal, and Dr Agarwsls Heaith Care limited

(M} The details of securlty provided agafnst the Term loans are as follows:
- First and exclusive charge on the entire current assets of the company Including 2ll present and future receivables, stack, plant and Machinery, future medical equipments, mavable
machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories, furniture, fixtures, vehicles and all other bl present and areated out of the facility.

- Board backed letter of camfort from DAEHL, the subsidizry of the Company.
- Personal Guarantees of Dr. Amar Agarwal, Dr. Athiya Agarwal, Br. AgH Agarwal, Dr. Anosh Agarwal, Dr. Ashar Agarwal, Dr. Ashvin Agarwal and Dr. Azarwal's Eye Institute, being the
promaoter and relatives of tha promater,
fii#} The loans are secured by hypothecation of respective vehices financed by the Banks.
[iv) The details of Security provided against the Term Leans are as follows:
- First and exclusive charge on the entire current assets of the Subsidiary,
- Flrst and excluslve charge on the Plant and Machinery owned by the Company other than those funded by other banks. {Refer Note 6}
- Pledge of 1,350,000 Shares of the Company held by Dr. Agerwal's Health Cara Limited,
- Corporate Guarantes provided by Dr, Agarwal's Health Care Limited.
- Personal Guarantees of Br, Amar Agarwzl, Dr. Athlya Agarwak, Dr. Adil Agarwal, Dr. Anosh Agarwal, Dr. Ashar Agarwal, Or. Ashvin Agarwal,
being tha promoter and relztives of the promoter.
{v} During the year ended 31 March 2022, Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospitsl 1td had bosrowed term loan from Axfs Bank Limited for construction of Mew Chennai Main Hospital (CWIH). Cf the sanction
amaunt of {NR 6000 Lakhs, subsidizry has utilised INR 1571 Lakhs.
The secuslty against which Iz listed below
- Equitabla Mortgage on the Land for 5,555 Ground
- Equitahle Mortgage on the Land for 3.125 Ground on second charge basis , whereas the first charge will be by Axis Finance Limited
- Equitahla Martgage on Building proposed ta ba construeted on the entire land of 9.68 grounds at cathedral rozd Chennal

£

Issuss of Fully ard G [=
Duting the yaar ended 31 March 2072, the Company has Issued, 0.001% Fully and Compulseriiy Canvestible Nan- Cumulative Participative Preference Shares to Arvon nvestnents Pte Ltd of
Rs. 104 gach inta 124,301 Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each (st a premium of Rs. 1,200 each] in its Board meeting held on 20 August 2021.

The ion of Fully and € ily € ible Non- Cumulative Participative Preference Shares will happen at the earlier of two years or a fund raise exceeding Rs. 100 Crores, at a fixed
returr over the 521d perlod.
1.001% Fully and C [ b of Face Value of Rs. 1200 each

1 Pursuant to the extra ordinary general meating of the company held on 1% August 2021, the company has alletted 1,67,36% units of Compulsarlly Canvertible Debentures [CCD} of Rs. 1200
eachto Value Grawth nvestments Holding Ple Ltd.

The of Fully and C sarity e Dehantures will happen at the earller of two yaars or a fund raise exceeding Rs. 100 Crores, at a fixed return over the said period.

"pursyant to the baard meeting dated 26 April 2022 , the Campany has aliotted 53,024 equity share to the holders of 1,24,301 Compulsariy Convertible Prefernce shares holders and 71,334
equity shares to holders of 1,67,366 shares to all of Its Compulsorily Convestible Debentures holders.

21 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Asat Asat Asat
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 Marech 2021 31 March 2015
[Amaunt in Rs, Jakhs| [Amount in Rs. lakhs) { (Amount In Rs. lakhs) |
Non-Cutderit
Measured at Falr Value
{a)  Acquisition Liabilivies [Refer Note & Nota 8) 202.43 561.79 -
Total 60243 561.79 143181
Current
Measured at Amortised Cost
{2) Payzbles tovards purchase of Property, flant and Equipment 1,534.97 100271 1,026.82
{b) Current Maturities of Long-Term Bomowings
-from Banks 53.36 864 19.97
- from Related Parties {Refer Note 43.4} - -
-from Othes Parties - 21524 J
-from Related Parties = =
{c} Unpaid Dividends 818 9.89 12.38
e} Amount payable to Related Pariies {Refer Note 42.4} - - 83140
{e} Acquisition Liabilities {Refer Note below & Note 8] 75146 492.47 -
Total 2,007.97 1,723.95 2,528.64
Nota: 3 the esti d fair value of the { i ion relating ta th il of various eye dinlcs.
2 PROVISIONS
Asat Asat Asat
Panlculars 31March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2019
{Amaunt In As. lakhs) [Amount In&s. lakhs) | {Amountin Rs, lakhs)
Non-Cumrent
{a] Provision for Employes Beneflis:
- Gratuity Payable {Refer Note 37.3) 430.86 319.28 267.83
- Compensated Absences {Refer Nate 37.2) 24330 17123 118.9%
Total 674.16 48051 286.82
Currept
(a) Provision far Employes Bencfits;
- Compensated Absences {Refer Note 37.2) 11519 116.89 73.66
- Others = 40,68 r o]
{b) Provision for Contingencies (Rafer Note 22.1) 3512 31512 7311

Total 150.31 192.69 0.6
£ o g
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24 CURRENT BORROWINGS

Asat Asat
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
[Ameount in Rs. lakhs) {Amaount in Rs. Jakhs)
{a) Loans Repayable on Demand
(1 Fram Banks - Secured
- Cash Credit Farility (Refer Nates (i), {7i} and (fii) below) 1,018.70 793.99
- Working Capital Facility {Refer Note {1}, {i),[v} and (v} below} . 202,10
{1t} Current Maturitles of Lang-Termn Borrowings
- from secured horrowings [Refer Note 20.1) 1,440.00 -
- fram banks (secured) [Refer Note 20.2) 1,162.65 492,70
- Loan from Related Party [Refer Note betow) -
- Working Capital Facllity {Refer Note {I},{fv),{v) and {vi] below) . o
{ii} Loans from Related Parties - Unsecured {Refer Note {iyand v} below) P
Total 3,619.35 1,493.28
Notes :
1) The details of interast rate, repayment and other terms of the Shart Term Borrowings are as follows:
Asat As at
Type Name of the Farty Interest Rate Repaymant Terms 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Amaunt in Rs. lakhs} [Amcund akhs|
Cash Credit facility from Bank [Refer [ii} Below} HOFC Bank BECILR +0.80% On Demand 2%4.33 526.14
Overdratt Facility from Bank Axis Repa +3.5% on Demand 30000 -
Cash Credit facllity from Bank HDFC Base Rate
On D d 42237 267.85
{Rafer (v} Below) HDFC Bank £ 2.85% n Demar
Working Capital Fac SBM Bank (Mauritius)
- 654
[Refer (v} Below) Limited 8.75% to 9.65% On Demand 4
HDFC Adhot Loan
{Refer (v,v7} Below] HDFC MCLR +1.95% | PrincTpal Monthly, Interest Monthly - 155.36
TOTAL 1,015.70 996.0%

(i} The Cash cradit facillty availed by the Company as at 31 March 2022 & 31 March 2021 is secured by the follawing!
- First and exclusive charge on the entire current assets of the Company and its subsidiary
~ Extension of equitable mortagage on a property owned by Qrbit [nternatienal,
- First and exclusive charge on the Plant and Machinery owned by the cormpany other than those funded by other banks. (Refer Note 5}
- Pledge of 1,350,000 shares of the Dr. Agarwal Eye Haspital held by the Campany
- Cerperate Guarantea provided by the Company
- Personal Guarantaes of Dr, Amar Agerwal, Dr, Athiya Aganwal, Dr. Adil Agarwal, Dr. Anosh Aganwal, Br. Ashar Agarwal and Dr. Ashyin Agarwal being the
promoter and ralatives of the promoter,
{1} The Overdrait facllity avaited by the Company as at 31 March 2022 is secured by the following:
- Part- passu charge with HDFC Limfted on the Janded property of 9.68 Grounds and proposed bullding to be constructed there ar Cathedral read , Chennai
{iv} The Cash cradit facllity avalled by the Company as st 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 Is secured by the fallowing:
- First and exclusive charge by way of hypathecation of current assets of the company,
- Comfort Letter fram Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospltal Limited.
- Personal Guarantees of Dr. Amar Agarwal, Dr. Athiya Agarwal, Dr. Adil Agarwal, Dr. Anosh Agarwal, Dr. Astar Agarwal and Or. Ashwin Agarwal, being the promoters and relatives of the
premoters and Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute.
{lv) The loan frorm SBM Bank {Mauritius) Limited |s secured by floating charges on the assets of Orbit Heelth Care Services [Mauritius} Limited and corporate guarantee provided by the
Campany.
(v} The adhoc limit of IMR 7 Cr was provided to the company during the year ended 31 March 2021 and it is secured by:
-~ Persong! Guarantees of Dr. Adil Agarwal, Dr. Anosh Agarwal, being the pramoter,
-€urrent asset of the company including stock
- Bosk debts and Plant and Machinery owned by the company other than funded by other Banks/NBFC's

{vl} The adhoc limlt of INR 5 Cr was provided to the company during the year ended 31 March 2021 Further it s completely repald in Febrvary 2021, and it was secured by:
- Personal Guarantees of r, Adi| Agarwal, Dr. Anosh Agarwal, being the promaoter.
- Current asset of the company including stock

25 TRADE PAYARLES

Asat Asat
Particulars 31 March 2022 &1 March 2021
{Amount in Rs. fakhs} {Amcunit in Rs. lakhs!
Current

- Dues of Mlcra Enterprises and Small Enterprises B73.49 -

- Dues of Creditars Other than Micrn Enterprises and Smalf Enterprises 2,032.74 7451.49
Tozal B,506.23 7,451.4¢
As at 31 March 2032

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-Zyears 2-3Years More than 3 Years Total
- MSME B73.49 ol - - E73.49

- Others 803274 - - - 8,032.74
- Disputed dues - M5ME =
- Disputed dues - Othars = _ - =

Total 3,906.23 E S - 8,806.23
As at 31 March 2921
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 23 Years Mure than 3 Years Total
- MSME = = ] . -
- Others. 745145 = = = 745148

- Disputed dues - M5ME = 2 = B 3
- Disputed dues - Dthers - - - = E

Total 745142 - , - 745149

2

@

CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES {NET)

Asat Asat
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(Amountin Rs. lakhs iAmaount in Re. lakhs]

Provision for Tax (Net of Income tax Assets) 100645 62246

Total 1,006.45




DR. AGARWAL'S HEAL THCARE LIMEEED

Notes to the C lidated Financial

for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

27

pra g

27.2

273

28

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2023
(Amaunt in Rs. lakhs) {Amount in Rs. lakhs)

{a) Sale of Products {Refer Note () below) 17,074.83 11,824.36
(b} Sale of Services {Refer Note {ii} below) 52,493.3¢ 35,233.42
fc} Other Operating Revenues 35 45 60.27
Total 69,507.67 47,118.05
Disaggregation of the revenue Informatian

The tables below present disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers for the year ended 31 March 2022, The Company believes that this diszggregation best depicts how
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainity of our revenues and cash flows are affected by industry, market and other econemic factors.

{i) Sale of Products comprises the

Far the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particutaes 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Amount in Rs. lakhs} {Amount in Rs. lakhs}
Traded Gaods :
i) Opticals 10,744.09 7,531.56
{ii) Pharmaceutical Products 5,700,318 3,942.92
{iii} Contact Lens and Accessaries 283.23 199.92
{iv) Sale of Faod items 41.71 21.85
16,769.41 11,695.85
(v} Sale of Advanced Vision Analyzer -AVA & Trizl Lens 305.42 17851
Total - 5ale of Products 17,074.83 11,824.36
{ii) Sale of Services prises the ing =
Far the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{(Amount i Rs. lakhs) {Amount in Rs. lakhs)
{i} Income from Surgeries 40,127.56 27,275.47
{ii} Income frara Cansultatian 344273 3,236.62
{iil} Income from Treatments and Investigations 8,922.70 4, 71070
{iv} Income from Annual Maintainanace Contracts - Q.56
Total - Sale of Services 52,493.3% 35,233.42

The services are rendered to various patients and there are no patients who represent more than 10% of the total revenue. However, the Hospital alse serves patients who are
covered under insurance/health schemes run by insurance companies, corporates and the central/stzte government agencies, wherein the services rendered to the patient is on
credit to be reimbursed by the said insurance company, cerporate or governiment agency.

Trade Receivables and Contract Balances

The company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for defiverables as receivable.

A recelvable 1s a right to consideration that is unconditional upcn passage of Lime. Revenue is recognized as and when the related goods / services are delivered / pecfermed to the
customer.

Trade receivable are presented net of impairment in the Balance Sheet.
¢ liabilith

Contrac include pay ived in advance of perfi under the contract, and are realized with the associated revenue recognized under the contract.

F e abli; and perfermance ohligations

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognised as at the end of the reparting period and an
explanation as to when the Company expects to recognise these amounts in revenue. Applying the practical expedient as given in IND AS - 115, the Company has not disclosed
informatien ahout remaining performance abligations in contracts where the original contract duration is one year or less or where the entity has the right to consideration that

corresponds directly with the value of entity’s performance completed to date.

OTHER INCOME

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particalars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(Amount in Rs. lakhs) (Amauntin Rs. lakhs)

{a} Interest Income

- Benk depuosits 12658 59.34
{b] Interest income - Other Financial Asset at amartized cost 53.65 33.83
{c) Gain an modification of lease agreement/ termination of right-of-use assets. 243 82 32040
{d} Liabilities no longer required written back (Refer note &) 228.49 6.85
{d) Net gain on Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation 836.64 96.36
{2] Interest an Jncome tax refund 143.05 26.55
) Miscellanecus lncome 155.71 48.87
{g) Freight Income 1.70

Total 1,787.94 593.90
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PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE

Particulars

For the Year Ended
31 March 2022
(Amount in Rs, lakhs}

For the Year Ended
31 March 2021
{Amount in Rs, lakhs)

{a) Opticals 3,955.89 2,574.89
{b) Pharmaceuticals Products 3,639.33 2,592.34
(c} Centact Lens and Accessories 23059 91.07
(d} Provisions - Feod Items 3259 13.37
(e} Ciinical items and Equipments 702.12 445.94
(f} Main, Headsat Assembly & other Raw material - 38,60
{2} Other Raw Material 101.34 59.82
Total 8,662.21 5,816.03
CHANGES N INVENTORIES OF STOCK IN TRADE

A. Inventories at the begii of the year

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars 31 Mavch 2022 31 March 2001
{Amount in Rs. lakhs} (Amount in Rs. lakhs)

{a) Opticals 75623 1,061,061
Acquisitien thraugh business comhbination 1659 -
(k) Pharmaceuticals Products. 500.68 490.35
{c) Contact Lens and Accessories 5245 7357
{d) Main, Headset Assembly & cther Raw material 42.09 32.77
(e} Other Raw material 66.87 66.87

if) Ciinical Items and Equipments 101.53 =
Total (A} 1,536.84. 1,724.57
B. Inventories at the end of the year:

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Amount in Rs. lakhs) {Amount in Rs, [akhs)
{a) Opticals 93246 759.23
Ib) Pharmaceuticals Products 520,99 500.68
{c} Contact Lens and Accessories 124.82 52.45
{d} Main, Headset Assembly & other Raw material = 42.09
{e} Other Raw material 80.86 66.87
(R Clinical ltems and Equipments 139.18 101.93
Tatal (8) 1,795.26 1,520.25
Total {4} - {B) -261.42 204.37|
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particutars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Amount in Rs. lakhs) {Amaunt jn Rs. lakhs)
{a} Salaries and Bonus 12,868.88 10,643.60
{b} Contributions to Provident and Other Funds £93,95 639.24
{c) Staff Welfare Expenses 418.75 27155
Total 13,981.58 11,554.39
FINANCE COSTS
Far the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulazs 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Amount in Rs. lakhs) [Amount In Rs, fakhs)
{a) Interest Expense
{l} On Term Loans
- From Banks 323,66 216.56
- From Others 24.48 3.84
{1i) On Debenturas 1,666.50 161736
(i) On Others 143.10 134.82
{b} Interest on delayed remittance of statutory dues 182 18.63
{c} Interest an Lease Liability 2,320.25 216138
Total 4,539.81 4,152.59
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33 DEPRECIATION AND ANORTISATION EXPENSE

Particufars

For the Year Encled
31 March 2022
{Amount In Rs. lakhs)

For the Year Ended
31 March 2021
{Amount in Rs. 1akhs)

(a} Depreciation on Tangibie Assets {Refer Note &) 463437 ,675.56
(b) Degreciatian on right to use asset [Refer Note 7) 3,216.47 3,300.16
() Amortization on Intangible Assets {Refer Note 8} 1,545.15 149877
(d) Impairment on Intangible Assets {Refer Note 7} 370.2% -
Total 9,766.08 9,474.49
3¢  OTHER EXPENSES
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

Particulars

31 March 2022
{amount iz Rs. lakhs)

3T March 2021
{Amaunt in Rs, fakhs)

{a) Consultancy Charges 927722 6,661.75
(b} Consumablas 7,595.57 517024
(¢) Power and Fual 81411 697,59
{d) water Consumption 55,30 38.88
{e) Rent 954.60 1,127.61
{f) Repairs & Maintenance
- Equipments 431,938 274.53
- Others 73030 539.63
{&} Hospital Malntenance Charges 1,547.43 133625
{h) Brakerage and Commission - 1.07
{i) Insurance 186.22 1772
{j) Rates and Taxes 160.45 71
{k) Cammunication 361.40 314.18
{I} Travelling and Conveyance 596 65 548.35
{m] PFrinting and Stationery 273.42 22461
{n} Laga! and Professional Charges 1,092,50 800.69
{o) Software Maintenance Charges 24253 214.87
{p} Business #rometion and Entertainment 805.62 373.99
{q) Marketing Expenses 1,304.52 BA3.72
{r) Payments to Auditors {Refer Note 34.1 betow) 16616 150.83
(s) Less on property, plant and equipment discarded - 80.77
() Bank Charges 359.52 256.15
() Net Loss on Foreige Currency Transactions and Translation 17.45 -
(w) Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) {Refer Note 34.2 below) 28.83 34.10
{v) Less on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 23,61 51.51
(z) Allowance for expected credit losses 1,513.69 2,006,68
Less: Bad dabts written off (403.40) (776.69)
1,116.29 1,229.99
(2a) Miscellaneous Expenses 455.38 303.03
Total 29,031.06 21,345.57
341 P 1o the Auditors Lt
For the Yeer £nded For the Year Ended
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March zo21
(Arount in Rs. lakhs) (Amaunt in Rs. lakhs)
fa) As Auditors:
- For Statutery Audit and Limited Review 145.10 13165
- Far Tax Audit - -
- Other Services 579 10.35
- Reimbursement of Expenses 0.43 0.58
- Goods and Service Tax/Service Tax 10.84 825
Total 166,16 150.83

34,2 Detalls of Corporate Sacia! Responsibllity expenditure ;

r. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited is the subsidiary of the Compnay, identifies and incurs expenses towards Carporate Social Responsibifity {'CSR'}, in accordance with its TSR Policy in

compllance of Section 135 of the Compantes Act, 2012 read with relevant schedule and rules made thersunder, The necessary disclesures are as below:

Particufars

For the Year Ended
31 March 2022
{Amount in Rs. laihs)

For the Year Ended
31 March 2021
(Armount in Rs. lakhs)

- Total of previous vear
shertfall (if any)
Remarks {Te detail the reason for the shortfall If any)

jon to C5R =xp.

etails of ralated party transactions, eg., contribution to a trust controled by the company in

vision for the year (where provision is made wrt a liability fncurred by entering into a contractual
ion, the movements ie the provision during the yeer should be shown separately)

{i) Gross ameunt required o be spent by the Company during the year 28.84 3392
[Detarmined in accordance with the notification as issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs]
(i} Amount spent duying the financial year
a) Construclion or acquisition of any asset - -
b} ©n purpose other than (z) above
- Paid 28.83 34.10
- Utilised from excess erount spert in previous financial year 0.01
- ¥at to he Paid = -
As at 31 March 2022
Particulars Project f NGD Amount
Opening Balance
- Surplus with campany 0.18 0.18
Amount Required to be spent by the company during the year 28.84 28.84
Amount Spent
- From Company's bank account
i} Heslth care services 17.50 17.50
ii} Premotion of eduaction 1133 11.33
- From Sepatate (SR unspent account &t 5
Total 2882 28.82
[Amount utilised/ set off in current year from excess amount spent in pravious financial year 0.01 0.01
Cloiing balance 0.17 0.17
- With company - -
- In separate C5R unspent Afr = -
- Shaortfall at the end of the year (if any) 017 0.17
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37  Employee Senefits

37.1 Defined Contribetion plans

{a) The Group makes Provident and Pension Fund contributions, which is 2 defined contribution plan, for qualifying empleyees. Additionally, the Groug also provides, for covered employees, heafth insurance
through the Employee State Insurance scheme. Under the Schemes, the Group is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payrell costs to fund the bensfits. The contributicns payable to these
plans by the Group are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

{b) Expenses recopnized ;

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2621

Particulars

{Amount in Rs. lakhs)

{Amaount In Rs. fakhs]

i) Inchzded under 'Cantributiens to Provident and Other Funds' {Refer Note 31}

Contributions to provident and pension and other funds 54252 404.04
iy  Included under 'Staff Welfare Expenses’ {Refer Note 31)
Contributions to Employee State Insurance 69.43 174.64
37,2 Compensated Absences
For the year ended For the year ended
31 tMarch 2022 31 March 2621

Particulars

{Amount in Rs. lakhs)

{Amount in Rs, fakhs)

{a)  Included under ' Salaries and Banus ' (Refer Note 31} 101.68 22.07
Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
{Amount in Rs. lakhs) {Amaunt in Rs. lakhs]
{b) Net asset / {liabifity} recognized in the Balance Sheet {353.49) (288.12)
Current portion of the above {115.1%) {116.89)
Mon - current portion of the above {2£3.300 {171.23)

The Key Assumptions used i the computation of provision for compensated absences are as givan below:

Particulars 2021-2022 20720-2021
Discount Rate (% p.a) 5.85% 5.20%
Future Salary Increase [% p.a} B.00% 6.00%

37.3  Defined bensfit plans

Certain entities af the Group have a funded gratuity scheme for covering its gratuity obhigation. The gratuity provision has been made based on the actuarial valuation done as at the year end using the Projected
Unit Credit method. The Key Assumptions used in the Actuarial Valuation s provided by Independent Actuary, are as given below:

{a} Amnunt recognized in the statement of profit & lass {induding other cemprehensive income) in respect of the defined benefit plan are as follows:
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Amaunt in Rs. lakhks) {Amount ia Rs. [akhs}
Fi ized in 5t 1 of Profit & Loss in respect of these defined benefit plans are as follaws:
Servica Cost [Refer Note(i) below] :
- Current Service Cost 162.13 108.00
- Net interast expense 17.65 14.04
Compenents of defined benefit costs recognized In the Statemant of Profit and Loss 179,78 122.04
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:
Return on plan assets {excluding amount included in net interest expense) {1.41) 3.14
Actuarial gains and loss arising form changes in Demographlc assumptions 39.08 5.00
Actuarial gains and loss arising form changes in financial zssumptions 23.95 218
Acterarial gains and loss arising form experlence adjustments BE.71 15.29
Compenents of defined benafit costs r d in other compi income 150.23 25.61
Total defined bereafit cost recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive lncome 330.11 147.65
{i) The current service cost and Interest expense for the year are included in Mote 31 - "Employee Benefit Expenses” in the statement of profit & loss under the Iine item "Contribution to Provident and Other
Funds"
{ii) The remeasurement of the net defined benefit Hability is included in other comprehensive income.
{b) Theamountincluded in the balance shest arising from the entity's nbligation in respect of defined benefit plan is as follows :

Particulars

As at 31 March 2022
{Amount in Rs. lakhs)

As at 31 March 2021
(Amountin Rs. lakhs)

Net Asset/[Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet

1. Present value of defined henefit obligation 1,12154 846.51
2. Fair value of plan assets 49321 406.89
Net asset / {fiability) recognized in the Balance Sheet (628.33} {439.62)
Current partion of the above 197.47 120.34
Non - current portion of the above 430.86 319.28
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{c}

{d

le}

(e}

Movement in the present value of the defined benefit ohlizgation are as follows :

Particutars

Far the year ended
31 March 2022
[Amaunt in Rs. [akhs)

For the year ended
31 March 2021
{Ampunt in Rs. lakhs)

Particulars

31 March 2022
{amount in Rs. lakhs)

Present value of defined henefit ebligation at the & ing of the year 846.51 72850
Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profft and Loss:
- Current Service Cost 162.14 123.85
- Interest Expense {Income} 35.26 34.62
- Adjustments (7.39) {2.19)
Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income:
Remeasurement gains / (iosses)
- Actuarial Gain {Loss} arising frem:
i. Demographic Assumptions 2849 -
li. Financial Assumpticns 24,54 7.18
Experience Adjustments 88.71 28.84
Benefit payments. (64.42) {74.35)
Foreign currency translation impact 447) {1.40)
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 1,119.37 846.51
Movement in fair value of glan assets are as follows :
For the year ended Far the year ended

31 March 2021
{Amount in Rs. lakhs}

Adjustment to Opening Balance

Remezsurernant gains [ {losses)

Contributfons by employer
Benefit payments

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 406.89 338.47
Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss:
- Expected return on plan assets 17.62 16.78
Recognized In Other Comprehensive Income:
- Actuarial gains and loss arising form changes in financlal assumptions - {0.84)
- Return an plan assets (excluding amoent induded in net interest expense) 141 {2.30)
13171 129.17
(64.42) {74.39)|
493.21 406.89

The fair value of plan assets plan at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Particulars

As at 31 March 2022
{Ampunt in Rs. lakhs)

As at 32 March 2021
{Amount in Rs. lakhs)

Investment Funds with Insurance Company
- Life Insurance Cerporation of India

4393.21

406.89

(1) The plan assets comprise Tnsurer managed funds. None of the assets carry a quoted market price in active market ar represent the entity's own transferable financial instruments or property occupied

by the entity.

The Actual return an plan asset for the year anded 31 March 2022 was Rs. 12.03 lakhs (For the year ended - 31 March 2021: Rs. 13,64 lakhs).

Actuarial assumptions
Investment Rislk;

The present value of defined benefit plan liahility is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference te the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the balance sheet

date for the estimatad term of the obligations.

Interest Risk:

A decrease in the yield of Indian government securities will increase the plan liability.

Longevity Risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan fiability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the moriality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the fife

expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

Salary Risk:

The present value of the defined benefit plan liabillty is calculzted by reference te the future salarfes. In particular, there is a risk for the Group that any adverse salary growth can result in an increase in

cost of providing these benefits to employees in future.

The principal assumuptions used for the purpose of actuarial valuation weare as follows :

Particulars

As at 31 March 2022
{Amount in Rs. lakhs)

As at 31 March 2021
{Armount in Rs, lakhs)

Disceunt rate

Expected rate of salary increase

Expected return on plan assets

Expected Attrition rate based on Past Service (PS) (% p.a)
Mortality

5.85%
8.00%
5.85%
28%
Indian Assured Lives
[2012-2014)

Indian Assured Lives {2012-2014)

4.60% 10 5.20%
3% to 6%
5.20%
28% to 37%

1. The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obfgation.

2. The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promaotion and other relevant factors.

3. In order to protect the capital and optimize returns within acceptable risk parameters, the plan 2ssets are mainfained with an insurer managed fund (maintained by the Life Insurance Corporation

{'LIC"Y) and is well diversed.
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{h} Asset Liahbility Matching Strategies
Certain entities of the Group have purchased insurance policy, which is basically a year-on-year cash accumulation plan in which the interest rate is declared on yearly basis and is guaranteed for a perfod
of ane year. The Insurance Company, as part of the policy rules, makes payment of ail gratuity liability occurring during the year {subjeci to sufficiency of funds under the policy). The policy, thus, mitigates
the liguidity risk. However, being a cash accumulation plan, the duration of assets is shorter compared to the duration of liabilities. Thus, the Group is exposed to movemnent In interest rate.
{i)  Effect of Plan on Entity’s Future Cash Flows
a) Funding Arrangements and Funding Policy
Certain entities of the Group have purchased an insurance policy to provide for payment of gratuity to the employees. Every year, the insurance Company carries out a funding valuation based on the latest
employee data pravided by the Group. Any deficit In the assets arising as a result of such valuation is funded by the Group.
b} The Group expects to make a contribution of Rs. 169.56 lakhs during the next financfal year.
€) The weighted average duration of the benefit obligation at 31 March 2022 is 3,86/3.44 years (as at 31 March 2021 is 3.10/2 66 years).
d) Maturity proflle of defined benefit obligation:
Expected cash flows over the next (vaiued on undiscounted basis): As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
{Amoumt in Rs, lakhs) {Amount in Rs. lakhs)
Within 1 year 261.87 251.74
2to 5 years 558.22 465.06
6 to 10 years 317.62] 152.18
(i} Experience Adjustmants* (Amount in Rs. Lakhs}
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21 2019-20
Defined Benefit Obligations 1,121.54 734.53 725.89
Plan Assets 493.22 A06.89 338.46
Surplus / {Deficit} (60C.44) [428.35) {387.23)
Experience Adjustments on Plan Liabilities 88.71 15.29 202.57
Experiance Adjustnents on Plan Assets - - -

Sensitivity Analysis

The hensfit ohligation results of a such a scheme are particularly sensitive to discount rate, lengevity risk, salary growth and employee attrition, if the plan provision do provide for such increases on

commencement of pension.

‘The following tabie summarizes the impact in financial terms on the reported defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period arising on account changes in thase four key parameters:

= S As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
[Increase] / Decrease on the Refined benefit Obligation {Amount in Rs. lakhs} {Amount in Rs. lakhs}
{i} Discount Rate
Increase by 100 bps 30.21 {16.40)
Decrease by 100 bps (43.45) 16.72
{ii) Salary growth rate
Increase by 100 bps {27.28) 14.38
Decrease by 100 bps 26.50 {14.86)
(iii} Attrition rate
Increase by 100 bps 1.43 {0.91)
Decrease by 100 bps {1.42} 0.90
{iv] Mortality rate
Increase by 10% (0.01) Q.03

*Experience adiustments related to prior years have been disclosed based an the information to the extent availzble.




DR. AGARWAL’'S HEALTHCARE LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022
38 Mon-Controlling Interest
{a) The Campany holds ownership interest of 71,75% in Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021. The summarized financial information
of the Subsidiary is provided below. This information is based on standalone financiai statement of the subsidiary:
Summarized Statement of Profit and Loss
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Amount in Rs, lakhs} [Amount in Rs. [akhs)

Income 20,247.00 14,061.53
Expenses {17,015.87) (13,488.25}
Profit Before Tax 3,231.13 573.28
Tax Expense (820.66) {717.14)
Profit / (Loss) for the Year 2,410.47 {143.86})

- attributable to the owners of the Company 1,729.51 {103.22}

- attributable to the non-controlling interest 680.95 (40.64)
Other Comprehensive Income / {Loss} (59.30 0.05

- attributable to the owners of the Company (42.55 0.04

- attributable to the non-controlling interest (16.75 0.01
Total Comprehensive Income 2,351.17 {143.81)

- attributable to the owners of the Company 1,686.96 {103.18)

- attributable to the non-controlling interest 664.20 [40.63)
Summarized Balance Sheet

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
[Amount in Rs. lakhs) [Amount in Rs. lakhs)

Non-Current Asset 14,907.57 11,115.85
Current Asset 5,000.61) 4,407.36
Nan-Current Liabilities 18,248.93 5,196.96
Current Liabilities 5,335.07 4,855.97
Total Equity 7,817.43 5,466.28

- attributabla to the owners of the Company 5,549.73 3,862.79

- attributable to the non-contrelling interest 2,267.70 1,603.48
Summarized Cash Flow Statement

Year ended Year anded
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Amount in Rs. lakhs) {Amount in Rs. lakhs}
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 5,667.62 3,387.34
Net cash used in investing activities (B) {4,627.82) {1,096.81
Net cash generated used in financing activities (C) {381.41) (759.99)
Net increase in cash and cash eguivalents {A+B+C) 658.3% 1,530.54
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
[Amount in Rs. lakhs) {Amount in Rs. lakhs)

Non Centrolling Interest 2,267.70 1,603.49




DR. AGARWAL'S HEALTHCARE LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

{b} The Company haclds ownership interest of 76% in "Elisar Life Sciences Private Limited" as at 31 March 2022, The summarized financial information of the

Subsidiary is provided below. This information is based on standalone financial statement of the subsidiary:

Summarized Statement of Profit and Loss

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Amount in Rs. lakhs} [Amount in Rs. lakhs)

Income 318.48 206.61
Expenses {1,223.66) (1,264.34
Profit Before Tax {905.18) (1,057.73
Tax Expense 98.53 29.62
Profit for the Year {806.65) {1,028.11

- attributable to the owners of the Company (613.13) {781.36)

- attributable to the non-controlling interest {193.52) (246.75)
Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) - -

- attributable to the owners cf the Company - -

- attributable to the non-controlling interest - -
Total Comprehensive lncome [806.65) {1,028.11

- attributable to the owners of the Company {613.13}) (781.36)

- attributable to the non-controlling interest {193.52) [246.75]
Summarized Balance Sheet

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Amount in Rs. lakhs} {Amount in Rs. lakhs)

Non-Current Asset 514.45 934.95
Current Asset 327.48 289.46|
Non-Current Liabilities 2,413.84 1,657.80]
Current Liabilities 478.65 B810.55
Total Equity {2,050.59) (1,243.94)

- attributable to the owners of the Company (1,558.35) {945.23)

- attributable to the nan-contrelling interest 1492.24) {298.71)
Summarized Cash Flow Statement

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Amount in Rs. lakhs) {Amount in Rs. lakhs)
Net cash generated from operating activities {A) 77.45 (93.43)
Net cash used in investing activities (8) (24.18 (8.25
et cash used in financing activities (C) (36.08 103.76
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+8+C) 17.18 2.08
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Amount in Rs. lakhs) {Amount in Rs. lakhs)

Non Centrolling Interest {492.24) {298.71)
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{c) The Company scquired 51% in "Aditya Jyot Eye Hospital Private Limited” during the FY 2021-22. As the acquisition was affectad cnly in the current year,
comparitive information has not been disclosed. The summarized financial informatien of the Subsidiary post date of acquisition is provided below. This

information is based on standalone financial statement of the subsidiary:

Summarized Statement of Profit and Loss

For the Year Ended
Particulars 31 March 2022
{Amount in Rs. lakhs)
Income 580.47
Expenses {549.56)
Profit Before Tax 130.91
Tax Expense {12.16
Profit for the Year 143.07
- attributable to the owners of the Company 72.97
- attributable to the non-controlling interest 70.10
Other Comprehensive income -
- attributable to the owners of the Company 3
- attributable to the non-controlling interest -
Total Comprehensive Incomea 143.07|
- attributable to the owners of the Company 72.97
- attributable to the non-controlling interest 70.10]

Summarized Balance Sheet

[d} The Company holds 100% in "Orbit Healthcare Services (Mauritivs) Limited" which is the holding company for ather African Subsidiaries including less than
100% ownership Refer Note 2 for details. Corresponding NCI has been disclosed beiow for Non-controlling interest in certain African Subsidiaries.

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022
{Amount in Rs. lakhs)

Non Controlling Interest

131.16

As at
Particulars 31 March 2022
[Amount in Rs. lakhs)

Non-Current Asset 1,106.28
Current Asset 246.93
Nan-Current Liabilities 513.36
Current Liabilities 474.00
Total Equity 365.85

- attributable to the owners of the Company 295,75

- attributable to the non-controlling interest 70.10
Summarized Cash Flow $tatement

Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2022
{Amount in Rs. fakhs})
Net cash generated from operating activities {A) 238.83
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (32.32
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (64.88
Net increase In cash and cash equivalents [A+8+C) 141.63
As at
Particulars 31 March 2022
{Amount in Rs. lakhs)

Non Controlling Inferest 236.71




DR. AGARWAL'S HEALTHCARE LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

39 Interest in Associates

The Company holds 14.71% interest in Idearx Services private Limited as at 31 March 2022 (28% as at 31 March 2021}. As per agreement with
Idearx Services private Limited and its sharsholders, significant influence still remains with the Company and hence the entity is consolidated for
the purpose of Consolidated Financial statements of the Company. The summarized financial information of the Associate is provided below.

Summarized Statement of Profit and Loss

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

{Amount in Rs. lakhs) {Amount in Rs. lakhs)
Income 3,727.06 1,448.05
Expenses 4,248.82 1,715.80
Loss Before Tax {521.76) {267.71)
Tax Expense & A
Loss for the Year {521.76) {267.71)
Other Comprehensive Income / {Loss) - 0.5%
Total Comprehensive Loss {521.76) (267.12)
Proportion of Group's ownership 14.71% 28.00%
Group's share in Total Comprehensive Loss (Refer Note below) (76.75) (70.06)

recognised.

the year eadad 31 March 2021.

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the share of loss from associate amounted to Rs.76.70 lakhs. However, since the carrying value of investment
in Assoctate is already "Nil" and the recognition of ioss is restricted to the carrying value in bocks, the share of foss during the year has not been

During the Previous year, the Opening value of Associate Investment in the books of holding cormpany amounted to Rs. 70.06 Lakhs as at 01 April
2020 and the the group's share of Loss of Associate for the current period amounts to Rs. 74.79 lakhs. However, considering the principles of Ind A5
28, recognition of loss has been restricted to the carrying value in boaks and hence only Rs, 70.06 Lakhs has been recognised as share of loss for|

Summarized Balance Sheet

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Amount in Rs. lakhs) {Amount in Rs. lakhs)
Non-Current Asset 261.00 251.31
Current Asset 1,800.03 925.36
Non-Current Liabilities 10.79 6.83
Current Liabitities 2,338.74 1,522.93
Total Equity (289.51) 1353.09)
Proportion of Group's ownership 14.71% 28.00%
Group's share in Total Equity {42.59) (98.87)
Summarized Cash Flow Statement
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 march 2022 31 March 2021
{Amount in Rs. lakhs) [Amount in Rs. lakhs)
Net cash used in aperating activities (A} {1,113.59) {755.35)
Net cash used in investing activities (B} {74.67) {73.28)
Net cash generated from financing activities {C) 1,504.08 845.00
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 315.70 16.38

Reconciliztion of the above summarized financial information to the carrving amoynt of interest in the Associate recognized in the

Consolidated Financial Statements

Particulars Amount in Rs. lakhs
Amount invested in the Associate (A) 201.00
Share of Net Assets as at the date of acquisition i.e. 12 January 2017 (8) (5.02)
Goodwill (C=A - B) 206.02
Share of Post Acquisition Loss upto 31 March 2017 {D) {1.93)
Carrying amount as at 31 March 2017 (E=A + D) 199.07
Share of Loss for the year ended 31 March 2018 (F) (9.35)
Carrying amount as at 31 March 2018 (G=E+F) 189.72)
Share of Loss for the year ended 31 March 2012 (H) (31.53)
Carrying amount as at 31 March 2019 (=G + H) 158.19
Share of Loss for the year ended 31 March 2020 ()} (88.13}
Carrying amount as at 31 March 2020 (K=1+)) 70.06
Share of Loss for the year ended 31 March 2021 (1) (70.06}

Carrying amount as at 31 March 2021 (M =X + 1}

Share of Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022 (M)

;fé(rying amount as at 31 March 2022 (G =M+ N)

L5
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40 Related Party Disclosure

Names of Related Parties and Nature of Relationships*

Nature of Relationship 2021-22 20620-21

(i} Associate  entities  of  the|ldeaRx Services Private Limited \deaRx Services Private Limited
Company

(i} Entities with significant influence|Value Growth Investment Heldings PTF Lid Value Growth Investment Holdings PTE Ltd
over the Company Claymore Investments (Mauritius) Pte. itd Claymare Investrments (Mauritius) Pte. Ltd

Arvon investments Pte Ltd (W.e.f Aug 2021)

iii) Enterprise over which the Key|Orkit international - Partnership Firm Orbit International - Partnership Firm
Manageme.nt ~Perscnnei‘ ‘of the Maatrum Technologies Private Limited Orbit Health Care Services Limited, Mauritius
Company is in a8 position to
exercise control / joint controlf|Dr. Agarwal's Bye Institute - Partpership Firm Elisar Life Sciences Private Limited
significant influence

Dr Agarwals Eye Institute Private Limited Maatrum Technologies Private Limited
Aditya iyot Fye Haspital Private Limited (w.e.f 08 Cctober Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute - Partnership Firm
2021)
{iv) Key Management Personnel of |Dr. Adil Agarwal, Wholetime Director Dr. Adil Agarwal, Wholetime Director
the Company / Subsidiary Dr. Anash Agarwal, Wholetime Director Dr. Anosh Agarwal, Wholetime Director
Company Dr. Amar Agarwal Dr. Amar Agarwal
Mr, Shiv Agrawal iz, Shiv Agrawal
Mr. Mithun Padamchand Sancheti [Upto 23 April 2021 Mr. Mithun Pademchand Ssncheti
Mr. Suresh Eshwara Prabhala Mr. Suresh Eshwara Prabhala
Mr. Sanjay Dharambir Anand Mz, Sanjay Dharambir Anand
Mr. Venkatesh Ratnasami Mr. Venkatesh Ratnasami
Mr. Balakrishnan Venkatraman Mr. Balakrishnan Venkatraman
Mr. Trichur Ramasubrarmanian Ramachandran (Upte 8 March|Ms. Saradha Govindarajfan {upto 31 July 2020)
2022}
Ms, Lakshmi Subramanian Mr. Trichur Rarnasubramanian Ramachandran
Mr. Udhay Davey IGroup CFO) Mr. Udhay Davey {Group CFO) {w.e.f 02 December 2020)
Mr Thanikainathan Arumugam ivis. Lakshntl Subramanian
Ms. Jully H livani {U'pto 13 August 2021 Mr Thanlkainathan Arumugam
Mrs. Meenkashi fayaraman (W.e.f .16 December 2021) Ms. Jully H Jivani
(v} |Relatives of KMP/Individuals Dr. Athiya Agarwal Dr. Athiya Agarwai
having significant influence Dr. Ashar Agarwal Dr. Ashar Agarwal
Dr, Ashvin Agarwal Dr. Ashvin Agarwai

*Relzted party refationships are as identified by the Management and refied upan by the auditors.

Fransactions carrigd put with related parties referred te above in the ordinary course of business during the year.

Partlculars Related Party Zal s Al
{Amount in Rs. lakhs) {Amount in Rs. lakhs}
Transactions during the Year
Expenses
Purchases IdeaRx Services Privata Limited 2,032.48 1,024.98
Rent Expenses Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute 525.58 503.36
Dr. Ashwvin Agarwal - Guesthouse 3322 31.06
Dr. Ashar Agarwai - Guesthouse 1670 48 37
Others
Recovery of Rental Deposits Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute 458.00 =
Capitaiviorinfpiceress JRentiEnpense Dr. Agarwsl's Eve Institute 525.58 503.96
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MNotes:

(i} The Group accounts for costs incurred by / on behalf of the Related Parties based on the actual invoices / debit notes raised and accruals as canfirmed by such related parties. The
Related Parties have confirmed to the Mznagement that as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, there are ro further amounts payzble to / receivable from them, cther than as
disclosed ahove. The Group Incurs certain costs on behalf of related parties. These costs have been allocated/recovered from the related parties on a basis mutually agreed with
them.

{ii) Dr. Agarwal's Healthzare Limited has provided Corporate Guarantees amounting to Rs. 7,004 lakhs to Axis (Previous year : Rs. 2,360 lakhs to HDFC) for the loans faken by Dr
Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited.

Also the loans held with HDFC during the previcus year is taken over by axis bank to the extent of Rs. 1,003 lakhs. Further, 1,350,000 Equity Shares held by the company in Or
Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited has been pledged as one of the collateral securities with Axis (Previous year with HOFC), for the leans taken by the Company to the extent of fs. 7,004
lakhs.

{ili) Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited has provided comfort letter to HDFC Bank in respect of the Cash Credit facility availed by the Company.

{iv) An extension of Equitable Mortgage on a property owned by Dr. Agarwal's Eye nstituta has alse been provided to HOFC Limited and Axis Bank as a security in respect of the
Term loan and Cash Credit facility availed by the Or Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited.

(v} Dr. Amar Agarwal, Dr. Athiya Agarwal, Dr. Adil Agarwal, Dr. Anosh Agarwal, Dr. Ashar Agarwal, Dr. Ashwin Agarwal and Dr. Agarwal's Eve Institute have provided personal
guarantees for term loans taken by the Group.

Cempensation of key management personnel

Particulars Related Party 2021-22 2020-2021
[Amount in Rs. lakhs) {Amount In Rs. lakhs)
Short-term employee benefits Dr. Amar Agarwal 181.60 154.00
{Refer Note (i}) Dr. Athiya Agarwal 87.35 67.28
Ms.Saradha Govindarajan P 15.17
Mr. Udhay Davey 100.05 32.21
Ms. Jully H livani 398 9.80
Ms. Meenakshi layaraman 3.24 -
Dr. Adil Agarwal 111.85 39.40
Dr. Anosh Agarwal 104.85 37.00
M Thanikainathan Arumugam 31.23 20,65
Dr. Natarajan 42.76 67.50
Post employee benefits Dr. Adil Agarwal 0.2z 0.22
{Contribution to Provident Fund] Br. Anosh Agarwal 0.22 0.22
Dr. Amar Agarwal 0.22 0.22
Or. Athiya Agarwal 0.22 0.22
Ms. Saradha Gevindarajan - 0.04
Mr. Udhay Davey 0.2z 0.07
Mr, Thantkainathan Arumugam 0.22 0.22
Ms. Jully H Jivani 0.09 022
Ms. Meenakshi Jayaraman 0.07 J
Other perquisites br. Adil Agarwal 96,08 92,71
Or. Anash Agarwal 45.81 4546
Receiving of services
Consuitancy Dr. Ashvin Agarwal 68.16 58,65
Dr. Ashar Agarwal 16.17 44 57
Others
Reimbursement of Expenses Or. Amar Agarwal 32.14 8.69
Dr. Ashvin Agarwal 21.27 441
Director sitting fees Mr. Trichur Ramasubramanian Ramachandran i10 1.25
M., Sanjay Anand 1.85 2.25
Ms. Lakshmi Subramanian 035 1.05
Mr. Shiv Agrawal 0.75 0.75
Mr. Mithun Padamchand Sachett - 0.25
Mr. Balakrishnan 0.75 0.75
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Notes:

(i} Exciudes gratuity and compensated absences which cannot be separately identifiable from the composite amount advised by the actuary.

(i} The remuneration payable to key management personnel is determined by the nomination and remuneration committee having regard to the performance of individuals
and market trends.

{iii) There were no balances outstznding te be paid / received as at the year end.

(iv) The above remuneration for key managerial parsennel does not include vehicle, communication expenses & other expenses for which the perquisite value is determined as

NIl

Balances outstanding as at year end

As at As at
Particulars Related Party 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Amount in Rs. Lakhs) {Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Assets

Rental Deposits {Financial Assets - Loans) |Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute 458.00 458.00
Liabilities

Trade Payables |deaRx Services Private Limited 523.04 498.39

Dr. Agarwal's Eve Institute 49.60 -

The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settied in cash. No guarantees have bean given or received. There have been no instances of amounts due to or due from
related parties that have been written back or written off or otherwise provided for during the year.
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41 Segment Reporting
The Group is engaged in providing eye care and related services provided from its hospitals which are located in india. Based on the "management spproach” as defined in Ind-AS 108 - Operating Segmeants, the
Chief Operating Decision Marker {CODM) evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of varisus perfarmance indicators by the overall business segment, i.e. Eye care
related sales and sarvices.
The Group operates in two principal geographical areas - India and Other Countries. The Group’s revenue from continuing operations from extarnal custamers by location of eperations and information about Its

non-current assets by location of assets are given below:

Revenue from Operations by Geographical Market

Particutars 2021-2022 2020-2621

{Amaount in Rs. lakhs) | {Amount in Rs. lakhs)
India 56,348.82 36,892.94
Others 13,258.86 10,225.11
Total 69,607.67 47,118.05
Nan Cwrrent Assets by Geographical Market*

! As at Asat

Particulars 31March 2022 31 March 2021

{Amountin Rs. Lakhs} | {Amount in Rs. Lakhs]
India 68,055.80 52,666.11
Cthers 5,860.94 5,998.17
Total 74,016.74 58,664.28

* Non Current Assets exclude Financial Assets, Deferred Tax Assets and Non- current tax assets
A2 Leases

A.  The Company has taken medical equipments and buildings on leases having remaining lease terms of more than 1 year to 10 vears, with the option tc extend the term of leases. Refer Note 7 for carrying amount
of right-to-use assets at the end of the reporting peried by class of underlying asset.

B. The fallowing is the breakup of currant and non-current lease liabilities as at 31 March 2022;
{Amount in Rs. Lakhs}

Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current 2,675.92 2,432.78
MNon-current 31,637.78 25,911.43
Total 34,312.70 28,344.21

B. The contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31 March 2022 on an undiscounted basis is as follows:

Expected Minimum Lease Commitment
Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Amount in Rs. Lakhs) {Amount in Rs. Lakhs]

Lease Obligation

Payahle - Not later than ane year 4,557.85 2,432.78
Payable - Later than one year but not later than five years 15,672.09 8,589.28
Payable - Later than five years 22,667,53 17,322.14

Total 42,897.47 28,344.20
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E.  Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Amount in Rs, Lakhs) {Amount In Rs. Lakhs)
interest on [ease fiabilities 2,380.25 2,161.38
Expenses relating to short term |eases a54.60 1,127.61
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 3,216.47 3,300.16:
Profit on termination of lease 243.82 320.40i
f.  Amounts recognized in the Cash Flow Statement;
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Amount in Rs. Eakhs) | {Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
Total cash outflow for leases {5,047.90) {3,818.10)
43 Earnings Per Share
Particularg 2021-22 2020-21

Earnings
Net profit / {loss) attributable to Eguity share holders for calculation of Basic EPS (Rsin Lakhs) 3,769.34 {5,547.83)
Sharas
MNumber of Equity shares at the baginning of the year 68,59,969 68,59,969
Number of Equity shares Issued during the year N -
Total Number of £quity Shares cutstanding at end of the year 68,59,969 68,59,969
Weighted avergare number of Equity shares outstanding during the year for calculation of Basie EPS £8,59,369 68,59,969
Earnings Per Shara

Basic {In Rs} 54.95 (80.87)

Dilutive {In Rs) 54.95 (80.87)
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a4.1

44.2

44.4

Financial Instruments

Capital Management

The Group manages capital risk in order to maximize shareholders’ profit by maintaining sound/foptimal cepital structure. For the purpose of the Group’s capital management, capital includes
equity share Capital and Other Equity and Debt includes Borrowings and Other Financial Liabflities net of Cash and bank balances. The Group monitors capital an the basis of the following
gearing ratio. There is no change in the overall capital risk management strategy of the Group compared to last year.

Gearing Ratio :
Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Particulars Blg e
31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
Borrowings and Other Financial Liabilities 28,071.20 18,519.25
Cash and Bank Balance (11,667.96) {6,494.68)
Net Debt (A) 17,403.24 12,024.57
Total Equity {8} 23,380.60 19,862 .83
RNet Debt to equlty ratio {A/B) Q.74 0.6

Categories of Financial Instruments
The carrylng value of the financial instruments by categories as on 31 March 2022 and 21 March 2021.

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Asat As at

Earicuilars 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021

{a) Financial Assets

Measured at amortized cost
- Nen Current Investments > =
- Loans 2,144.40 2,043.81

- Cash and Bank balances 11,667.96 6,494.68
- Trade receivahles 5,671.52 4,670.99
- Other financial assets 462.02 105.46
Total 19,945.91 13,314.94

(b} Financial Liabilities -
Measured at amortized cost

- Berrowings 29,017.84 17,738.18
- Lease Liabilities 34,313.70 28,344.20
- Trade Payables 8,906.23 745149
Measured at fair value

~ Other financlal liakilities 3,510.40 2,787.95
Total 75,848.17 5638182

The management assessed that fair vaiue of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, loans, borrowings, trade payables and other current financial assets and fabilities approximate thelr
carrying amounts largaly due to the short-term maturitjes of these instruments

The fair value of the financial assets and Habilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction hetween willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair valuefamortized cost
1) Long-term fixed-rate receivables/borrowings are evaluated by the Group based on parameters such as interest rates, specific country risk factors, individual lesses and craditworthiness of
the receivables

2) The fair value of ungucted instruments, loens from hanks and other financial liabilities, as well as other nen—urrent financial liakilities are estimated by discounting future cash flows using
rates currently availabie for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. |n addition to being sensitive to a reasonably possible change in the forecast cash flows or discount rate,
the fair value of the unguoted instruments is alsa sensitive to a reasonatly possible change in the growth rates. The valuation requires management to use unobservable inputs in the model,
of which the significant unobservable inputs are disclosed in the tables helow. Management reguiarly assesses a range of reasonably possible alternatives for those significant uncbservable
inputs and determines their impact on tha total fair value.

3) Falr values of the Group’s interest-bearing borrowings and loans are determined by using Discounted Cash Flow { DCF) method using discount rate that reflects the issuer’s borrowing rate as
at the end of the reporting period. The own non- perfoermance risk as at 31 March 2022 was assessed to be insignificant.

Fair Value Hlerarchy

Level 1; Queted prices (unadjusted) In active markets for identical assets or liahilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs}.

Detafls of financial assets and financial lfabilities which ware valued at fair value as of 31 March 2022 and 31 March 221t are disclosed in Note 44,2

Financial Risk Management Framawark

The Group’s Board of Directors has overzll responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framework. The Group manages financial risk relzting to the
operations thraugh internal risk reports which analyze exposure by degree and magnitude of risk.

The Group’s activities expose Tt te a variety of financial risks: liquidity risk, credit risk and market risk {including interest rate risk and other price risk). The Group's primary risk management
focus is to minimize potential adverse effects of market risk on its financial performance. The Group’s risk management assessment and policles and processes are established to identify and
analyze the risks faced by the Group, to set apprapriate risk limits and cantrofs, and to monitor risks and complance with the same. Risk assessment and management policies and processes
are reviewed regularly to reflect changes Tn market conditions and the Group’s activities. The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s risk
assessment and management policias and processes.
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{a) Liquidity Risk Management :

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Group cannot meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Group manages its liquidity risk by ensuring as far as possible, that it will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its fabilities when due, under both normai and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Group's reputstion. The Group
maintains adequate reserves and banking facilities, and continuously monitars the forecast and actua! cash flows by matching maturing profiles of financial assets and financial liabilities in
accordance with the approved risk management policy of the Group periodically. The Group believes that the working capital (including banking limits not utilized) and its cash and cash
equivalent are sufficient to meet its short and medium term requirements.

Liquidity and Interest Risk Tables :

The following tables detall the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables include both interest and principal
cash flows.

To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves at the end of the reporting period. The contractual maturity is based on the
earliest date an which the Group may be required to pay.
{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars Less than 1 year 1 ta 5 years 5'yearsland Total
ahove

As at 31 March 2022

Interest bearing 11,931.57 17,077.83 35,957.60 64,947.00
Non-interest bearing 10,901.34 - - 10,901.34
Total 22,832.91 17,077.83 35,937.60 75,848.34
As at 31 March 2021

Interest bearing 4,157.55 18,666.18 25,053.958 47,517.72
Non-interest bearing 8,464.10 - - 8,464.10
Total 12,621.65 18,666.18 25,093.99 56,381.82

The following tables detail the Group's remaining centractual maturity for its non-derivative financial Assets with agreed repayment periods. The Groug does not hold any derivative
financia! Tnstrument.
Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Particulars lL.ess than 1 year 1to 5 years 5 years and Total
above

As at 31 March 2022

interest bearing 3,530.54 2,320.32 2,098,22 7,949.08
Nan-interest bearing 11,699.79 239.86 57.18 11,996.83
Total 15,230.33 2,560.18 2,155.40 19,945.91
As at 31 March 2021

Interest bearing 2,88256 2,906,35 206,23 5,995,14
MNon-interest bearing 7,208.15 111,65 - 7,319.80
Total 10,090.72 3,017.99 206.23 13,314.94

[b) Credit Risk:

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual ckiigations. Credit risk encampasses of bath, the direct
risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks, Financial instruments that are subjact to concentrations of credit risk principally consist of
trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits and other financial assets. None of the other financial instruments of the group resuit in material concentration of credit risk.
Credit risk is controlled by enalyzing credit limits and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis ta whom the credit has been granted after chtaining necessary approvals for
credit.

The carrying amount of the financlal assets recorded In these financlal statements, grossed up for any allowance for losses, represents the maximum expostires to credit risk.

Trade receivables: The group's exposure to credit risk Is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demograghics of the customer, including the default risk of
the industry and credit history, alse has an influence on cradit risk assassment.

Credit risk on current investments, cash & cash equivalent and derivatives is limited as the group genarally transacts with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by
international and domestic credit rating agencies. Investments primarily include investmment in fixed deposits and mutual funds.

{c) Market Risk :

Market risk is the risk of loss of any future earnings, in realizable fair values or in future cash flows that may result from adverse changes in market rates and prices {such as interest rates
and foreign currency exchange rates} or in the price of market risk sensitive instruments as a result of such adverse changes in market rates and prices. Market risk Js attributable to all
market risk-sensitive financial instruments, all foreign currency receivables and payzables and all short-term and long-term debt. The group is exposed to market risk primarily related to
foreign exchange rate risk and interest rate risk and the market value of its Tnvestments. Thus, the group’s exposure to market risk is a function of investing and berrowing activities and
revenue generating and operating activities in foreign currencies.

{c.1} Interest rate risk:
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The group’s exposure to the risk of

changes In market interest rates relates primarily to the group’s debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The group’s management monitors the interest fluctuations, if any, and accordingly, take necessary steps to raitigate any interest rate risk




DR. AGARWAL'S HEALTHCARE LIMITED
MNotes to the Conselidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022
e e e e e e e et S

Interest Rate sensitivity analysis:

A change (increasefdecrease) of 100 basis points in interast rates et the reporting date would increase/{decrease) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis
assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.

Impact on Profit and loss for the reporting period

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Particulars {Amount in Rs. Lakhs) {Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
Increase by 100bps| Decrease by | Increase by 100bps| Decrease by
100bps 100bps
Impact on Profit and loss for the reporting perioc {290.18) 230.18 {31.78) 31.78
Impact on fotal equity as at the end of the reporting period
As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
{Amount in Rs. Lakhs) {Amountin Rs. Lalds)
Particulars
Increase by 100bps| Decrease by | mcrease by 100bps| Decrease by
100hps 100bps
Impact on total equity as at the end of the reporting perioc {290.18) 290.18 {31.78) 31.78

{c.2) Foreign Currency Risk Management :

The Group undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies and consequently, expasures to exchange rate fluctuations arises. The Group has not entered into any derivative
contracts during the vear ended 31 March 2022 and there are no outstanding contracts as at 31 March 2021.
The carrying amounts of the group's foreign currency denaminated monetary assets and maonetary liabilities at the end of each reporting period are as folfows:

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Particulars Currency Amount in Amount in Rs. Amount in Amount in Rs.
foreign Currency Lakhs Foreign Currency Lakhs
Other Assets Uso - - 1,87,218 137.05
Receivables - Other Current Assets s - - - -
Trade Payables uso - - 22,574 16.82
Other Financial Liabilities uUsD - - - -

Forelgn Currency sensitivity analysis:

The following table details the group's sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in INR against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% is the rate used in order to determine the sensitivity
analysis considering the past trends and expectation of the management for changes in the foreign currency exchange rate. The sensitivity analysis includes the outstanding foreign currency
denominated manetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A positive number below indicates a increase in profit / decrease in
{oss and increase in equity where the INR strengthens 5% against the relevant currency. For a 5% weakening of the INR against the relevant currency, there would be a comparable impact
on the profit ar loss and equity and balznce below would be negative.

Impact on Profit and loss far the reporting period

For the year ended For the year ended
particula 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
]
£ {Amount in Rs. Lakhs) {Amwount in Rs. Lakhs})
Increase by 5% | Decrease by 5% | Increase by 5% Decrease by 5%
usD = = 6.01 {6.01)
Impact on total equity as at the end of the reporting period
As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
. {Amount in Rs. Lakhs} {Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
Particulars
Increase by 5% | Decrease by 5% |  Increase by 5% Decrease by 5%
UsD = e 6.01 {6.01)

Note :
This is mainly attributable to the exposure of receivable and payable outstanding in the above mentioned currencies to the group at the end of the reporting periot

44.5  Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value {but fair value disclosures are reguired)

The Management considers that the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liakilities recognized In the financial statemants approximate their fair value:
44.6 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group has not offset financial assets and financial liabilities
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A. For the year ended 31 March 2022

Information as required by Part |1 of General instructions for the preparation of consaolidated financial statements to Schedule il ta the Companies Act, 2013

Net Assets
Name of the Entity {i.e. total assels Sharein Share in other Share in total
minus profit and loss camprehensive income|  cempl income
total liabilities|

Parent : Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited

As a % of consolidated 69.64% -29.78% 8.18% -40.82%

Amount in Rs. lzkhs as at 31 March 2022 16,281.11 {1,285.29) (79.55) {1,364.84)
Subsidiary - India: Dr, Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited

As a % of consolidated 35.93% 39.87% 4.37% 50.33%

Arount in Rs. lakhs as at 31 March 2022 8,399.93 1,725.17 {42.55) 1,682.62
Subsidiary - Foreign: Orbit Healthcare Services (Mauritius) Ltd
{Consclidated)

As a % of consolidated 4.18% T7.11% 25.70% 74.61%

Amount in Rs. lakhs as at 31 March 2022 976.59 3,327.85 (833.59) 2,494.26
Subsidiary - India: Aditya Jyot Eve Hospital Private Limited

As a % of consolidated 1.32% 1.69% 0.00% 2.18%

Amount in Rs. lakhs as at 31 March 2022 308.68 72.96 = 7296
Subsidiary - Indla: Elisar Life Sclence Private Limited

As a % of consolidated -11.06% -1.65% 0.00% -2.13%

Amaunt in Rs. lakhs as at 31 March 2022 {2,586.71) {71.33) - [72.33)
Non-controliing interest in ail subsid jaries

As a % of consolidated 0.00% 12.66% 1.75% 15.84%

Amount in Rs. lakhs as 2t 31 March 2022 - 546.58 {17.03) 529.55
Associate - India: ldeaRx Services Private Limited

As a % of consolidated 0.00% 0.00% 0.60% 0.00%

Amaunt in Rs. lakhs as at 31 March 2022 - - = 3
Total

As a % of consolidated 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Amount in Rs. Takhs as at 31 March 2022 23,380.60 4,315.83 [972.72) 3,343.21

4§, For the year ended 31 March 2021
Nek Assets
Name of the Entity (i.e. total assets Share in Share in other Share in total
nHnus. profit and loss cormpret income| comprehi mcame
total liabilities)

Parent : Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited

Asa%efc lidated 37.55% 103.55% 3.51% 90.02%

Amount in Rs. lakhs as at 31 March 2021 7,457.20 {6,117.58) (32.45) (6,150:.44)
Subsidtary - India; Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited

Asa % ef¢ lidated 16.38% 2.25% -£.01% 1.95%

Amount in Rs. lakhs as at 31 March 2021 3,252.67 (133.16) 0.06 {132.10)
Subsidfary - Foreign: Orbit Healthcare Services {Mauritivs) Ltd

As a % of conselidated 28.89% -21.92% 96.42% -5.91%

Amount in Rs, lakhs as at 31 March 2021 5,747.60 1,295.07 891.32) 403.75
Subsidfary - Indfa: Advanced Eye Institute Private Limited {Refer
note below}

As a % of consolidated 2.59% -2.36% 0.00% -2.04%

Amcunt in Rs. lakhs as at 31 March 2021 513.56 138.14 - 139.14
Subsidiary - Indja; Elissr Life Science Private Limited

As 2 % of consolidated 7.31% 11.19% 0.00% 9.67%

Amount in Rs. lakhs as at 31 March 2021 1,452.57 (660.83) - [660.83)
Non-controlling interest in all subsidiaries

As a % of consolidated 7.28% 6.10% 0.08% 5.28%

Amount in Rs. lakhs as at 31 March 2021 1,446.24 (360.32) [0.72) [261.04)
Associate - india: IdeaRx Services Private Limited

As a % of consclidated 0.00% 1.19% 0.00% 1.03%

Amount in Rs. lakhs as at 31 March 2021 - {70.06) - [70.06)
Total

Asa % of¢ lidated 100% 100% 100% 100%

Amount in Rs. lakhs as at 31 March 2021 19,869.83 {5,908.15) {924.43) (6,832.5%

45 [C) Note : Pursuant to the board Resolution dated 28th Janruary 2021 the Board of Directors of the Company  have approved the scheme of Amalgamation of "Advanced Eye

Institute Pvt Ltd.{AEIPL)" Transferror Cormpany (which is a wholly owned subsidary) and "Dr. Agarwals Health Care Ltd. {AHCL]" {the helding company). The same has been
considered appropriately in the financials fer the year ended 31st March 2022,




4% The Board of Directers of the Company has reviewed the realizabfe value of all the current assets and has confirmed thaf the value of such assets in the ordinary course of
business will not be less that the value at which these are recognized in the censolidated financial statements. |n addition, the Board has also confirmed the carryving value
of the non-current assets in the consolidated financial statemments. The Beard, duly taking into account all the relevant disclosures mede, has approved these financial

statements in its meeting held on 12 August 2022,
1
‘ \

For and on behalf of the Beard of Directars

Dr. Anosh Agarwal Mr. B. Udhay Shankar Mr. Thanikainathan Arumugam
Wholétime Director Wholetime Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
THN: 01074272 DIN: 02636035

Place : Chennai
Date ; August 12, 2022
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